Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.

Audit Report

D.H.S.Z.[2024]0011008185-EN

Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)

TR B UL TS s B,
PORPPRSY .. € Py Ly A eyl b g v L ol 3
ifi‘&%ﬁl}: Goqneviiany Bl



II.

Yutong Bus CO.,L.TD.

Audit Report and Financial Statements

(1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023)

Content
Audit Report
Audited Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Parent Company's Balance Sheet

Parent Company's Statement of Comprehensive
Income

Parent Company's Cash Flow Statement

Parent Company's Statement of Changes in
Equity

Notes to Financial Statements

Page

1-7

1-2

5-6

7-8

10

11-12

1-156




Ml 5% | k¥R

Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)
12th Floor, Building 7, No. 16, Xisihuan Middle Road, Haidian District, Beijing [100039]
Tel: 86 (10) 5835 0011 Fax: 86 (10) 5835 0006

midalye- coa.con

Audit Report
D.H.S.Z.[2024]0011008185-EN

To the Shareholders of Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.:

I. Audit Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yutong Bus
CO.,LTD. (Herein after “Yutong Bus”), Which comprise the consolidated
and the parent company's balance sheet as at 31 December 2023, the
consolidated and the parent company's statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated and the parent company's cash flows statement
and the consolidated and the parent company's statement of changes in

equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present in all
material respects in accordance with the requirements of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises, and fairly reflect Yutong Bus
financial position at 31 December 2023 and the financial performance

and cash flows for the year then ended.
11.Basis for Audit Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with CICPA Standards on Auditing
(“CSAs”). In VI Certified Public Accountant's Responsibilities for the
Audit of Financial Statements’ of this report, our responsibilities under
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these standards are described. Those standards require that we comply
with CICPA professional ethical requirements, that we are independent
from Yutong Bus and have fulfilled all other ethical obligations. We
believe that we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence as

basis of for our opinion.
III.Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current year.  These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We determine revenue as a key audit matters that need to be addressed in

our report.
1.Event description

Please refer to Note III/(31) and Note V/Note 44 of the consolidated
financial statements for accounting policies and book amounts for

revenue recognition of Yutong Bus in 2023.

As revenue is one of the key performance indicators of Yutong Bus, there
is an inherent risk that management will manipulate revenue recognition
in order to achieve specific goals or expectations, so we identify revenue

recognition as a key audit item.
2. Audit response

Important audit procedures we have carried out for revenue recognition of

Yutong Bus include:

(1) Test the design and execution of key internal controls related to the
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revenue cycle to confirm the effectiveness of internal controls;
(2) Perform analytical review procedures for revenue and costs;

(3) Obtain contracts signed between Yutong Bus and customers, and
verify key terms of contracts, including delivery, settlement and

collection, exchange and return policies, etc.;

(4) Check the purchase orders, shipping documents, transportation
documents, receipt confirmation, accounting vouchers, payment

collection documents and other materials of Yutong Bus and customers;

(5) Implement independent verification procedures for important

customers to verify accounts receivable and current sales;

(6) Select samples of revenue transactions recorded before and after the
balance sheet date, check relevant supporting documents, and evaluate

whether the revenue is recorded in the appropriate accounting period.

Based on the audit procedures carried out, we believe that Yutong Bus
revenue recognition meets the relevant provisions of the Accounting

Standards for business enterprises.
IV.Other Information

The management of Yutong Bus is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the 2023
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion.

In combination with our audit of the financial statements, our

responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
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whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the audit work performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. 'We have nothing to report in this regard.

V.Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with

Governance for the Financial Statements

Management of Yutong Bus is responsible for the preparation and present
these financial statements fairly in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

Management of Yutong Bus is also responsible for assessing Yutong Bus's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing matters related to going
concern (if applicable), and using going concern assumption, unless the
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations or has no realistic option to comply.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Yutong

Bus's financial reporting process.

VI.Certified Public Accountant's Responsibilities for the Audit of

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatements,

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an independent auditor's report
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that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with CSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions the users taken on the basis of these

Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

1.Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2.0btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

3.Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures by

management.

4.Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going
concern basis of accounting. Based on the audit evidence obtained,
conclude on whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on Yutong Bus's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
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exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause Yutong Bus to cease to continue as a

going concern.

5.Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial
Statements, and evaluate whether Financial Statements fairly reflected the

underlying transactions and events.

6.0btain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding Yutong Bus's
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the Financial Statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance the Group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the year and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
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precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Da Hua (j€¢ ?Mbﬁwc ountants CICPA:

(Speia traship)
B (Engagement Partner) Cao Bo
SEAE
» 1
CICPA: %{/l‘
Zhu Honghui
30 March 2024
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.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2023
(The currency of the statements are Chinese Yuan or 'CNY’, unless otherwise indicated)

\ J ' Notes V Closing Balance Opening Balance
':i"k F;
Current agsgts ™. Y
Cash andﬁbasll_equivalen_ls,f g V.1 6,433,808,650.59 7,034,623,944.95
Financial assets held for trading V.2 100,121,315.07 22,110.96
Derivative financial assets
Notes receivable V.3 246,653,807.77 266,636,208.67
Accounts receivable V.4 3,968,792,894.26 4,089,677,935.27
Financing receivables V.5 211,076,691.04 62,257,015.37
Prepayments V.6 736,325,379.70 673,422,781.72
Other receivables V.7 1,020,759,936.91 916,168,621.56
Including: interest receivable
Including: Dividends receivable V.7 4,504,187.49
Inventories V.8 4,513,287,997.28 4,893,551,267.55
Contract assets V.9 127,516,136.84 528,800,987.92
Held-for-sale assets
Current portion of non-current assets V.10 530,147,886.53 367,603,961.86
Other current assets V.11 1,725,801,160.27 165,417,122.38
Total current assets 1961429185626 1899818195821
Non-current assets:
Debt investments V.12 134,252,000.02 391,826,645.82
Other debt investments
Long-term receivables V.13 21,890,394.56 81,286,212.68
Long-term equity investments V.14 649,545,124.13 996,940,163.70
Other equity instruments investments V.15 1,479,764,762.94 1,715,590,445.12
Other non-current financial assets V.16 598,803,277.44 132,500,000.00
Investment properties
Fixed assets VA7 4,171,617,820.66 4,161,372,973.79
Construction in progress V.18 189,997,999.56 276,431,436.65
Productive biclogical assets
Oil and gas assets
Right-of-use assets V.19 21,123,048.36 13,769,494.50
Intangible assets V.20 1,543,591,173.65 1,564,864,113.99
Development expenditure
Goodwill V.21 103,203.85 103,203.85
Long-term deferred expenses V.22 889,542.72 184,814.34
Deferred tax assets V.23 1,599,212,219.33 1,655,836,331.53
Other non-current assets V.24 831,873,549.94 9,4951?39.37

Total non-current assets

Total assets

| 11,242,604,117.16

11,000,201,075.34

30,856,955,973.42

29,998,383,033.55

(Attached notes to statements are part of the financial statments)

Finance Officer (CFO): ')]-b lfg\ Financial Manager:} Yd/
s i /‘ i

/
LeWt’aﬂve:




Prepared bf Yyt‘cng Bus CO; LTD
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ansolldated Balance Sheet (Continue)

As at 31 December 2023

(BRESRNIERIS, BRI ARTIIT

§= aj" L\abllity and Equtty | Notes V Closing Balance Opening Balance
i~ ‘1 '|"'-" B

Current IIthht?eS '

Short- term.ﬁormwjngs P g .-."‘r

Financial llabdjles hatd forh'at!' ng V.25 45,558,310.35 45,890,608.52

Derivative nnancfamamjmes ,

Notes payable V.26 3,305,579,159.12 2,303,768,801.76

Accounts payable V.27 3,837,693,858.77 5,197,175,040.59

Receipts in advance V.28 4,157,974.12 10,389,583.54

Contract liabilities V.29 2,472,666,720.88 1,309,569,296.41

Payroll and employee benefits payable V.30 1,108,643,151.98 836,380,903.13

Taxes payable V.31 219,045,146.63 204,887,483.77

Other payables V.32 2,280,463,542.26 2,179,223,900.29

Held-for-sale liabilities

Current portion of non-current liabilities V.33 4,110,702.05 6,762,907.04

Other curtent liablites VI 40620188200 . 486,134,261.55
Total current liabilities 13,684,210,448.16 12,580,182,786.60
Non-current liabilities:

Long-term borrowings

Bonds payable

Including: Preferred stock

Including: Perpetual debt

Lease liahilities V.35 13,525,052.63 3,655,966.72

Long-term payables

Long-term employee benefits payable

Provisions V.36 2,386,118,529.77 1,990,173,231.26

Deferred income V.37 500,599,879.13 669,163,678.81

Deferred tax liabilities V.23 215,882,402.18 159,158,823.19

Other non-current liabilities . e
Total non-current liabilities 3116,125,863.71  2,822,151,699.98
Total liabilities 16,800,336,311.87 15,402,334,486.58
Equity:

Share capital V.38 2,213,939,223.00 2,213,939,223.00

Other equity instruments

Including: Preferred stock

Including: Perpetual debt

Capital reserves V.39 1,505,802,389.72 1,494,452,186.09

Less: Treasury shares

Other comprehensive income V.40 81,783,135.23 254,299,964.23

Special reserves V.41 4,391,303.91 5,153,780.54

Surplus reserve V.42 3,236,247,955.04 3,038,152,006.09

Unappropriated pro V4 687600672632 7,466,591,790.27
Equity attributable to parent company 13,918,970,733.22 14,472,588,950.22
Nomcontoing nterests 76092638 123,459,596.75
Total shareholders' equity 14,056,619,661.55 14.596,048,546.97'
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 30,856,955,973.42 20,998,383,033.55

(Attached notes to statements are part of the financial statments)

Legal Representative: ™
/ .

s

Finance Officer (CFO):.

’73‘?0‘ > 7’2\ Financial Manager:




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

N\ .y s For the year ended 31 December 2023
Prepared bjfs Yutcng Btfs CG ~LTD ! (The currency of the statements are Chinese Yuan or 'CNY', unless otherwise indicated)

__:' > AL , \ lents Notes V Current Period Prior Period

1. Opqaﬂng revenus | ! V.44 27,041,989,494.57 21,798,960,604.67
Less: Qpamhnh gosls Jy~ V.44 20,105,991,490.18 16,823,122,585.66
xes and surcharges J V.45 327,644,040.06 224,637,974.81
Seﬂing exﬁau;ses o . V4 V.46 1,954,943,335.45 1,639,000,517.56
Admnwanye Evpenses” 7 4 V.47 719,313,461.70 846,249,444.57
esearcﬁmgjabpmg hl. eumanses V.48 1,567,641,719.45 1,694,314,017.12
Finance expenses V.49 -85,802,958.12 -78,243,005.81
Including: Interest expenses V.49 1,870,787.06 234,535.01
Interest income V.49 146,521,974.16 61,999,128.31
Add: Other income V.50 329,775,019.58 433,454,299.66
Income from investments V.51 99,035,717.88 153,254,781.82
Including: Investment income from associates and joint ventures V.51 98,966,718.81 100,415,500.59
Derecognition of financial assets at amortised cost V.51 -54,170,176.39 -44,687,511.20
Gains from net exposure hedging
Gains from changes in fair values V.52 -1,239,105.29 -17,245,208.93
Credit impairment losses V.53 -333,561,307.12 -441,440,832.56
Assets impairment losses V.54 -557,103,720.64 -126,088,338.25
Gains from asset disposals V.55 ... 4672282036 53,9092,660.32
2. Operating profit 2,035,887,840.62 705,806,432.82
Add: Non-operating income V.56 65,698,467.46 32,863,921.98
Less: Non-operating expenses VS 2BFT08AL 30,910785.55
3. Profit before tax 2,078,013,269.97 707,759,599.25
Less: Income tax expenses ves 238,509,966.63 -60,045,092.38
4, Net profit 1830,503,303.34  767,804,691.63

Including: Net profit realised before business combinations under common control

I. Net profit classified by going concern
Net profit from conlinuing operations 1,839,503,303.34 767,804,691.63
Net profit from discontinuing operations

1. Net profit classified by ownership

Net profit attributable to parent company 1,817,084,152.22 759,140,760.22

Net profit attributable to non-controlling interests 22,419,151.12 8,663,931.41

5. Other comprehensive income after tax -167,350,873.22 -396,865,577.35
Other comprehensive income after tax attributable to parent company -167,350,873.22 -396,855,577.35

1. ltems of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -168,870,508.51 -396,865,577.35

i, Changes in remeasurement of defined benefit plans
ii. Other comprehensive income that cannot be transferred to profit or loss under the

jii. Changes in fair value of investments in equity instruments -168,870,508.51 -396,855,577.35
iv. Changes in fair value of the Company's own credit risk

v. Othes

II. Items of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profitorloss '"'1-,5'1'6,'6@5:29 ----------------

i.  Other comprehensive income that can be transferred to profit or loss under the

ii. Changes in fair value of other debt investments

iii. Amount of financial assets reclassified info other comprehensive income

iv. Provisions for credit impairment of other debt investments

v. The effective portion of gains or losses arising from cash flow hedging

vi. Translation differences arising from financial statements in foreign currencies 1,519,635.29

vii, Income from investments in subsidiaries before loss of control
viii, Investment properties at fair value converted from other assets
ix. Others
Other comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests after tax
6. Total comprehensive income 1,672,152,430.12 370,949,114.28
Total comprehensive income attributable to parent company 1,649,733,279.00 362,285,182.87
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 22,419,151.12 8,663,931.41
7. Earnings per share
|. Basic earnings per share 0.82 0.34
II. Diluted earnings per share 0.82 0.34

(Attached notes to statements.are part of the financial statments)

e{l presomatwe Finance Officer (CFQ): 7})2) 7’2\ Financial Manager: ;
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"-gonsolidated Cash Flows Statement
' \? For the year ended 31 December 2023

(The currency of the statements are Chinese Yuan or 'CNY', uniess otherwise indicated)

W7 1t 6 lemsy Notes V Current Period Prior Period
L~ __‘-.-,“ : !
1. Cash flows'fyo bperating activitied
Gash feceived Wrapn sales A1 Sarvices .+~ 3040471292633 24,671,130,941.10
Tax and surcharge raRNtSemm" 421,546,143 47 409,179,400.50
Other cash receipts related to operating activities V.59.i 716,002,911.89 1,091,541,883.93
Total cash inflows from operating activities 31542261981 69 26171,85222553
Cash paid for goods and services 20,911,298,554.73 17,012,028,922.32
Cash paid to and for employees 2,368,199,981.54 2,694,966,784.99
Taxes and surcharges paid 869,531,361.37 698,164,806.22
Other cash payments related to operating activities V.59.i 2,676,534,355.88 2,513,086,908.46
Total cash outflows from operating activities 2682556425352 ----- 22918247421 99
Net cash flows from operating activities 4,716,697,728.17 3,263,604,803.54
2. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from withdrawal of investments 10,947,550,667.29 2,530,292,679.26
Cash received from investment income 11,137,500.00 51,219,785.73
Net proceeds from disposals of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long- 117,254,042.50 120,211,166.94
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries and other business units 15,090,000.00 34,712,460.72
Other cash receipts related to investing activities
Total cash inflows from investing activities 1109103220979 o 2736436092 65
Cash paid for fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets 567,039,081.24 975,657,927.93
Cash paid for investments 13,697,734,725.40 2,159,582,867.86
Net cash paid for acquiring subsidiaries and other business units
Other cash payments related to investing activities
Total cash outflows from investing activities 14264,77380664 31 35,24079579
Net cash flows from investing activities -3,173,741,596.85 -398,804,703.14
3. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from investments by others 3,643,200.00 8,173.79
Including: Cash received by subsidiaries from non-controlling investors 3,643,200.00 8,173.79
Cash received from borrowings
Other cash receipts related to other financing activities
Total cash inflows from financing activities 364320000 817379
Cash repayments for debts
Cash paid for distribution of dividends and profit and for interest expenses 2,245,698,257.62 1,116,795,631.60
Including: Dividends or profit paid by subsidiaries to non-controlling investors 11,873,019.54 9,988,647.40
Other cash payments related to financing activities V.59 9,282,499.82 320,402,119.05
Total cash outflows from financing activities 225498075744 ...... 1 43719775065
Net cash flows from financing activities -2,251,337,557.44 -1,437,189,576.86
4. Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents -27,019,533.07 9,531,041.47
5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents _-735,400.959.19 1,408,079,482.07
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 7,027,259,964.83 5,619,180,482.76
6. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 6,291,859,005.64 7,027,259,964.83

(Attached notes to statements are part of the financial statments)

Legal Representalive: R

. o
Finance Officer (CFO): 7}@21& Financial Manager: ’5
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PR .'.__:'?‘"Pagent Company's Balance Sheet

4 J
r;"’f & o il \ -\ As at 31 December 2023
Prepared 5y ﬁ’ulong Bus CQ LTD 1. .(Ehe currency of the statements are Chinese Yuan or 'CNY’, unless otherwise indicated)
\* i‘_ Assats F' 4 Notes XVI Closing Balance Opening Balance
Current assetS’
Cash and Cash eqm\ra!ems 3,596,382,466.51 3,579,352,038.49
Financial assets held for frading 100,121,315.07
Derivative financial assets
Notes receivable 109,274,692.40 202,014,392.64
Accounts receivable XVI.1 5,629,119,962.00 5,571,985,165.92
Financing receivables 85,455,242.48 57,442,053.12
Prepayments 642,158,250.82 571,768,540.62
Other receivables XVI.2 2,091,204,447.88 2,935,469,885.42
Including: interest receivable
Including: Dividends receivable 16,000,000.00
Inventories 2,130,872,245.87 1,707,057,949.09
Contract assets 90,403,173.48 488,619,858.91

Held-for-sale assets
Current portion of non-current assets
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Debt investments
Other debt investments
Long-term receivables
Long-term equity investments XVIL.3
Other equity instruments investments
Other non-current financial assets
Investment properties
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Productive biological assets
Oil and gas assets
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Development expenditure
Goodwill
Long-term deferred expenses
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

530,147,886.53
1,520,659,697.31
16,525,799,380.35

367,603,961.86
11,282,966.82

15,492,596,812.89

134,252,000.02

21,890,394.56
4,010,026,878.68
810,322,262.94

3,135,270,302.57
48,783,018.85

3,484,722.78
1,021,327,272.41

1,227,947,738.50
830,543,655.09
11,243,848,246.40

391,826,645.82

81,286,212.68
4,908,132,544.56
847,199,242.75

3,389,020,826.65
148,144,899.87

5,518,374.62
1,036,163,277.88

1,324,428,124.63
7,581,491.40

12,139,301,640.86

27,769,647,626.75

27,631,898,453.75

(Attached notes to statements are part of the financial statments)

Legal Reprgsénkalive:

rF
/
S m

Finance Officer (CFO): -7&@ ‘-T?L

Financial Manager: 4




Parent Company's Balance Sheet (Continue)

T

-

N\ As at 31 December 2023
(T‘h_q currency of the statements are Chinese Yuan or 'CNY', unless otherwise indicated)

Prepared by: Yumng éue CO LTD

Notes XVI

Closing Balance

Opening Balance

= Llablllty and Eqmty y
T - 1 3
Current Iiahlll 881 ' i
Short-term bag;owfhgs /
Flnan0|al ilabﬂﬂies heTG for {rading=”
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Receipts in advance
Contract liabilities
Payroll and employee benefits payable
Taxes payable
Other payables
Held-for-sale liabilities
Current portion of non-current liabilities
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities :
Long-term borrowings
Bonds payable
Including: Preferred stock
Including: Perpetual debt
Lease liabilities
Long-term payables
Long-term employee benefits payable
Provisions
Deferred income
Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity:
Share capital
Other equity instruments
Including: Preferred stock
Including: Perpetual debt
Capital reserves
Less: Treasury shares
Other comprehensive income
Special reserves
Surplus reserve
Unappropriated profit
Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and owners' equity

31,499,244.76

3,247,678,159.07
2,802,658,251.75
1,864,860.00
1,493,221,833.21
1,053,618,968.41
157,959,712.29
1,678,652,048.50

21,331,454.77

2,217,026,442.32
4,329,309,593.83
8,025,266.05
879,896,678.33
815,618,726.06
95,252,360.55
1,810,519,522.65

1,633,119.54 1,615,392.10
.......... ST 2
10,772,045,915.76  10,557,987,831.33
2,074,451.03 3,665,066.72

1,897,145,389.13

1,627,499,970.06

477,365,023.76 636,287,661.06
118,995,970.79 39,753,301.10
"""" 2,495,580,834.11° 2,307,196,898.94
13,267,626,750.47 ___ 12,865,184,730.27
2,213,939,223.00 2,213,939,223.00
2,212,319,569.40 2,212,319,569.40
-372,002,179.06 -340,746,746.22
1,204,788.23 1,572,469.06
3,047,244,001.97 2,849,148,053.02
........ 739940547274 1,830,481,155.20
14,502,020,876.08  14,766,713,723.48
21,769,647,626.75 ___ 27,631,898,453.75

(Attached notes to statereﬂs are part of the financial statments)

Legal Representative: | [

" /
N/
g,

Finance Officer (CFO):

s, e z' T/




-r.' ' d \

Parentﬂqmpany s Statement of Comprehensive Income

P 4 N\ For the year ended 31 December 2023
Pmpared hy Yutung Bus CO LT{J \ \ (The currency of the statements are Chinese Yuan or 'CNY', unless otherwise indicated)
- \ '} |
1 ' :- Itgris” | Notes XVI Current Period Prior Period
1. Operatifig Tevénye XV14 23,693,784,402.02  19,662,003,867.39
Less: Operatfi'a?gost_s"' e’ Xvi4 17,638,316,038.72 15,506,929,744.50
Taxes and stfehdfges * 248,437,468.04 125,746,877.66
Selling expenses 1,615,808,374.43 1,334,024,991.12
Administrative expenses 575,977,996.49 710,464,365.65
Research and development expenses 1,411,123,227.15 1,557,437,091.05
Finance expenses -148,423,059.51 -120,748,633.21
Including: Interest expenses 9,246,666.67
Interest income 103,569,021.71 31,792,504.62
Add: Otherincome 302,062,477.10 397,337,234.81
Income from investments VL5 246,569,641.19 224,261,206.82
Including: Investment income from associates and joint ventures 50,245,792.62 100,415,500.59
Derecognition of financial assets at amortised cost -26,322,845.52 -38,385,532.84
Gains from net exposure hedging
Gains from changes in fair values 32,457,617.27 5,847,934.76
Credit impairment losses -308,138,631.60 -469,254,198.80
Assets impairment losses -536,054,624.87 -61,403,568.32
Gains from asset disposals 38,‘1_60,343.76 54,187,604.17
2.Operating profit 2127,60117955 699,125,644.06
Add: Non-operating income 57,976,325.50 30,004,909.45
Less: Non-operating expenses 10,544,089.59 1,132,078.20
3.Profitheforetax T 217503341546 727,998 475.31
Less: Income tax expanses 194, 073,925.99 -79,211,552.65
4. Net profit T ieoswand 807,210,027.96
Net profit from continuing operations 1,980,059,489.47 807,210,027.96
Net profit from discontinuing operations
5. Other comprehensive income after tax -31,345,432.84 -382,202,637.27
L. tems of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profitorfoss - - 31 ,345,43284 382202,63727
i.  Changes in remeasurement of defined benefit plans
i. Other comprehensive income that cannot be transferred to profit or loss under the
jii. Changes in fair value of investments in equity instruments -31,345,432.84 -382,202,637.27
iv. Changes in fair value of the Company's own credit risk
v. Others
1. items of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss ’ - T
i. Other comprehensive income that can be transferred to profit or loss under the
ii. Changes in fair value of other debt investments
jil. Amount of financial assets reclassified into other comprehensive income
iv. Provisions for credit impairment of other debt investments
v. The effective portion of gains or losses arising from cash flow hedging
vi. Translation differences arising from financial statements in foreign currencies
vii. Income from investments in subsidiaries before loss of control
viii. Investment properties at fair value converted from other assets
ix. Others
6. Total comprehensive income 1,049,614,056.63 425,007,390.69

7. Earnings per share
1. Basic eamings per share
I1. Diluted earnings per share

{Attached notes lo statements are part of the financial statments)

K Finance Officer (CFO): -7\],‘7/3‘]*5\\
'. ARG

Legal Rapre_g_ehlalive:
.\‘\.“__/'/

V)

Financial Manager: ] g L




Pa(ent Company’s Cash Flows Statement

& N\ = -

F AR “~ N\ For the year ended 31 December 2023

Prepared by: "(ulong Bus GO LTD (The currency of the statements are Chinese Yuan or 'CNY", unless otherwise indicated)

Wha il P |
Wi, dtems § ~— Notes XVI Current Period Prior Period

;_‘.1 ——
e

1. Cash flowstircm Bnerattng activities . :-,‘:'
Cash received 'sa!emnd sen'Tces 26,064,308,704.19 21,497,579,117.66
Tax and surcharge raﬂmds__._ 399,471,678.02 363,324,520.28
Other cash receipts related to operating activities 1,865,617,742.31 1,154,413,012.79
Total cash inflows from operating acfivities 28,329,398. 12452 lllll 23,01 5,316,65073
Cash paid for goods and services 18,796,885,197.16 16,949,334,537.80
Cash paid to and for employees 2,076,334,556.94 2,376,781,599.18
Taxes and surcharges paid 460,526,785.63 301,046,147.32
Other cash payments related to operating activities 2,917,808,690.58 1,981,003,265.26
Total cash outfiows from operating activities 24251,555.23031 ____ 21,608,165.54956
Net cash flows from operating activities 4,077,842,894.21 1,407,151,101.17
2. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from withdrawal of investments 11,390,862,479.78 2,983,347,146.36
Cash received from investment income 195,587,5600.00 105,767,466.67
Net proceeds from disposals of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long- 116,954,856.19 117,101,964.69

Net proceéds from disposal of subsidiaries and other business units
Other cash receipts related to investing activities

Total cash inflows from investing activities 11,703404,835.97  3,206,216,577.72
Cash paid for fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets 402,278,626.34 607,786,776.40
Cash paid for investments 13,181,175,111.31 2,509,758,209.77

Net cash paid for acquiring subsidiaries and other business units

Other cash payments related to investing activities
Total cash outflows from investing activities 13.583.453,73765 3 11754498617
Net cash flows from investing activities -1,880,048,901.68 88,671,591.55
3. Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from investments by others
Cash received from borowings
Other cash receipts related to other financing activities

Total cash inflows from financing activities

Cash repayments for debts

Cash paid for distribution of dividends and profit and for interest expenses 2,221,249,070.57 1,106,806,984.20
Other cash payments related to financing activities 2,990,662.38 314,248,438.06
Total cash outflows from financing activities 2,224,239,73295 """"" 1 .421,055.42226
Net cash flows from financing activities 2,224,239,732.95 -1,421,055,422.26
4, Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents -16,167,205.84 8,533,914.57
5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -42,612,946.26 83,301,185.03
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 3,578,544,117.23 3,495,242,932.20
6. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 3,535,931,170.97 3,578,544,117.23

(Attached notes to itamenls are part of the financial statments)

Finance Officer (CFO): j y“'fz\\ Financial Manager: 7 A/

Legal Represerilative!

A"

10
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Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.
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Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.
For the year ended 31 december 2023

Notes to the financial statements

LGENERAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

1.Company profile

Yutong Bus CO.,LTD. (hereinafter referred to as the "Company" ) is a joint stock limited company
established under the permission of Commission for Restructuring Commission (1993) No. 29 of
Henan Province. It was approved by the China Securities Regulatory Commission to issue 35.00
million A-shares to the public. After the issuance of the total capital of 73.00 million shares, and
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in May 1997. Unified social credit code of the company:
91410000170001401D.

Through the years of allotment of new shares, conversion of capital, additional issue of new shares
and share repurchase. As at December 31, 2023, the Company had a total cumulative outstanding
capital of 2,213,939,223.00 shares. The registered capital is 2,213,939,223.00 yuan. Registered
address: No. 6 Yutong Road, Guancheng Huizu District, Zhengzhou. Headquarters Address: No. 6
Yutong Road, Guancheng Huizu District, Zhengzhou. The parent company is Zhengzhou Yutong
Group Co.,Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as "Yutong Group"). The actual control of the group is
Tang Yuxiang.

2.The business nature and main business activities of the Company

The company belongs to the automobile manufacturing industry. The main business is the
production and sales of passenger cars, the provision of automobile maintenance services and the

city - county line travel passenger service.

3.Approve the presentation of financial statements

These financial statements have been approved by the board of directors of the Company on 30

March, 2024.

ILPREPARATION BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.Basis of Preparation
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The Group has adopted the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises ("ASBE") issued by
the Ministry of Finance ("MoF"). In addition, the Group has disclosed relevant financial
information in accordance with Information Disclosure and Presentation Rules for Companies
Offering Securities to the Public No. 15 - General Provisions on Financial Reporting (Revised in

2023).

2.Going concern

The Company evaluated its ability to go as a going concern for the 12 months from the end of the
reporting period and did not identify matters or circumstances that raised material doubt about its
ability to go as a going concern. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on the

basis of going concern assumptions.

3.Basis of accounting and pricing principles

The Company's accounting is based on the accrual basis. Except for certain financial instruments
measured at fair value, the financial statements are measured on a historical cost basis. In case of
asset impairment, the corresponding impairment reserve shall be set aside in accordance with

relevant provisions.

IILSIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

1.Statement of compliance with accounting standards for business enterprises

The financial statements prepared by the company meet the requirements of the accounting
standards for business enterprises, truly and completely reflect the company's financial position,

operating results, cash flow and other relevant information during the reporting period.

2.Accounting period

The accounting period is from 1 January to 31 December.

3.0perating cycle

The main business of the company is the production and sales of buses, the operating cycle is
short, with 12 months as the liquidity division standard of assets and liabilities; The operating
cycle of the company's real estate business usually lasts more than 12 months, from land purchase
to property development to sale and realization. The specific cycle is determined according to the
development project situation, and the operating cycle is taken as the liquidity division standard of

assets and liabilities.
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4.Reporting currency

The Company's functional currency is Renminbi.

5.Determining method and selecting basis of importance criterion

ltems i Importance Criterion

The balance of receivables is more than 1% and the amount is

S|gn|f|cant write-off receivables for the period greaier than or equal to 10 million yuan

Significant prepayments aged over 1 year The amount is greater than or equal to 10 million yuan

Slgmﬂcant recovery or reversal of bad debt provision for “The balance of receivables is more than 1% and the amount is
the current period | greater than or equal to 10 milionyvan
| Total assets of more than 1% and the amount is greater than or
|_equal to 200 million yuan
| The balance of accounts payable is more than 1% and the
| amount is greater than or equal to 10 million yuan

| The balance of recelpts in advance is more than 10% and the
| _amount is greater than or equal to 5 million yuan

The balance of contract liabilities is more than 1% and the

Significant debt investments

Significant accounts payable aged over 1 year

S|gn|f|cant recelpts in advance aged over 1 year

Significant contract liabilities aged over 1 year

Slgmﬂcant other payab[es aged over 1 year | The amount is greater than ar equal to 10 million yuan

R

I Non-financial investment that accounts for more than 1% of the

Cash received in connection with significant investment | cash received from the sale of goods and the provision of
activities services in the year and is greater than or equal to 200 million
yuan .

Non-financial investment that accounts for more than 1% of the
Cash payments relating to significant investment | cash received from the sale of goods and the provision of
activities services in the year and is greater than or equal to 200 million
_lywan
The net profit impact exceeds 10% of the company's
consolidated net profit
The net profit impact exceeds 10% of the companys
consolidated netprofit
Research and development cost more than 5% and the amount
is greater than or equal to 10 million yuan
| The budget accounts for more than 1% of the total assets and
| the amount is greater than or equal to 200 million yuan

Significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries

Significant joint ventures and associates

Significant outsourcing research projects

Significant construction in progress

6.Accounting treatments for business combinations involving entities under common

control and not under common control

i. The terms, conditions, and economic impact of each transaction in the process of a
step-by-step business combination meet one or more of the following conditions, accounting

for multiple transactions as a package transaction

(1)The transactions were entered into at the same time or having regard to the effects of each
other;

(2)These transactions as a whole can achieve a complete business outcome;

(3)The occurrence of one transaction depends on the occurrence of at least one other transaction;
(4)A transaction is uneconomic in isolation, but economic when considered in conjunction with

other transactions.
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ii. Business combinations involving entities under common control

The enterprises participating in the merger are ultimately controlled by the same party or the same
multiple parties before and after the merger, and the control is not temporary, and it is a business

combination under the same control.

The assets and liabilities acquired by the Company in the business combination shall be measured
according to the book value of the assets and liabilities of the merged party (including the
goodwill generated by the acquisition of the merged party by the ultimate controlling party) in the
consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling party on the merger date. For the
difference between the book value of net assets acquired in the merger and the book value of the
merger consideration paid (or the total face value of the issued shares), the capital premium in the
capital reserve shall be adjusted. If the capital premium in the capital reserve is insufficient for

write-down, the retained earnings shall be adjusted.

If contingent consideration exists and a projected liability or asset needs to be recognized, the
difference between the estimated liability or asset amount and the subsequent contingent
consideration settlement amount,Adjust capital reserves (capital premium or equity premium),

and if capital reserves are insufficient, adjust retained earnings.

For the enterprise merger that is finally realized through multiple transactions and belongs to the
package transaction, accounting treatment shall be carried out for each transaction as one
transaction that has acquired control rights. If it is not a package transaction, on the date of
acquisition of control rights, Initial investment cost of long-term equity investment, the difference
between the book value of the long-term equity investment before the merger and the book value
of the new consideration for shares acquired on the merger date, adjust the capital reserve; If the
capital reserve is insufficient for write-down, the retained earnings shall be adjusted. For the
equity investment held before the merger date, other comprehensive income recognized by using
the equity method of accounting or financial instrument recognition and measurement standards
accounting, temporarily no accounting treatment, until the disposal of the investment in the same
basis as the direct disposal of relevant assets or liabilities of the invested entity; ~Other changes in
owner's equity except net profit and Joss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution in
the net assets of the invested entity recognized by the equity method shall not be accounted for

temporarily until they are transferred to current profit and loss when the investment is disposed of.
iii. Business combinations involving entities not under common control

The enterprises participating in the merger are not ultimately controlled by the same party or the
same multiple parties before and after the merger, which is a business merger not under the same

control.
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On the purchase date, the Company measures the assets paid and liabilities incurred or assumed as
consideration for the merger in accordance with the fair value, and the difference between the fair

value and the carrying value is recorded into current profit and loss.

The Company recognizes as goodwill the difference between the cost of the merger and the share
of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the purchaser obtained in the merger; The
difference between the merger cost less than the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of

the purchaser obtained in the merger shall be recorded into the current profit and loss after review.

Tf the enterprise combination under different control is realized step by step through multiple
exchange transactions, and belongs to a package transaction, each transaction shall be treated as
one transaction that has acquired control rights; If the equity investment held before the merger
date is accounted by the equity method, the sum of the book value of the equity investment held
by the purchaser before the purchase date and the new investment cost on the purchase date shall
be taken as the initial investment cost of the investment. Other comprehensive income recognized
by the equity method for the equity investment held before the purchase date shall be accounted
for on the same basis as the direct disposal of related assets or liabilities by the invested entity
when disposing of the investment. If the equity investment held before the merger date is
accounted by financial instrument recognition and measurement criteria, the sum of the fair value
of the equity investment on the merger date plus the cost of new investment shall be taken as the
initial investment cost on the merger date. The balance between the fair value of the original
equity and the book value as well as the accumulated fair value changes originally included in
other comprehensive income shall all be transferred to the investment income of the current period

of the merger date.
iv. Are expenses incurred in connection with the merger

Intermediary fees, such as auditing, legal services, evaluation and consulting, and other directly
related expenses incurred for business merger shall be booked into current profit and loss when
incurred; Transaction expenses of equity securities issued for the purpose of enterprise merger

may be deducted from equity directly attributable to equity transactions.

7.The criterion of control and the preparation method of consolidated financial statements
i. The criterion of control

Control means that the investor has power over the investee, enjoys variable returns by
participating in the investee's related activities, and has the ability to use its power over the

investee to influence the amount of returns.
The Company determines whether to control the investee on the basis of comprehensive
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consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances.  If changes in relevant facts and
circumstances lead to changes in the relevant elements of the definition of control, the Company

will re-evaluate. Relevant facts and circumstances include:
(1) The purpose of establishment of the investee.
(2) the related activities of the investee and how to make decisions about the related activities.

(3) whether the rights enjoyed by the investor currently enable it to direct the relevant activities of

the investee.
(4) Whether the investor enjoys variable returns by participating in the investee's related activities.

(5) Whether the investor has the ability to use its power over the investee to influence the amount

of its return.
(6) The investor's relationship with other parties.
ii. Scope of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated scope of the Company's consolidated financial statements is determined on a
control basis and all subsidiaries (including separate entities controlled by the Company) are

included in the consolidated financial statements.
iii. Merge program

The Company prepares consolidated financial statements based on its own financial statements
and those of its subsidiaries and other relevant information. In preparing consolidated financial
statements, the Company regards the entire enterprise group as one accounting entity and reflects
the overall financial position, operating results and cash flow of the enterprise group in accordance
with the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements of relevant accounting standards

for enterprises and in accordance with uniform accounting policies.

The accounting policies and accounting periods adopted by all subsidiaries included in the
consolidated financial statements are consistent with those of the Company. If the accounting
policies and accounting periods adopted by the subsidiaries are not consistent with those of the
Company, necessary adjustments shall be made in accordance with the accounting policies and

accounting periods of the Company when preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements offset the impact of internal transactions between the
Company and its subsidiaries and among subsidiaries on the consolidated balance sheet,
consolidated income statement, consolidated cash flow statement and consolidated statement of

changes in shareholders' equity. If the perspective of consolidated financial statements of an
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enterprise group is different from the recognition of the same transaction with the company or its
subsidiaries as the accounting subject, the transaction shall be adjusted from the perspective of the

enterprise group.

The owners' equity, current net profit and loss and the shares belonging to minority shareholders in
the current comprehensive income of the subsidiary are separately shown under the owners' equity
item in the consolidated balance sheet, under the net profit item in the consolidated income
statement and under the total comprehensive income item. The current loss shared by the
minority shareholders of the subsidiary exceeds the balance formed by the minority shareholders'

shares in the initial owner's equity of the subsidiary, and thus reduces the shareholders' equity.

For the subsidiaries acquired by the merger of enterprises under the same control, the financial
statements of the subsidiaries shall be adjusted based on the book value of their assets and
liabilities (including the goodwill formed by the acquisition of the subsidiary by the ultimate

controlling party) in the financial statements of the ultimate controlling party.

For subsidiaries acquired by a merger of enterprises not under the same control, their financial
statements shall be adjusted on the basis of the fair value of identifiable net assets on the purchase

date
(1) Add a subsidiary or business

Adjust the beginning of the consolidated balance sheet during the reporting period if there is an
increase in subsidiaries or businesses as a result of the merger of enterprises under the same
control; Include the revenues, expenses and profits from the beginning of the current period to
the end of the reporting period of the merger of subsidiaries or businesses into the consolidated
income statement;  If the cash flows of the subsidiary or business combination from the
beginning of the current period to the end of the reporting period are included in the consolidated
cash flow statement, and relevant items of the comparative statements are adjusted at the same
time, it is deemed that the consolidated reporting subject has existed since the control point of the

fmal controlling party.

If it is possible to exercise control over the investee under the same control due to additional
investment or other reasons, it shall be deemed that the parties participating in the merger shall
make adjustment in the current state when the final controlling party begins to control. Equity
investment held prior to the acquisition of control of the merged party, if the relevant gains and
losses, other comprehensive income and other changes in net assets are recognized between the
date of acquisition of the original equity and the date on which the merged party and the merged
party are under the same control and the merger date, the initial retained earnings or current gains

and losses of the comparative statement period are respectively deducted.
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During the reporting period, if there is an increase in subsidiaries or businesses due to the merger
of enterprises not under the same control, the beginning of the consolidated balance sheet will not
be adjusted; Include the revenues, expenses and profits of the subsidiary or business from the
purchase date to the end of the reporting period into the consolidated income statement; The
cash flows of the subsidiary or business from the purchase date to the end of the reporting period

are included in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

If the Company is able to control the investee not under the same control due to additional
investment or other reasons, for the equity held by the purchased buyer before the purchase date,
the Company shall re-measure the equity according to the fair value of the equity on the purchase
date, and the difference between the fair value and the book value shall be included in the current
investment income. If the equity held by the purchaser before the purchase date involves changes
in other comprehensive income under the equity method and other owners' equity except for net
profit and loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution, the relevant changes in other
comprehensive income and other owners' equity shall be converted into investment income of the
current period belonging to the purchase date. Except other comprehensive income arising from
changes in net liabilities or net assets of the invested party due to remeasurement of the defined

benefit plan.
(2) Dispose of a subsidiary or business
1) General treatment

During the Reporting Period, when the Company disposes of a subsidiary or business, the income,
expenses and profits of that subsidiary or business from the beginning of the period to the date of
disposal arc included in the consolidated income statement of the Company; The cash flows
from the beginning of the period to the disposal date of the subsidiary or operation are included in

the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Company.

When the Company loses control of the investor due to the disposal of part of the equity
investment or other reasons, the Company shall remeasure the remaining equity investment after
disposal according to the fair value on the date of the loss of control. The sum of the
consideration obtained from the disposal of the equity and the fair value of the remaining equity,
minus the difference between the share of the original subsidiary's net assets and the sum of
goodwill which should be continuously calculated since the purchase date or the merger date
based on the original shareholding ratio, shall be included in the investment income of the period
of loss of control. Other comprehensive income related to the equity investment of the original
subsidiary or other changes in owners' equity other than net profit and loss, other comprehensive

income and profit distribution shall be converted into current investment income when the right of
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control is lost, except other comprehensive income arising from the change in net liabilities or net

assets of the investor due to the remeasurement and setting of the benefit plan.
2) Disposal of subsidiaries step by step

Where the Company disposed of equity investment in a subsidiary step by step through multiple
transactions until control is lost, for example, the terms, conditions and economic impact of each
transaction that disposes of the equity investment in a subsidiary meet one or more of the

following conditions, the Company accounts for multiple transactions as a single transaction:

A The transactions were entered into at the same time or having regard to the effects of each other;
B.These transactions as a whole can achieve a complete business outcome;

C.The occurrence of one transaction depends on the occurrence of at least one other transaction;

D.A transaction is uneconomic in isolation, but economic when considered in conjunction with

other transactions.

Where each transaction that disposes of an equity investment in a subsidiary until control is lost is
a blanket transaction, the Company accounts for each transaction as a transaction that disposes of
the subsidiary and loses control; However, the Company recognises the difference between
each disposal price before the loss of control and the share of net assets of the subsidiary
corresponding to the disposal of the investment as other comprehensive income in the
consolidated financial statements and is transferred to profit or loss in the period in which control

is lost when control is lost.

Where each transaction that disposes of an equity investment in a subsidiary until the loss of
control is not a blanket transaction, the relevant policy for partial disposal of an equity investment
in a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted for before the loss of control by the Company;
When control is lost, accounting is performed in the same manner as would be done for a disposal

subsidiary.
(3) Purchase of minority interests in subsidiaries

The difference between the Company's costs of newly acquited long-term equity investment
resulting from the purchase of minority interests and the share of net assets attributable to the
subsidiary calculated on an ongoing basis from the date of purchase (or the date of combination)
based on the newly increased shareholding ratio, the equity premium in the capital reserve in the
consolidated balance sheet is adjusted, and if the equity premium in the capital reserve is

insufficient to offset, the retained earnings is adjusted.
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(4) Partial disposal of equity investments in subsidiaries without loss of control

The Company adjusts the equity premium in the capital reserve in the consolidated balance sheet
for the difference between the disposal price obtained from the partial disposal of the long-term
equity investment in the subsidiary without loss of control and the share of the net assets of the
subsidiary that would continue to be calculated from the purchase date or the combination date
corresponding to the disposal of the long-term equity investment, or adjust the retained earnings

if the equity premium in the capital reserve is insufficient to offset.

8.Classification of joint arrangement and accounting methods of joint operations
i, Classification of joint arrangement

The Company divides the joint venture arrangement into joint venture and joint venture according
to the structure, legal form,lterms agreed in the joint venture arrangement, other relevant facts and
circumstances and other factors. Joint operation means a joint venture arrangement in which the
parties enjoy the assets related to the arrangement and bear the liabilities related to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint venture arrangement in which the parties have rights only

to the net assets of the arrangement.
ii. Accounting methods of joint operations

The Company shall confirm the following items related to the Company in the profit share of joint
operation, and shall conduct accounting treatment in accordance with the provisions of relevant

accounting standards for enterprises:

(1) Recognize the assets held solely by the Company, and recognize assets held jointly by the
Company in appropriation to the share of the Company;

(2) Recognize the obligations assumed solely by the Company, and recognize obligations
assumed jointly by the Company in appropriation to the share of the Company;

(3) Recognize revenue from disposal of joint operations in appropriation to the share of the
Company;

(4) Recognize revenue from disposal of joint operations in appropriation to the share of the
Company;

(5) Recognize fees solely occurred by the Company and recognize fees from joint operations in

appropriation to the share of the Company.

The Company invests or sells assets, etc. to the joint venture (except the assets constituting the
business), and only recognizes the part of the profit and loss attributable to the other parties of the

joint venture resulting from the transaction before the assets are sold by the joint venture to a third
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party. If the invested or sold assets suffer asset impairment losses in accordance with Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 8 -- Asset Impairment and other provisions, the Company

will fully recognize the loss.

The Company purchases assets, etc. from the joint operation (except the assets constituting the
business), and only recognizes the part of the profit and loss arising from the transaction
attributable to other participants in the joint operation before selling the assets, etc. to a third party.
In case of asset impairment loss in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 8 -- Asset Impairment and other provisions of the purchased assets, the Company shall

recognize such loss according to its share to be borne.

9.Cash and cash equivalents

In preparing the statement of cash flows, the Company's cash on hand and deposits available for
payment at any time are recognized as cash. An investment with a short maturity (generally
maturing within three months from the date of purchase), strong liquidity, easy conversion into a

known amount of cash, and little risk of change in value are identified as cash equivalents.

10.Foreign operations and foreign currency translation
i. Foreign operations

The initial recognition of foreign currency operations is measured at Renminbi, the exchange rate
of which is the adoption of spot exchange rate at the transaction date, which is determined in a

rational method.

Except for the exchange balance on foreign currency borrowings, which are generated from the
construction of the assets eligible for capitalization, being recognized in accordance with the
principle of capitalization of borrowing costs, the differences arising from the translation exchange
of foreign monetary items at the spot exchange rate of the dated of balance sheet are recognized as
gain and loss of the current period of report.Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency
that are measured at historical cost are still measured at amount denominated in reporting currency
exchanged at the prevailing exchange rate at the transaction date, the recording currency remains

unchanged meanwhile.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated
using the exchange rate at the date when fair value was determined and the difference between the
translated functional currency amount and the prevailing exchange rate on initial recognition or on
the previous balance sheet date are recognized as changes in fair value through profit or loss for

the current period. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency items recognized as
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available for sale, the exchange of which recognized as other comprehensive income.
ii. Foreign currency translation

The assets and liabilities in the balance sheet shall be translated at the spot exchange rate at the
balance sheet date; Owners' equity items are translated at the spot exchange rate at the time of
occurrence, except for "undistributed profit" items. The income and expense items in the income
statement are converted using the average exchange rate of the period.  The foreign currency
translation difference resulting from the above translation is included in other comprehensive

income.

When disposing of an overseas operation, the translation difference of the foreign currency
financial statements related to the overseas operation shown in other comprehensive income items
i the balance sheet is transferred from other comprehensive income items to the profit or loss of
the disposal period; When part of the equity investment is disposed of or other reasons cause the
proportion of overseas operating interests to be reduced but the control of overseas operations is
not lost, the difference in the translation of foreign currency statements related to the overseas
operating disposal part will be attributed to the minority shareholders' equity and will not be
transferred to the current profit or loss. When disposing of part of the equity of an overseas
operation as an associate or joint venture, the difference in the translation of foreign currency
statements related to the overseas operation is transferred to the profit or loss of the disposal

period in proportion to the disposal of the overseas operation.

11.Financial instruments

The Company recognizes a financial asset or liability when it becomes a party to a financial

instrument contract.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or

financial liability and allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or liability. ~All the provisions of the contract of the financial asset or liability (e.g.
carly payment, extension, call option or other similar options) shall be considered on the

determination of the effective interest rate, with expected credit losses not included.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount which the financial asset
is measured at initial recognition minus the principal payments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and

the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial
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asset is the amortized cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.
i. Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets

The company's financial assets are classified into the following three categories based on the
business model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow

characteristics:

(1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost.
(2) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

(3) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss of the current period (FVTPL) .

A financial asset is initially recognized at fair value. However, if the accounts receivable or notes
receivable arising from the sales of goods or the provision of services do not contain significant
financing components or do not consider financing components less than one year, the initial

measurement is based on the transaction price.

In the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the related transaction costs are
directly recognized in profit or loss for the current period.  For other financial assets, the

transaction costs are included in their initially recognized costs.

Subsequent measurement of a financial asset is determined by its category, when and only when
the company changes the business model used for managing financial assets, all affected financial
assets are reclassified only when the company changes its business model for managing financial

assets.
(1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is classified as a financial asset at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are satisfied: 1) the company's business model for managing the financial assets is
aimed at collecting contractual cash flows; 2) the contractual term of the financial assets provide
that the cash flow generated on specified dates shall solely be used in payments of principal and
interest on the outstanding principal amount. Such financial assets are recognized for interest

income using the effective interest method and measured at amortized cost subsequently. The
gains or losses arising from the derecognition, modification or impairment are recognized in profit
or loss for the current period. Such financial assets mainly include monetary funds, accounts
receivable and notes receivable, other receivables and long-term receivables etc. Except the
conditions listed below, interest income should be calculated by multiplying the book value of

financial asset and effective interest rate:

1) For the purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, interest revenue is recognized
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by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost carrying amount since

initial recognition'.

2) For the financial asset, the credit loss of which not accrued as purchased or generated otherwise
accrued in the subsequent period, interest income is determined by amortized cost of the financial
asset and effective interest rate in the subsequent period. Where there is no longer credit loss in the
subsequent period for an improvement of its credit risk, interest income is determined by

multiplying the effective interest rate and the book value of financial asset.
(2) Classified as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

If a financial asset meets both of the following conditions, the company classifies it as a financial
asset at fair value through other comprehensive income: 1) the contractual term of the financial
assets provide that the cash flow generated on specified dates shall solely be used in payments of
principal and interest on the outstanding principal amount; 2) the company's business model for
managing the financial assets is aimed at collecting contractual cash flows and also aimed at

selling the financial assets.

Such financial assets are recognized for interest income using the effective interest method. Except
for interest income, impairment losses and exchange differences, which are recognized in profit or
loss for the period, other changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income. When
the financial assets are derecognized, the accumulated gains or losses previously recognized in
other comprehensive income is transferred from other comprehensive income and recognized in

profit or loss.

Notes and accounts receivable measured at fair value and included in other comprehensive income
with changes are listed as receivables financing, other such financial assets are listed as other debt
investments, among which: other debt investments that mature within one year from the balance
sheet date are listed as non-current assets that mature within one year, and other debt investments

whose original maturity date is within one year are listed as other current assets.
(3) Designated as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

The company irrevocably choose to designate certain non-trading investment in equity instrument
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income based on a single financial

asset for the initial recognition.

Subsequent changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income, and no impairment
provision is required. When the financial assets are derecognized, the accumulated gains or losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive income are transferred from other comprechensive

income and recognized in retained eamings. In the duration of holding the investment in equity
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instrument, when the right for collecting the dividend is determined, the relevant economic benefit
probably inflow into the company and the amount of dividend can be reliably measured, the
dividend income should recognize into profit or loss for the current period. Such financial assets

are presented as other equity investments.

Equity instrument investment that meets any of the following conditions belongs to financial
assets measured at fair value and whose changes are recorded into current profits or losses : 1) the
financial asset is acquired for the purpose of selling in the short term; 2) the financial asset is a
patt of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are collectively managed, and there is
objective evidence indicating that the enterprise recently manages this portfolio for the purpose of
short-term profits; 3) the financial asset is a derivative, except for a derivative that is designated

as an effective hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee contract.

(4) Classified as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss of the current

period

The financial asset other than the aforesaid financial assets are classified as financial assets at
amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are classified as

the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, gain or loss derives from the
changes in fair value along with dividend and interest income related to these financial assets

should be recognized into profit or loss for the current period.

This category of financial asset should be listed as trading financial assets or other non-current

financial asset items according to its liquidity.

(5) Designated as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss of the current

period

For eliminating or significantly reducing accounting mismatch, the company can designate single

financial asset as financial assets at FVTPL.

For hybrid contracts which include one or multiple embedded derivative instruments, and its
major contract does not belong to financial asset stated above, the company can designate the

whole contract as the financial instrument as FVTPL, other than situations stated below:

1) Embedded derivative instruments will not impact significantly on the cash flow of the mixed

contract;

2) Embedded derivative should not be splited without analysis on the initial determination of

whether the similar mixed contract need to be splinted. Such as the right of prepayment embedded
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in the loans, which permits prepayment at the amount close to the amortized cost, is no need to be

splited.

The company measure this kind of financial asset at fair value subsequently, gain or loss derive
from the changes of fair value and the dividend and interest income related to this kind of financial

asset are recognized into profit or loss of the current period.

The company lists this kind of financial asset as trading financial asset, other non-current financial

asset according to its liquidity.
ii. Classification, recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

Debt and equity instruments issued by the company are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and equity instrument, not only by the legal form.The company's financial
Jiabilities are, on initial recognition, classified into: financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss, other liabilities and derivatives those are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Financial labilities are measured at fair value at the first recognition. For financial liabilities at
FVTPL, the relevant transaction costs recognized into profit or loss of the current period, for other
kinds of financial liabilities, the relevant transaction costs are recognized into initially recognized

amount.
The subsequent measurement of a financial liability depends on its classification:
(1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
(including derivates classified as financial liability) and those designated upon initial recognition

as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial liability held for trading is the financial liability that meets one of the following
criteria:1) the financial liability is assumed for the purpose of repurchasing it in the short term; 2)
the financial liability is a part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are
collectively managed, and there is objective evidence indicating that the enterprise recently
manages this portfolio for the purpose of short-term profits; 3) the financial liability is a derivative,
except for a derivative that is designated as effective hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee
contract. The financial liabilities held for trading (including derivatives classified as financial
liability) are subsequently measured at fair value, and all changes in fair value, except those

related to hedging accounting, are recognized in profit or loss of the current period.

For providing more relevant accounting information, the company irrevocably designate the
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financial liabilities, satisfying the one of the following conditions, as FVTPL on the initial

recognition:
1) Can eliminate or significantly decrease accounting mismatch;

2) The liability is part or a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities
that is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the group is provided

internally on that basis to the Company's key management personnel.

The company measured this kind of financial liabilities at fair value subsequently, other than the
fair value changes derive from the own credit risks recognized into other comprehensive income,
other changes of fair value are recognized into profit or loss of the current period. The Company
recognizes the full amount of change in the fair value in profit or loss only if the presentation of
changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an

accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
(2) Other financial liability

The company classifies the financial liabilities as financial liabilities at amortized cost, amortized
cost is adopted for subsequent measurement at effective interest rate method, gain or loss from

derecognition and amortization is recognized into profit or loss of the current period:
1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

2) Financial liabilities derive from the transfer of financial assets which are not satisfying the rules

of derecognition nor continuing involvement.

3) Financial guarantee contracts, not included in the conditions stated above, and the loan

commitment not included in condition a, which is below the market rate.

Financial guarantee contract refers to the contract requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contract, not included into the financial liabilities at FVTPL, is measured at the higher amount of
the credit impairment amount and the balance of initially reco gnized amount after the deduction of

cumulative amortization in the guarantee period since the initial recognition.
iii. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

(1) The company derecognizes a financial asset that is to be written off from the accounts and the

balance sheet when the following criteria are met:
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1) The rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or
9 The financial asset has been transferred and the transfer satisfies the rules for derecognition

of financial assets.
(2) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability should be removed from the balance sheet when, and only when, it is
extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is either discharged or cancelled

or expires.

If an existing financial liability is replaced by the same creditor with a new financial liability that
has substantially different items, or if the terms of an existing financial liability are substantially
revised such replacement or revision is accounted for as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the resulted difference is recognized in profit or loss of

the current period.

Where the company repurchase part of the financial liability, book value of the whole financial
liability should be distributed according to proportion for the fair value of the continuing
recognition part and derecognition part to the whole fair value. The difference between the
distributed book value of the derecognition part and the payment consideration, non-monetary

asset or assumed liabilities included, is recognized into profit or loss of the current period.
iv. The recognition basis and measurement method of financial assets transfer

Where a transfer of financial asset occurs, the extent to risk and reward remained of the ownership

of financial asset is evaluated and treated according to the situations listed below:

(1) The financial asset is derecognized if the company transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownerships of the financial asset, right and responsibility generated or retained from

the transfer is individually recognized as asset or liability;

(2) The financial asset is not derecognized if the company retains substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownerships of the financial asset;

(3) If the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

of the financial asset, the transaction is accounted for as follows:

1) The company has not retained control; the financial asset is derecognized and any resulting

assets or liabilities are recognized;

2) If the company has retained control, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of its

continuing involvement in the transferred financial asset and an associated liability is recognized.
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The extent of continuing involvement refers to the extent the company assumed to shoulder of the

risk or reward relevant to the changes of value of transferred financial assets.

Substance over form principle is adopted on judging whether the transferal of financial assets
meets the conditions of derecognition above. Transfer of financial assets is distinguished as entire

transfer and partial transfer.

(1) With the entire transfer of financial assets satisfying the condition of derecognition, the
difference between the amounts of the two following items are recognized as profits and losses of

the current period:
1) The book value of the transferred financial asset;

2) The aggregate consideration received from the transfer, and the accumulated amount of the
changes in fair value (including the situation that the financial asset transferred is financial assets

at FVTOCI), which are recognized as other comprehensive income previously.

(2) With the partial transfer of financial assets satisfying the condition of derecognition, the entire
book value of the transferred financial assets is distributed to the portion whose recognition has
been stopped and the portion whose recognition is not stopped, according to relative fair value
respectively. Meanwhile, the difference between the amounts of the two following items are

recognized as profits and losses of the current period:
1) The book value of the portion whose recognition has been stopped;

2) The aggregate consideration of the portion whose recognition has been stopped, and the
accumulated amount of the changes in fair value portion directly recorded into sharcholders'
equity corresponded to the portion whose recognition has been stopped (including the situation

that the financial asset transferred is financial asset at FVTOCT).

With the transfer of the financial asset does not meet the derecognition condition, the Company
continues to recognize the financial asset, and the consideration received of which is recognized as

financial liability.
v. Determination of fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Where there is an active market for financial asset or financial liability, the fair value should be

determined as the quoted prices in the active market, unless there is restricted period for the asset.

The determination of fair value of derivative financial assets or financial liabilities is based on the

market truncation prices at the initial acquisition date.

Tf there is no active market for financial assets or financial liabilities, the Company establishes fair
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value by using a valuation technique that makes maximum use of market inputs and includes
recent arm's length market transactions, reference to the current fair value of another instrument
that is substantially the same, giving priority to the relevant observable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are adopted on the occasion that relevant observable inputs cannot be obtained, or it is not

feasible for the Company to obtain.
vi. Impairment of financial instruments

Based on the expected credit losses,the company conducts impairment treatment on financial
assets measured at amortized costs, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial guarantee contracts for the financial liability formed by the transfer of the
financial asset which does not meet the termination recognition conditions or continues to be

involved in the transferred financial asset , and recognized loss provision.

Expected credit losses refers to the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a
default occurring as the weightings. Credit loss refers to the difference between all contractual
cash flows receivable from the contract, discounted at the original effective interest rate and all
cash flows expected to be received by the company, that is the present value of all cash shortages.
Among them, credit-impaired financial assets purchased or owned by the company shall be

discounted according to the actual interest rate of financial assets subject to credit adjustment.

For receivables that do not contain significant financing components, the Company uses a
simplified measurement method to measure loss provision equivalent to the amount of expected

credit losses throughout the duration period.

For the purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Company would recognize
changes in lifetime expected losses since initial recognition as a loss allowance at the balance
sheet date. On each balance sheet date, any changes for the changes in lifetime expected losses
would be recognized in profit or loss. Under the requirements, any favorable changes for such
assets are an impairment gain even if the resulting expected cash flows of a financial asset exceed

the estimated cash flows on initial recognition.

For financial assets other than those applying simplified measurement methods, the company
assesses whether its credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition on each
balance sheet date, impairment loss, expected credit loss and its changes are measured according

to the following situations:

(1) If the credit risk has not increased significantly since the initial recognition, representing the
first phase, the company measures loss provision equivalent to the amount of expected credit loss

over the next 12 months, interest income is accrued on book value and effective interest.

Notes to financial statements Page.20




Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.

For the year ended 31 december 2023
Notes to the financial statements
English translation for reference only

(2) If the credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition, representing the
second phase, the company measures loss provision equivalent to the amount of expected credit
losses throughout the duration period, and calculates interest income based on book balance and
effective interest rate.

(3) If the credit impairment has occurred since the initial recognition, representing the third
phase, the company measures loss provision equivalent to the amount of expected credit losses
throughout the duration period, and calculates interest income based on book balance and effective

interest rate.

The accrual or reversal of credit loss allowance of financial instrument is recognized as credit loss
or gain into profit or loss of the current period. Other than financial assets classified as financial
assets at FVTOCI, credit loss is an allowance for the book value of financial asset. For financial
assets classified as financial assets at FVTOCI, credit loss allowance is recognized into other

comprehensive income with no deduction to the book value of the financial instrument.

If the Company has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Company measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month at the current reporting date, and recognizes a cotresponding

impairment gain or loss in profit or loss into the current period.
(1) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default occuring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the company considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information. For a financial guarantee contract, when
applying the financial instrument impairment rules, the initial recognition date should be the day

the company becoming a party of the irrevocable commitment.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk

has increased significantly since initial recognition:

1) Existing or forecast adverse changes in business operating result or expectation;
2) Existing adverse change in the supervision, economic or technical environment of the debtor;
3) The value of collateral as pledge of debt or enhancement quality of guarantee or credit

provided by the third party has changed significantly, and this change is expected to lower the

Notes to financial statements Page.21




Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.

For the year ended 31 december 2023
Notes to the financial statements
English translation for reference only

economic motive for the debtor to repay on due or affect the probability of default;
4) There is significant change of the expected performance and repayment behavior of the debtor;
5) There is change for the method of managing the credit of financial instrument of the

Company.etc.

Despite the foregoing, the company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since the initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligation in the near
term, and ii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will

not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
(2) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is

credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

1) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

2) A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

3) The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

4) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

5) The disappearance of active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
6) The purchase or origination of a financial assets at a deep discount that reflects incurred credit

losses.

Credit impairment of financial assets may be a joint result of multiple events, rather than a single

identifiable event.
(3) Determination of expected credit loss

The company assesses the expected credit losses of financial instruments based on individual
items and groups. The company considers all reasonable and evidence-based information,
including past events, current conditions and future economic forecasts, when assessing expected

credit losses.

The company groups financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics.

Adopted shared credit characteristics includes: the instrument type; the aging combination.
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ECL of relevant financial instrument is determined according to the following methods:

1)For a financial asset, credit loss refers to the difference between the present value of contractual
cash flows and the present value of cash flows the Company expects to receive.

2)For lease receivables, the credit loss is the present value of the difference between the contract
cash flow that the Company should collect and the cash flow that it expects to collect.

3) For a financial guarantee contract, credit loss refers to the difference between the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs, less any amounts that management
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

4) For a financial asset that is credit-impaired at the reporting date, but that is not a purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial asset, credit Joss is measured at the difference between the
asset's gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at

the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

Any measurement of expected credit losses shall reflect an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined by evaluating the range of possible outcomes as well as incorporating
the time value of money. Also, the Company should consider reasonable and supportable
information about past events, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of

future economic conditions when measuring expected credit losses.
(4) Write-down policy

When the company no longer reasonably expects to be able to fully or partially recover the
contractual cash flows of financial assets, the company directly writes down the carrying amount

of the financial assets. The write-down means the derecognition of relevant financial assets.
vii. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in balance sheet separately without offset.
Net amount after offset is presented in balance sheet, for the following situations are met at the
same time:

(1) The Company is entitled to have the legal right, which is current executable, to offset the
recognized amounts;

(2) The company intends to settle on a net basis or realize the asset, or realize the asset and settle

the liability simultaneously.

12.Notes receivable

The Company's method of determining and accounting for expected credit losses on notes

receivable is detailed in this note 11I/11-vi. Impairment of financial instruments.
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When sufficient evidence of expected credit loss cannot be assessed at a reasonable cost at the
level of individual instruments, the Company divides notes receivable into several combinations
based on credit risk characteristics by referring to historical credit loss experience, combining the
current situation and the judgment of future economic conditions, and calculates expected credit

loss on the basis of combination. The basis for determining the combination is as follows:

Combination Determine the basis for the combination Method of withdrawal

Bank The drawer has a high credit rgting. no bill default has occurred E;;f)‘:?enrfceeto tr;;e)rlg‘lbsitr?erg:al fm i ‘?ﬁ:

acceptance | in the history, the risk of credit loss is very low, and the ability o siiuation and the future
) | to fulfill the contract cash flow obligations in the short term is | . -

portfolio very strong economic conditions of the expected
B A B | measurement of bad debt reserve

Commercial o The allowancg for bad debts is

acceptance Compmaﬂon of apceptor, endorser, drawer and other debtors | based on the difference between the

portiolio credit risk determined present value of its future cash flow

and its book value

13.Accounts receivable

The Company's method of determining and accounting for expected credit losses on accounts

receivable is detailed in this note IIT/11-vi. Impairment of financial instruments.

The Company separately determines the credit loss of the accounts receivable for which the single

amount is significant and the credit impairment has occurred after the initial recognition.

When sufficient evidence of expected credit loss cannot be assessed at a reasonable cost at the
level of individual instruments, the Company divides accounts receivable into several
combinations based on credit risk characteristics by referring to historical credit loss experience,
combining the current situation and the judgment of future economic conditions, and calculates
expected credit loss on the basis of combination. The basis for determining the combination is as

follows:

st Method of withdrawal
If the impairment test is conducted separately and there is
objective evidence that the impairment has occurred, the credit
High risk portfolio Credit rating risk is higher impairment loss shall be recognized and the bad debt reserve
shall be set aside according to the difference between the

present value of its fulure cash flow and its carrying value

Combination

Portfolio according to  similar
Aging portfolio credit risk characteristics (aging),
except for high-risk portfolios

Balance by age and expected credit loss rate over the entire
duration

14.Financing receivables

Notes and accounts receivable classified as measured at fair value and whose changes are included
in other comprehensive income are listed as receivables financing if the maturity period is within

one year (including one year) from the initial recognition date; If the maturity period is more
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than one year from the initial confirmation date, it is listed as other creditor's rights investment.

The relevant accounting policies refer to Note III/11.

15.0ther receivables

The Company's method of determining and accounting for expected credit losses on other

receivables is detailed in this note II1/11-vi. Impairment of financial instruments.

The Company separately determines the credit loss of the other receivables for which the single

amount is significant and the credit impairment has occurred after the initial recognition.

When sufficient evidence of expected credit loss cannot be assessed at a reasonable cost at the
level of individual instruments, the Company divides other receivables into several combinations
based on credit risk characteristics by referring to historical credit loss experience, combining the
current situation and the judgment of future economic conditions, and calculates expected credit

loss on the basis of combination. The basis for determining the combination is as follows:

Determ?:n:gtiangazlns forthe | Method of withdrawal
If the impairment test is conducted separately and there is
objective evidence that the impairment has occurred, the credit
High risk portfolio Credit rating risk is higher impairment loss shall be recognized and the bad debt reserve
shall be set aside according to the difference between the

present value of its future cash flow and its carrying value

Combination

Portfolio according to similar
Aging portfolio credit risk characteristics (aging),
except for high-risk portfolios |

Balance by age and expected credit loss rate over the entire
duration

16.Inventories

i. Inventory category, issue valuation method, inventory system, amortization method for

low-value consumables and packaging
(Inventory category

Inventory refers to finished products or commodities held by the Company in daily activities for
sale, products in the process of production, materials and materials consumed in the process of
production or provision of services, etc. It mainly includes raw materials, low-value consumable
products, products in process, homemade semi-finished products, finished products (goods in

stock), contract performance costs, development costs, development products, etc.
(2)Method of valuation of inventory

Tnventory is initially measured at cost when acquired, including purchase cost, processing cost and
other costs. Raw materials shall be calculated according to the actual cost, and calculated

according to the weighted average method at the time of delivery; Cost accounting of homemade
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semi-finished products according to plan, and adjust to actual cost by material cost difference at
the end of the month; The finished products are priced at actual cost, and the individual pricing

method is used at the time of shipment.

(3)Inventory system

Perpetual inventory system is adopted by the Company.
(4)Amortisation of low-value consumables and packaging materials

(1) Low-value consumable products are amortized by one-time reselling method;
(2) The packaging is amortized by one-time reselling method;

(3) Other revolving materials shall be amortized by one-time reselling method.
ii. The recognition standard and accounting method of reserve for inventory decline

After a comprehensive inventory check at the end of the period, withdraw or adjust the inventory
decline reserve according to the lower of the cost and net realizable value of the inventory. The net
realizable value of commodity inventories directly used for sale, such as finished products, goods
in stock and materials for sale, shall be determined in the normal course of production and
operation by the estimated selling price of the inventory less estimated selling expenses and
related taxes; For the inventory of materials to be processed, the net realizable value shall be
determined in the normal course of production and operation by deducting the estimated selling
price of finished products from the estimated cost, estimated selling expenses and related taxes to
be incurred upon completion; The net realizable value of the inventory held for the purpose of
executing the sales contract or service contract shall be calculated on the basis of the contract price.
If the quantity of the inventory held is more than the quantity ordered under the sales contract, the
net realizable value of the excess inventory shall be calculated on the basis of the general sales

price.

At the end of the period, reserve for inventory declines shall be set aside according to individual
inventory items; However, for the inventory with a large quantity and a low unit price, the reserve
for inventory decline price shall be set aside according to the inventory category; For inventory
related to product series produced and sold in the same area, having the same or similar end use or
purpose, and difficult to measure separately from other items, the reserve for inventory decline

shall be consolidated.

If the factors affecting the previous write-down of inventory value have disappeared, the amount
of write-down shall be restored and transferred back within the original amount of reserve for

inventory declines, and the amount transferred back shall be recorded into current profit and loss.
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iii. Accounting method of land for development
The expenses of pure land development project constitute the land development cost alone;

Together with the overall development of the real estate project, the cost can distinguish the
burden object, generally according to the actual area allocation is recorded in the cost of

commercial housing.
iv. The method of calculating the cost of public supporting facilities

Public supporting facilities that cannot be transferred with compensation shall be allocated into the

cost of commercial housing according to the standard determined by the proportion of benefits;

Public supporting facilities that can be transferred with compensation: take each supporting

facilities project as the object of cost accounting and collect the cost incurred.
v. Accounting methods for maintenance funds

According to the relevant regulations of the place where the development project is located, the
maintenance fund shall be charged to the buyer of the development cost of the relevant
development product or deducted by the company when the development product is sold (pre-sale),

and uniformly handed over to the maintenance fund management department.
vi. Accounting method of quality deposit

The quality deposit shall be reserved from the project funds of the construction unit in accordance
with the provisions of the construction contract. ~ The maintenance expenses incurred during the
warranty period of the developed products, and the quality deposit shall be deducted; Upon
expiration of the agreed warranty period, the balance of the quality deposit shall be returned to the

construction unit.

17.Contract assets

Contract asset is the right of the Company to consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Company has transferred to a customer, when that right is conditioned on something other than
the passage of time. The right of the Company to collect consideration from the customer

unconditionally (i.e., depending only on the passage of time) is shown separately as receivables.

The Company's method of determining and accounting for expected credit losses on contract
p p

assets is detailed in this note III/11-vi. Impairment of financial instruments.

18.Held-for-sale non-current assets for sale or disposal groups

i. Criteria for the recognition and accounting treatment of non-current assets held for sale
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or disposal groups

The Company recognizes non-current assets or disposal groups as held for sale components that

simultaneously meet the following conditions:

(1) As is customary for the sale of such assets or a disposal group in a similar transaction, to be

sold immediately in the current circumstances;

(2)A sale is highly likely to occur, that is, the Company has resolved a sale plan and has received

regulatory approval, if applicable, and has firm purchase commitments and expects the sale to

close within one year.

Firm Purchase Commitment means a legally binding purchase agreement entered into by the
Company and other parties, which contains such important terms as transaction price, time and
penalties for breach of contract as to make it highly unlikely that the agreement will be

significantly adjusted or cancelled.

The Company does not set aside depreciation or amortization for the non-current assets held for
sale or the disposal group, and if the carrying value is higher than the net amount after the fair
value minus the selling expense, the carrying value shall be written down to the net amount after
the fair value minus the selling expense, and the amount written down shall be recognized as the
asset impairment loss and booked into the current profit and loss. At the same time, the

impairment reserve for the assets held for sale shall be set aside.

For the non-current assets or disposal groups classified as holding for sale on the acquisition date,
the initial measurement amount assuming that they are not classified as holding for sale and the
net fair value after deducting selling expenses are compared at the initial measurement, which is

the lower of the two.

The above principles apply to all non-current assets, However, it does not include investment real
estate which adopts fair value model for subsequent measurement, biological assets which adopt
fair value less selling expenses, assets formed by employee compensation, deferred income tax
assets, financial assets regulated by accounting standards related to financial instruments, and
rights arising from insurance contracts regulated by accounting standards related to insurance

contracts.
ii. Accreditation standards and presentation methods for termination of operations

Component of discontinuing operations is recognized when it is disposed or classified as

held-for-sale and can be separated individually, meanwhile the following conditions are met:
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(1) The component represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of

operations;

(2) The component is part of a relevant plan for disposing a separate major line of business or

geographical area of operations;
(3) The component is a subsidiary setup specifically for resale.

Operating profit such as the impairment loss and reversal of discontinuing operation and disposal

income is listed as net profit from discontinuing operations into income statement.

The Company distinguishes non-current assets held for sale separately from other assets or assets
in the disposal group held for sale in the balance sheet from liabilities held for sale separately in
the disposal group of other liabilities. Non-current assets held for sale or assets in the disposal
group held for sale and liabilities in the disposal group held for sale are not set off against each
other and are shown as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The Company presents
profit or loss from continuing operations and profit or loss from discontinued operations separately
in the income statement. For discontinued operations presented in the current period, the Company
represents the information originally presented as profit or loss from continuing operations in the
current financial statements as profit or loss from discontinued operations for the comparable
accounting period. Where discontinued operations no longer meet the requirements for the
classification of the categories held for sale, the Company represents the information originally
presented as profit or loss from discontinued operations as profit or loss from continuing

operations for the comparable accounting period in the current financial statements.
19.Long-term equity investments

i. Determination of initial cost

( 1) For long-term equity investment acquired through a business combination, specific

accounting policies refer to Note ITI/6- Accounting treatment for business combination under

common control and not under common control.
(2) Long-term equity investment acquired through other ways

For a long-term equity investment acquired by cash, the initial mvestment cost is the amount of
cash paid. Initial investment costs include expenses related to the acquisition of long-term

investment directly, taxes and other necessary expenditures.

For a long-term equity investment acquired by issuing equity securities, the initial investment cost
is the fair value of the equity securities issued. Transaction costs arising from the issuance or

acquisition of the Company's own equity instruments, the proportion of which belongs to capital
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transaction directly, are deducted from the equity.

The non-monetary asset exchange for a commercial real income and assets or the fair value other
asscts can be reliably measured, the initial investment cost should be determined according to
long-term equity investment exchanged through the non-monetary asset exchange, unless there is
evidence showing that for the fair value of assets is more reliable; the non-monetary asset
exchange which does not meet the above premises, the book value of the exchanged assets to and
the relevant fees and taxes to be paid should be the initial investment cost of the long-term equity
investment. The initial investment cost of the long-term equity investments obtained through debt

restructuring should be determined in accordance with fair value.
ii. Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit or loss

(1) Cost method

For the long-term equity investment, through which the Company have control over the investee,
cost method is adopted. The price is measured at initial investment cost, adding or withdrawing

investment is adjusted to the cost of long-term equity investment.

Cash dividend or profit distributed to the Company is recognized as investment income of the
current period, excluding the actual consideration paid for acquisition or the cash dividend or

profit declared but no issued included in the consideration.
(2) Equity method

Equity method is adopted for the long-term equity investment of joint ventures and associate
enterprises by the Company. For the partial equity investment of joint ventures indirectly held
through venture capital institutions, mutual funds and other similar bodies including unit-linked
insurance funds, the price of which is measured at fair value and changes are recognized to profit

or loss.

For long-term equity investment which is accounted for using the equity method, where the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity investment exceeds the Company's interest in the fair value
of the investee's identifiable net assets, no adjustment is made to the initial investment cost. Where
the initial investment cost is less than the Company's interest in the fair value of the investee's

identifiable net assets, the difference is charged to profit or loss for the current period.

The Company recognizes its share of the investee's net profit or losses, as well as its share of the
investee's other comprehensive income in proportion of shares of investee, as investment incomes
or losses and other comprehensive income, and adjust the carrying amount of the investment

accordingly subsequent to the acquisition of the long-term equity investment. The carrying amount
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of the investment is reduced by the portion of any profit distributions or cash dividends declared
by the investee that is attributable to the Company. The Company's share of the investee's owners'
equity changes, other than those arising from the investee's net profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or profit distribution, is recognized into shareholders' equity, and the carrying amount of

the long-term equity investment is adjusted accordingly.

The Company recognizes its share of the investee's net profits or losses based on the fair value of
the investee's individual separately identifiable assets at the time of acquisition, after making
appropriate adjustments thereto in conformity with the accounting policies and accounting periods
of the Company. The unrealized profit or loss from internal transactions entered into between the
Company and its associate or joint venture is offset according to the shareholding percentage held

by the Company and the remaining portion is recognized as investment income or loss.

The proportionate loss of the invested shared by the Company, is processed under the following
sequences: First, offset the book value of the long-term equity investment. Then, if book value of
the long-term equity investment is insufficient to offset, recognize investment loss to the ceiling of
the book value of other long-term equity, which constitutes net investment of the investee in
essence, offset the book value of the long-term receivables. Last, after conducting the
above-mentioned steps, if the Company still has additional commitments according to the
investment contract or agreement, estimated liabilities are recognized according to the obligation

committed, investment loss is recognized into investment loss of the current period.

For the profit of the investee realized in the subsequent period, after deducting the proportionate
unrealized losses, process is conducted in reverse order, that is the investment incomes are
recovered after deducting book balances of the recognized estimated liabilities and recovering
book values of other long-term equities constituting the net investments of the investee in essence

and long-term equity investments.
iii. Transfer of accounting method of long-term equity investment
(1) Equity method transferred from fair value method

For the equity investments, held by the Company through which the Company has no control,
common control or significant influence over the investee ,recognized and measured as financial
instruments, when the Company becomes capable of exercising significant influence or joint
control (but not sole control) over an investee due to additional investment or other reasons, the
accounting is changed to the equity method and the initial investment cost on the date of change is
the sum of the fair value of the previously-held equity investment and additional investment cost
in accordance with <Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.22- Recognition and

measurement of Financial Instruments>. The differences between the fair value and carrying
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amount of previously-held equity investment and the accumulated changes in fair value included
in other comprehensive income are transferred to profit or loss for the current period upon

commencement of the equity method.

For the equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, the difference between fair value and
book value of which, and the accumulated changes in fair value recognized into other
comprehensive income previously are transferred to profit or loss of the current period of
transferring to equity method.If the initial investment cost is less than the proportionate fair value
of net identifiable assets of the investee in new proportion of shares, determined after additional
investment, at the follow-up investment date, book value of the long-term equity investment is
adjusted and the difference between the two items stated above is recognized into non-operating

income of the current period.
(2) Cost method transferred from fair value method or equity method

Equity investment originally held by the Company which does not control, jointly control or have
significant influence on the investee and is accounted for according to the recognition and
measurement standards of financial instruments, or long-term equity investment originally held by
the Company in joint venture or joint venture, which is able to control the investee not under the
same control due to additional investment or other reasons, when preparing individual financial
statements, The sum of the book value of the original equity investment plus the cost of the new

investment shall be used as the initial investment cost calculated according to the cost method.

Other comprehensive income recognized by the equity method for the equity investment held
before the purchase date shall be accounted for on the same basis as the direct disposal of related

assets or liabilities by the invested entity when disposing of the investment.

If the equity investment held before the purchase date is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 - Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Instruments, the accumulated fair value changes originally
recorded in other comprehensive income are transferred to the current profit and loss when

accounting according to the cost method.
(3) Equity method accounting to fair value measurement

If the Company loses its joint control or significant influence on the invested entity due to the
disposal of part of the equity investment or other reasons, the remaining equity after disposal shall
be accounted for in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 -
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments, and the difference between its fair value

and carrying amount on the date of loss of joint control or significant influence shall be included
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in the current profit and loss.

Other comprehensive income of the original equity investment recognized by the equity method of
accounting shall be accounted for on the same basis as the direct disposal of related assets or

liabilities by the invested entity when the equity method of accounting is terminated.
(4) Equity method transferred from cost method

When the Company can no longer exercise control over an investee due to partial disposal of
equity investment or other reasons and the remaining equity investment after disposal can exercise
joint control of or significant influence over an investee, the remaining equity investment is
accounted for under equity method and re-measured by equity method as if it has been acquired

since date of acquisition.
(5) Fair value method transferred from cost method

If the company loses control of the invested entity due to the disposal of part of the equity
investment or other reasons, when preparing individual financial statements,Where the remaining
equity investment can no longer exercise joint control of or significant influence over an investee,
the remaining equity investment is accounted for in accordance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 22 - Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments and the
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount at the date of the loss of control is

charged to profit or loss for the current period.
iv. Disposal of long-term equity investment

The difference between the book value and actual price obtained is recorded into profit or loss of
the current period at disposal of long-term equity investments. For the long-term equity
investment measured by employing equity method, the part of recorded as other comprehensive
incomes is accounted in corresponding proportion, on the same basis of the relevant assets or

liabilities directly disposed by the invested party at disposal.

Multiple transactions are treated as package of deal, if the terms, conditions and economic
influence of the disposal of equity investment of subsidiaries meet one or more of the following

situations:

(1) These transactions are made at same time or after considering each other's influence;

(2) These transactions can only achieve a complete business result only as a whole;

(3) The occurrence of one transaction depends on the occurrence of at least one other
transaction;

(4) One single transaction is not considered to be economical; it is economical however when
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considering other transactions.

When the Company can no longer exercise control over an investee due to partial disposal of
equity investment or other reasons and the resulting transactions cannot be treated as package of
deal, the relevant accounting treatments arc conducted separately to the individual and

consolidated financial statements:

(1) For individual financial statements, the difference between book value and the price actually
obtained of the equity disposed are recorded into profit and loss of the current period. Where the
remaining equity investment after disposal can exercise joint control of or significant influence
over an investee the remaining equity investment is accounted for under equity method and
re-measured by equity method as if it has been acquired since date of acquisition. Where the
remaining equity investment can no longer exercise joint control of or significant influence over
an investee, the remaining equity investment is accounted for in accordance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No.22-Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments
and the difference between the fair value and the carrying amount at the date of the loss of control

is charged to profit or loss for the current petiod.

(2) TFor consolidated financial statements, transactions prior to the loss of control of subsidiaries,
of which the difference between the disposal price and the proportionate accumulated net assets of
the subsidiaries since the acquisition or combination date is adjusted to capital reserve (share
premium), if the capital reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess is adjusted to
retained earnings. When the Company loses control of subsidiaries, the remaining equity is
remeasured at fair value of the date of losing control. The balance of the sum of consideration
obtained from disposal of equity and fair value of the remaining equity, after deduction of
accumulated net assets distributable to the company in proportion to the original shareholding
percentage since the acquisition date is recognized into investment income of the current period of
the loss of control, and offset goodwill at the same time. Other comprehensive income related with
the original long-term equity investment, is transferred to the investment income of the current

period of the loss of control.

When the Company can no longer exercise control over an investee due to partial disposal of
equity investment or other reasons and the resulting transactions can be treated as package of deal,
the multiple transactions are treated as one transaction of disposing equity investment and losing
control of a subsidiary, other relevant accounting treatments are conducted separately to the

individual and consolidated financial statements:

(1) For individual financial statements, each difference between the disposal price and the book

value of the long-term equity in proportion of the disposed equity is recognized as other
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comprehensive income before loss of control, and transferred to profit or loss of the current period
of the date of loss of control along with others.

(2) For consolidated financial statements, cach difference between the disposal price and the net
assets in proportion to the disposed equity before loss of control is recognized as other
comprehensive income before loss of control, and transferred to profit or loss of the current period

of the date of loss of control along with others.
v. Criteria of judgement of joint control and significant influence

If the company collectively controls an arrangement with other participants in accordance with
relevant provisions, and the activity decision-making with significant influence on the
arrangement exists after unanimous consent of the parties sharing control, then the company is
regarded to have joint control over the arrangement long with other participants, the arrangement

is joint venture arrangement.

If the joint venture arrangement is reached through a separate entity, when judging the company's
rights to the net assets of the separate entity according to relevant provisions, the separate entity
shall be regarded as a joint venture and the equity method shall be adopted for accounting.  If it is
judged that the Company does not enjoy the right to the net assets of the separate entity according
to the relevant provisions, the separate entity shall be regarded as a joint operation, and the
Company shall confirm the items related to the share of the joint operation interests and conduct

accounting treatment in accordance with the relevant accounting standards for enterprises.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or join control of those policies. Significant influence is considered
to have over investee through one or more of the following situations and under comprehensive
consideration of all the facts and conditions:(1) Send one or more representatives in the board of
directors or equivalent authorities of the investee;(2) Participate in the decision-making process of
financial and operation policies;(3) There is major transaction occurred with the investee;(4)

Dispatch managers to the investee;(5) Provide key technical data with the investee.

20.Fixed assets
i. Recognition

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or supply of services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and have useful lives more than one accounting

year. Fixed assets are recognized when both of the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) It is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the entity;

(2) The cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
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ii. Initial measurement
Fixed assets are initially measured at cost.

(1) The cost of purchased asset includes purchase price, import duty and relevant tax, and other
necessary expenses for making the asset to the hoped condition for use that can be atiributed to the
asset directly.

(2) The cost of self-built asset is composed of necessary expenses for building the asset to the
hoped condition for use.

(3) The entry value of asset of an investor is the value stipulated in the investment contract or
agreement except the unfair value stipulated in the contract or agreement.

(4) The cost of the assets is measured on the basis of present value of the purchase price, when
its payment is deferred beyond normal credit terms and belongs to financial lease in actual. The
difference with the actual payment, except the proportion that should be capitalized, and the

present value of the purchase price is recorded into current profit or loss of the credit period.
iii. Subsequent measurement and disposal
(1) Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated according to the book value after deduction of estimated net residual
value within the estimated using life. For those fixed assets being provided for impairment loss,
the related depreciation charge is determined based on the carrying amounts less impairment over
their remaining useful lives.Fixed assets that have been fully depreciated but are still in use shall

not be depreciated.

For fixed assets formed by special reserve expenditures, the special reserve shall be written down
according to the cost of forming the fixed assets, and the accumulated depreciation of the same

amount shall be recognized, and the fixed assets shall not be depreciated in future periods.

The useful lives and estimated residual value of the asset are determined according to the nature
and use. The useful life, estimated residual value and the depreciation method of an asset shall be
reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if expectations differ from previous estimates,

relevant adjustments should be made.

The depreciation method, depreciation life and annual depreciation rate of all types of fixed assets

are as follows:

e | Depreciation . . T
B _Category ] De_premftﬂ Tt.hOd_ | period(Yean I?emdua_l rate(%) Anntill_ dgprecnatlon rate(%)
Buildings Double diminishing balance method 20-40 3 2.43-4.85
Machinery and . ] N T
equipment Double diminishing balance method 5-10 3 9.70-19.40
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| o Depreciation
Category ; Depreciation method perrio d(Year) ‘ Residual rate(%) Annual deﬁrec_latlcT rate(%)
Vehicles | Double dlmlnlshmg balance method 4-5 | 3 i 19.40-24.25
= ——— . |
Other equipments | Double diminishing balance method | 35 [ 3 | 19.40-32.33

(2) Subsequent expenditure

If the subsequent expenses related to a fixed asset meet the recognition conditions of fixed assets,
they are included in the cost; if the subsequent expenses fail to meet the recognition conditions,

they are recorded into profit or loss on the occurrence.
(3) Impairment of fixed assets

The impairment test method for fixed assets and the provision for impairment provisions are

detailed in this note I11/24- Impairment of long-term assets.
(4) Disposal

An asset is derecognized on disposal or when it is withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefits arc expected from disposal. The balance of disposal price of selling, transfer,
abandonment or damage after deduction of the book value and relevant tax is recognized as profit

or loss of the current period.

21.Construction in progress

The self-built construction in progress is measured at actual cost, which is composed of necessary
expenses for building the asset to the hoped condition for use, including structural material costs,
labor costs, relevant paid taxes, borrowing costs, which should be capitalized, and indirect

apportionment and so on.

All expenditures for building the asset to the hoped condition for use of the construction in
progress are entry value of the asset. Where tﬁe construction in progress has reached the expected
conditions for use with no final accounts of completed project conducted, it is transferred to fixed
assets at the estimated value, which is made according to the project budget, construction cost or
actual cost of the program and so on, and depreciated in accordance with the depreciation method
of the Company. After the final accounts of completed project has been made, the original
estimated value is adjusted according to the actual cost, and no adjustment is made to the

accumulated depreciation.

The impairment test method for construction in progress and the provision method for impairment

are detailed in this note III/24- Impairment of long-term assets.

22.Borrowing costs
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i. Recognition of borrowing costs capitalization

Botrowing costs are capitalized when they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset and included in the cost of related assets. Other borrowing costs

are recognized as expenses and recorded into profit or loss for the current period.

A qualifying asset is an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use

or sale. That could be fixed asset, investment property, inventory and so on.

Capitalization of such borrowing costs commenced only when all of the following conditions are

satisfied:

(1) Expenditures for assets are being incurred, capital expenditure includes the expenditure in the
form of cash payment, transfer of non-cash assets or interest-bearing liabilities for the purpose of

acquiring or constructing assets eligible for capitalization;
(2) Borrowing costs are being incurred;

(3) Activities relating to the acquisition, construction or production of the asset that are necessary

to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have commenced.
ii. Capitalization period

Capitalization period refers to the period from the commencement point to cessation point of the
capitalization of borrowing costs, excluding the period when the borrowing costs suspend to be

capitalized.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying assets being acquired, constructed or

produced become ready for their intended use or sale.

When the construction of a qualifying asset is completed in parts and each part is capable of being

used while construction continues on other parts, capitalization of borrowing costs shall cease.

When each part of a qualifying assets acquired or constructed is completed separately, but they are
capable of being used or sold only after the overall completion of the asset, capitalization of

borrowing costs shall cease after overall completion of the asset.
iii. Suspension period

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in which the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset is suspended abnormally and when the suspension
is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Capitalization of borrowing costs is not
suspended when a temporary delay is a necessary part of the process of getting an asset ready for

its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs occurred during the suspension period are recognized as
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profit or loss of the current period, and continue to be capitalized till the restart of the construction

or production activities restarted.
iv. Calculation of capitalization amount

For funds borrowed for a specific purpose, the interest expenses of which (excluding bank interest
carned from depositing the borrowed funds before being used into banks or any investment
income on the temporary investment of those funds) are capitalized along with the auxiliary
expenses of which before the acquired or constructed qualifying assets being capable for intended

use or sale.

For funds borrowed for general purpose, the amount of interest to be capitalized on such
borrowings is calculated by applying a capitalization rate to the weighted average of the excess
amounts of cumulative expenditures on the asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose
borrowings. Capitalization rate is determined as calculating weighted average interest rate of

general borrowings.

Where there is discount or premium of the funds, the depreciable discount or premium amount,
determined by the use of effective interest method in each accounting period, is adjusted to interest

of each period.

23.Intangible assets

Tntangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance held or
controlled by the Company, including land use rights, registered trademarks, vehicle management

rights, purchased software systems, etc.
i. Initial measurement

The cost of purchased intangible asset includes purchase price, relevant tax and other necessary
expenses for making the asset to the hoped condition for use that can be attributed to the asset
directly. The cost of the assets is measured on the basis of present value of the purchase price,

when its payment is deferred beyond normal credit terms and belongs to financial lease in actual.

The entry value of mortgage intangible assets, acquired by debt restructuring from the debtors; is
measured on the basis of fair value, and the differences between the book value of the restructured
debt and fair value of the mortgage intangible assets are recorded into current profit or loss of the

current period.

On the premise of the non-monetary assets exchange is commercial in nature and the fair value of
the assets received or surrendered can be measured reliably, the entry value of the received

intangible assets received from the non-monetary assets is measured on the basis of fair value of
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the assets surrendered, unless there is conclusive evidence that the fair value of the received assets
is more reliable. For non-monetary assets exchange fails to satisfy the premise stated above, costs
of the received assets are measured at the sum of book value of the surrendered assets and relevant

taxes paid, and no profits or losses are recognized.

For the intangible assets acquired by merge of company under common control, the entry value of
the assets is measured at book value of the combined party; for the intangible assets acquired by
merge of company not under common control, the entry value of the assets is measured at fair

value.

The cost of self-developed intangible assets includes: materials consumed, labor costs, registration
fees, amortization of other patent rights and franchises, and interest expenses meeting the
conditions of capitalization during the developing of the asset, and other direct costs before the

intangible assets are capable for expected purposes.
ii. Subsequent measurement

Intangible assets are classified into intangible assets with finite useful lives and with indefinite

useful lives at the acquisition date by the Company.
(1) Intangible assets with finite useful lives

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized by straight-line method in the period, when
the assets can generate economic benefits for the Company. Estimated lives and judging criteria of

the intangible assets with finite lives are listed as below:

ltems Estimated lives Judging by
Land use rights N 50 Certificate of rights
.Registered ;ad;mark 10 )
Mﬂ-(-e management rights o 6 — Line permit certificate B
Iburchased software systems -2-10 Expected eé(;nomic be-neTts affect the peri;d_

The useful lives and amortization methods of intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed
at the end of each accounting period, and relevant adjustments are made when there is any change

from the previous estimates.

After review, the useful lives and amortization method of the intangible assets at the end of this

period are no different from the previous.
(2) Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

If it is unable to forecast the period when the intangible asset can bring economic benefits to the
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enterprise, it shall be recognized as an intangible asset with indefinite useful life.

At the end of the period, the service life of intangible assets with uncertain service life is reviewed,
and if there is evidence that the intangible assets bring economic benefits to the enterprise is
foreseeable, its service life is estimated and amortized in accordance with the amortization policy

of intangible assets with limited service life.

The impairment test method and the provision for impairment of intangible assets are detailed in

this note I11/24- Impairment of long-term assets.

iii. Divide the research stage and development stage specific standards of the company's

internal research and development projects

Research stage: the stage of original planned investigation and research activities for the

acquisition and understanding of new scientific or technical knowledge, etc.

Development stage: the activity of applying research results or other knowledge to a plan or
design for the production of new or substantially improved materials, devices, products, etc.,

before commercial production or use.

Expenditures in the research phase of internal research and development projects are included in

current profit and loss when incurred.
iv. Development phase expenditures meet the specific criteria for capitalization

Expenditures in the development phase of internal research and development projects are

recognized as intangible assets when the following conditions are simultaneously met:

(1) 1t is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it can be used or sold;

(2) It has the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

(3) The way in which the intangible asset generates economic benefits, including being able to
prove that there is a market for the products produced by using the intangible asset or that there is
a market for the intangible asset itself, and that the intangible asset will be used internally, being
able to prove its usefulness;

(4) It has the support of sufficient technology, financial resources and other resources to complete
the development of the intangible asset and has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(5) The expenditure attributable to the development stage of the intangible asset can be measured

reliably.

Expenditures in the development phase that do not meet the above conditions are recognised in the
current profit or loss when incurred. If it is impossible to distingnish between expenditures in the

research stage and expenditures in the development stage, all R&D expenditures incurred shall be
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included in the current profit or loss. The cost of intangible assets arising from internal
development activities only includes the total amount of expenditure incurred from the time when
the capitalization conditions are met to the time when the intangible asset reaches its intended use,
and no adjustment is made for expenditure that has been expensed in profit or loss before the

capitalization conditions are met during the development of the same intangible asset.

24 Impairment of long-term assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company checks whether there are signs of possible impairment in
long-term equity investments, fixed assets, projects under construction, intangible assets with
defined useful life and assets with right of use. If there are signs of impairment of long-term assets,
the recoverable amount is estimated on the basis of individual assets; If it is difficult to estimate
the recoverable amount of a single asset, the recoverable amount of the asset group shall be

determined on the basis of the asset group to which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount of an asset is determined by the higher of the net amount after deducting
the disposal costs from the asset's fair value and the present value of the asset's estimated future

cash flow.

When the measurement of the recoverable amount indicates that, the recoverable amount is lower
than its carrying amount, the Company reduces its carrying amount to its recoverable amount, the
reduced amount is recorded in profit or loss for the current period and the provision for
impairment of assets is recognized. An impairment loss once recognized is not reversed in

subsequent period.

The depreciation or amortization of the impaired asset is adjusted correspondingly in the future
period after the impairment loss being recognized, so that the adjusted book value (deducting the

residual value) of the asset can be systematically allocated in the residual useful life.

Impairment test of goodwill acquired in a business combination and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives should be performed annually, whether or not there is any indication that it

may be impaired.

The book value of goodwill is allocated to the asset group or combination of asset group, which is
estimated to benefit from the synergies of business combination, in the impairment test. For
impairment test performed for the relevant asset group or combination of asset group, which
contain goodwill, if there is any indication of impairment: First, the impairment test is conducted
for the asset group or combination of assets group excluding goodwill, the recoverable amount is
compared with the relevant book value and corresponding impairment loss is recognized; Then the

impairment test is conducted for the asset group or combination of asset group with goodwill, the
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impairment loss of the goodwill is recognized when the recoverable amount of the asset group or
combination of asset group is less than the book value (including the allocated book value of the
goodwill).

25.Long-term deferred expenses

i. Amortization

Long-term deferred expenses are the expense occurred but should be attributable to the current
period and subsequent for more than one year. Long-term deferred expenses are amortized by use

of the straight-line method over the benefit period.

ii. Amortization period

Category Amortization period l Remarks
Right of authentication 3 years Qverseas market product certification fees
The cost of building repairs 'I 16 months Benefit period

26.Contractual liabilities

Contractual liabilities presents the obligation to transfer goods or services to the customer for the

consideration received or receivable from the customer

27.Payroll and employee benefits payable

Employee benefits refer to all forms of consideration or compensation given by the Company in
exchange for service rendered by employee or for the termination of employment relationship.
Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits, termination

benefits and other long-term employee benefits.
i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period during which employee service are rendered, but do not
include post-employee and termination benefits. The accrued short-term employee benefit is
recognized as a liability in the accounting period in which the service is rendered by the
employees, with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current period or the cost of

relevant assets.
ii. Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are any remuneration and benefits (other than short-term employee

benefits and termination benefits) in exchange for service rendered by employees that are payable
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after the retirement of the employees or termination of employment relationship.
The company classifies post-employment benefit plans as either defined contribution plans.

Defined contribution plans are mainly composed of social endowment insurance, unemployment
insurance and so on implemented by labor and social security of various regions. The contribution
payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for service rendered by employees is
recognized as a liability in the accounting period in which the employees are in service, with a

corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current period or the cost of relevant assets.

After regular payment in compliance with the state specified standard, the Company has no further

obligation.
jii. Termination benefits

Dismissal benefits refer to the termination of the labor relationship with the employee before the
expiration of the employee's labor contract, or the compensation given to the employee to
encourage the employee to accept the reduction voluntarily. When the Company cannot
unilaterally withdraw the termination plan or reduction proposal, or when the costs related to the
restructuring related to the payment of dismissal benefits are confirmed as early as possible.
Recognize liabilities arising from compensation for termination of labor relations with employees

and record them into current profits and losses.

The company provides internal retirement benefits to employees who accept internal retirement
arrangements. Retirement benefits refer to the wages and social insurance premiums paid to
employees who have not reached the retirement age stipulated by the state and who voluntarily
quit their jobs with the approval of the company's management. The company shall pay internal
retirement benefits to the retired employees from the date when the internal retirement
arrangement begins until the employees reach the normal retirement age. For the retirement
benefits, the company will conduct accounting treatment according to the dismissal benefits.
When meeting the confirmation conditions related to the dismissal benefits, the wages and social
insurance premiums to be paid by the retired employees from the date when the employees stop
providing services to the normal retirement date will be recognized as liabilities and recorded into
the current profit and loss in a lump sum. Differences caused by changes in actuarial assumptions

and adjustments to benefit standards are recorded in current profits and losses when they occur.
iv. Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term benefits are employee benefits other than short-term benefits, post-employment

benefits and termination benefits.
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28.Provisions
i. Recognition

When an obligation related to a contingent matter such as product quality assurance is a current
obligation undertaken by the Company, the fulfilment of the obligation is likely to result in an
outflow of economic benefits, and the amount of the obligation can be reliably measured, it is

recognized as a projected liability.
ii. Measurement

Provisions are initially measured at the best estimate of the payment to settle the associated

present obligation.

In reaching its best estimate, the Company takes into account the risks, uncertainties, time value of
money and so on. If the impact of time value of money is significant, the best estimate is

determined as its present value of future cash flow.
A best estimate is conducted as follows:

If there is a continuous range (or interval) for the expenditures and the possibilities for different
results are the same within the range, the best estimate is measured as median within the range,

namely the average of upper limit and lower limit of amount.

If there is not a continuous range (or interval) for the expenditures, or there is a continuous range
but the possibilities for different results are not same within the range: The best estimate is
determined as the most likely amount, where there is a single item related to the contingency; the
best estimated is determined in accordance with all possible outcomes and the relevant

probabilities, where there are multiple items concerned with the contingency.

If all or part of the expenses necessary for settling the provision is expected to be compensated by
a third party, the amount of compensation is separately recognized as an asset when it is basically
certain to be received. The recognized compensation amounts not exceed the carrying value of the

provision.

29.Share based payment

i. Category of share-based payment

Share based payment of the Company is classified as equity-settled and cash-settled.
ii. Fair value of equity instrument

If there is active market for granted equity instrument, fair value is determined as the quoted price
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in the active market. If there is no active market for granted equity instrument, fair value is
determined by applying an option pricing model, with the following factors taken into account: (1)
the exercise price of the option;(2) the life of the option;(3) the current price of the underlying
shares;(4) the expected volatility of the share price;(5) the dividends expected on the shares; (6)

the risk-free interest rate for the life of the option.

Market conditions of vesting conditions and non-vesting conditions shall be taken into account
when estimating the fair value of the equity instruments. For grants of equity instruments with
non-vesting conditions, the Company shall recognize the cost corresponding to the relevant
service, when the employees or counterparty satisfy all vesting conditions that are not market
conditions (e.g. services received from an employee who remains in service for the specific period

of service), irrespective of whether those non-vesting conditions are satisfied.

iii. Criteria for determination of the best estimate of exercisable amount of equity

instrument

On each reporting date of the vesting period, estimated exercisable equity instrument amount is
adjusted to the best estimate, according to the newly obtained information relevant to the amount
of exercisable employee amount. On vesting date, the Company shall revise the estimate to equal

the number of equity instruments that ultimately vested.
iv. Accounting treatment
(1)Accounting for equity settlement and cash settlement of share payments

For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, fair value of equity instrument granted at the
grant date is adopted. If the equity instruments granted can vest immediately, the Company
recognizes the cost at fair value of equity instrument at the grant date, and increase capital reserve
correspondingly. If the equity instruments granted do no vest until the completion of specified
period of service or achievement of a performance condition, on each reporting date of vesting
period, the Company recognizes the cos of service acquired and capital reserve at the fair value of
equity instrument granted, on the basis of best estimate of exercisable amount of equity instrument.
There is no adjustment made to the cost recognized and corresponding increase in equity after

vesting date.

Share-based payments settled in cash shall be measured according to the fair value of liabilities
calculated and determined on the basis of shares or other equity instruments undertaken by the
Company. If the right is immediately feasible after the grant, the fair value of the liabilities borne
by the company shall be recorded into the relevant costs or expenses on the grant date, and the

Jiabilities shall be increased accordingly. On each balance sheet date during the waiting period,
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based on the best estimate of the feasible right situation, the services acquired in the current period
shall be recorded into costs or expenses and corresponding liabilities according to the fair value of
the liabilities borne by the Company. On each balance sheet date before the settlement of the
relevant liabilities and the settlement date, the fair value of the liabilities shall be re-measured, and

the changes shall be recorded into the current profits and losses.
(2)Accounting for modification of share payment terms and conditions

In the case of adverse modifications, the Company shall treat the changes as if they never occurred

and continue to account for the services obtained.

Favorable modifications shall be treated by the Company in accordance with the following
provisions: If the modification increases the fair value of the equity instrument granted, the
Enterprise shall recognize the increase in the services obtained in accordance with the increase in
the fair value of the equity instrument. If the modification occurs during the waiting period, the
recognition of the fair value of the services obtained between the date of the modification and the
date of the revised option shall include both the amount of the services determined during the
remaining original waiting period on the basis of the fair value of the original equity instrument
grant date and the increase in the fair value of the equity instrument. If the modification occurs
after the vesting date, the increase in the fair value of the equity instrument should be recognized
immediately. If the share payment agteement requires the employee to obtain the modified equity
instrument only after completing a longer period of service, the enterprise shall recognize the

increase in the fair value of the equity instrument throughout the waiting period.

If the modification increases the number of equity instruments granted, the firm recognizes the fair
value of the increased equity instruments accordingly as an increase in the acquisition of services.
If the modification occurs during the waiting period, the recognition of the fair value of the
services acquired between the date of the modification and the date of the availability of the
increased equity instrument shall include both the amount of services determined during the
remaining original waiting period based on the fair value of the original equity instrument grant

date and the increase in the fair value of the equity instrument.

If the company modifies the availability conditions in a way that benefits employees, such as
shortening the waiting period, changing or eliminating performance conditions (rather than market
conditions), the company should take the revised availability conditions into account when dealing

with the availability conditions.
(3)Accounting for cancellation of share payments

If a grant of equity instruments is cancelled, the Company accounts for the cancellation as an
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acceleration of vesting, that is the amount that otherwise would have been recognized over the
remainder of the vesting period recognized in profit or loss of the current period, and capital
reserve recognized correspondingly. If the employee or counterparty can choose whether to meet a
non-vesting condition, the Company treats the employee's or counterparty's failure to meet that

non-vesting condition during the vesting period as a cancellation.

30.Preferred shares, perpetual debts and other financial instruments

In accordance with the provisions of the Financial Instrument Standards, the Company classifies
such financial instruments or their components as financial liabilities or equity instruments at the
time of initial recognition in accordance with the contractual terms of the issued preferred shares,
perpetual bonds and other financial instruments and the economic substance reflected by them, not
only in legal form, and in combination with the definition of financial liabilities and equity

instruments:

i. A financial instrument issued is classified as a financial liability if one of the following

conditions is met:

(1) Contractual obligations to deliver cash or other financial assets to other parties;

(2) Contractual obligations to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with other parties
under potentially adverse conditions;

(3) a non-derivative instrument contract that must be settled with or can be settled with the
enterprise's own equity instruments in the future, under which the enterprise will deliver a variable
number of its own equity instruments;

(4) Derivative contracts that must be settled with or can be settled with the enterprise's own equity
instruments in the future, except derivative contracts that exchange a fixed number of its own

equity instruments for a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets.

ii. Financial instruments issued shall be classified as equity instruments if the following

conditions are met at the same time:

(1) The financial instrument does not include a contractual obligation to deliver cash or other
financial assets to other parties, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with other
parties under potentially adverse conditions;

(2) If the financial instrument must be settled with or can be settled with the enterprise's own
equity instrument in the future, if the financial instrument is 2 non-derivative instrument, the
contractual obligation to deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments for settlement is
not included; In the case of a derivative instrument, the enterprise can only settle the financial
instrument by exchanging a fixed amount of its own equity instrument for a fixed amount of cash

or other financial assets.
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iii. Accounting treatment method

For financial instruments classified as equity instruments, their interest expense or dividend
distribution shall be treated as the profit distribution of the issuing enterprise, their repurchase and
cancellation shall be treated as the change of equity, and transaction expenses such as commission

and commission shall be deducted from equity;

For financial instruments classified as financial liabilities, their interest expense or dividend
distribution shall be treated in principle according to the borrowing cost, the gains or losses arising
from their repurchase or redemption shall be included in the current profit and loss, and the
transaction costs such as commissions and commissions shall be included in the initial

measurement amount of the issued instruments.

31.Revenue
i. General revenue recognition

The Company has fulfilled its performance obligation under the contract, that is, when the
customer obtains control of the relevant commodity or service, it recognizes revenue according to
the transaction price apportioned to the performance obligation Performance obligation refers to
the commitment of the company to transfer clearly distinguishable goods or services to the
customer in the contract.To acquire the control right of relevant goods refers to to be able to

dominate the use of the goods and obtain almost all the economic benefits from them.

At the beginning date of a contract, the Company should assess the contract to identify the
individual contract obligations in the contract, and to confirm whether the individual contract
obligations are to be satisfied over time or at a point in time and then recognize the revenue
respectively when the individual contract obligations are satisfied. The Company recognizes
revenue over time if one of the following criteria is met:1) the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes all of the benefits provided by the entity as the entity performs;2) the Company's
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created; 3) the
Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. Otherwise, revenue is

recognized at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the relevant assets or service.

For the performance obligation over time, the appropriate performance progress is determined by
the method of  input method according to the nature of goods and service. The input method is to
determine the performance progress according to the Company's input to fulfill the performance
obligation. When the performance progress cannot be determined reasonably and the cost incurred

is expected to be compensated, revenue is recognized as the cost incurred until the performance
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progress can be reasonably determined.
ii. Specific revenue recognition

The Company has fulfilled its performance obligation under the contract, which is to recognize
revenue when the customer acquires control of the relevant goods or services. If the contract
contains two or more performance obligations, the Company shall, on the commencement date of
the contract, apportion the transaction price to each individual performance obligation according
to the relative proportion of the individual selling price of the commodity or service committed
under each individual performance obligation, and measure the income according to the
transaction price apportioned to each individual performance obligation. However, if there is
conclusive evidence that the contract discount or variable consideration is only related to one or
more (but not all) of the performance obligations under the contract, the contract discount or
variable consideration shall be apportioned to one or more of the relevant performance obligations.
The transaction price is the amount of consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to
collect as a result of the transfer of goods or services to the customer, excluding payments
received on behalf of third parties. Amounts expected to be refunded to customers are treated as
return liabilities and are not included in the transaction price. If there is a significant financing
component in the contract, the Company shall determine the transaction price based on the amount
payable in cash when the customer assumes control of the goods or services. The difference
between the transaction price and the contract consideration is amortized over the contract period

using the effective interest rate method.

For performance obligations performed within a certain period of time, the Company recognizes
revenue in accordance with the progress of performance during that period. If the performance
progress cannot be reasonably determined and the company is expected to be compensated for the
costs already incurred, the revenue shall be recognized according to the amount of costs already
incurred until the performance progress can be reasonably determined. For performance
obligations performed at a certain point, the Company recognizes revenue at the point when the
customer acquires control of the relevant goods. In determining whether the customer has acquired
control of the goods or services, the Company will consider the following indications: © The
Company has a current right to collect money in respect of the goods or services; @ The
Company has transferred the physical goods to the customer; ® The Company has transferred
the legal ownership of the goods or the major risks and rewards of ownership to the Customer; @

The customer has accepted the product.

The right of the Company to receive consideration for goods or services transferred to the

customer (and subject to factors other than the passage of time) is set out as a confractual asset.
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The right of the Company to collect consideration from the customer unconditionally (subject only
to the passage of time) is shown as receivables. The company's obligation to transfer goods or
services to customers for which consideration has been received or receivable is shown as a

contractual liability.
iii. Specific judgment criteria for the recognition time of revenue from sales of goods

The company's sales are divided into domestic sales and export sales. Among them, domestic sales
is after the contract is signed, the company organizes production according to the requirements of
the contract, and recognizes the income when the warehouse issues the goods, issues the delivery
notice and obtains the receipt document from the customer, and obtains the right to collect the
payment for goods; Bxport means that after the contract is signed, production is organized
according to the contract, and different settlement modes are divided when the commodities have
been issued. Under the FOB mode of the shipping company designated by the buyer, the bill of
lading is obtained after the goods cross the ship's rail, and the export declaration is handled to the
customs and the income is confirmed after approval; Under the CIF mode of arranging the
transportation of goods and handling freight insurance, the seller shall obtain the freight bill of
lading after the goods cross the ship's rail, and at the same time go through the export declaration

to the customs and confirm the income after approval.

32.Contractual cost
i. Contract performance costs

The company recognizes the cost of contract performance as an asset if it does not fall within the
scope of accounting standards for enterprises other than revenue standards and meets the

following conditions at the same time:

(1)The cost is directly related to a contract currently obtained or expected to be obtained,
including direct labor cost, direct material cost and manufacturing expense (or similar expense),
the cost assumed by the customer and other costs incurred only due to the contract are specified;
(2)The cost increases the resources of the enterprise for further performance of obligations;

(3)The cost is expected to be recovered.

The asset is reported in inventory or other non-current assets according to whether the

amortization period exceeds one normal operating cycle at the time of its initial recognition.
ii. Contract acquisition costs
The Company will recognize the incremental costs incurred in obtaining the contracts as contract

acquisition costs. Incremental costs refers to the costs will not incur without the achieving of a

Notes to financial statements Page.51




Yutong Bus CO.,.LTD.

For the year ended 31 december 2023
Notes to the financial statements
English translation for reference only

contract, such as sales commission. Where the amortization period not exceeding one year, the

cost is recognized into current period as profit/loss at the time of occurrence.
iii. Amortization of contract costs

The assets related to the contract costs mentioned above shall be amortized at the point of
performance of the performance obligation or in accordance with the progress of performance of
the performance obligation on the same basis as the income recognition of goods or services

related to the asset, and shall be recorded into the current profit and loss.
iv. Impairment of contract costs

If the carrying value of the above assets related to the contract cost is higher than the difference
between the remaining consideration that the company is expected to obtain due to the transfer of
the commodities related to the asset and the estimated cost to be incurred for the transfer of the
commodities related to the asset, the excess part shall be set aside for impairment and recognized

as the asset impairment loss.

After the provision for impairment is made, if the factors of impairment in previous periods
change so that the difference between the above two items is higher than the carrying value of the
asset, the original provision for impairment of the asset shall be reversed and recorded into the
profit and loss of the current period, provided that the carrying value of the asset after the reversal
shall not exceed the carrying value of the asset on the reversal date under the assumption that no

provision for impairment is made.
33.Government grants

i. Categories

Government grants are transfers of monetary and non-monetary assets from the government to the
Company. Government grants are classified into grants related to assets and grants related to

income according to the assistance object stipulated by the relevant government document.

Grants related to assets are government grants whose primary condition is that an entity qualifying
for them should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets.Grants related to

income are government grants other than those related to assets.
ii. Recognition

A government grant is not recognized until there is a reasonable assurance that the entity will
comply with the conditions attaching to it, and that grant will be received. Otherwise, government

grants are recognized at the actual receipt.
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For a government grant in the form of transfer of monetary assets, the grant is measured at the
amount received or receivable. For a government grant in the form of transfer of non-monetary
assets, it is measured at fair value; if the fair value is not reliably determinable, the grant is
measured at nominal amount (RMB lyuan). The government grant measured at nominal amount is

recognized into profit or loss of the current period directly.
iii. Accounting treatment

According to the essence of economic business, the company determines whether a certain type of
government subsidy business should adopt the gross method or the net method for accounting
treatment. Under normal circumstances, the Company chooses only one method for the same or

similar government subsidy business and consistently applies this method for that business.

ltems Content of accounting
i Categories of government subsidies calculated using the All government subsidies except discount interest on
aggregate method ) loans
Categories of government subsidies accounted for using the - . .
netting method Govemment subsidies related to loan discount interest

Government grants related to assets will be recorded as deferred income and recognized evenly in
profit or loss over the useful lives of the related assets by the use of a rational and systematic

method;

Government grants related to income will be recorded as deferred mcome and recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which the related expenses are recognized if the grants are intended to
compensate for future expenses or losses, and otherwise recognized in profit or loss for the current

period if the grants are used to compensate for expenses or losses that have been incurred.

Government grants related to daily activities of the Company are recorded into other income;

grants irrelated to daily activities are recorded into non-operating income or eXpenses.

Government grants related with discount of policy-related concessional loans are deducted in the
relevant borrowing costs. For the loan offered by the lending bank in a policy-related prime rate,
the loan is measured at the actual amount received and the relevant borrowing costs are calculated

by the loan principal and the policy-related prime rate.

If a grant becomes repayable, where there is a balance of the related deferred income, the book
value of the deferred income is offset and the excess comes to the profit or loss of the current
period; where there is no related deferred income, the repayment is recorded into profit or loss of

the current period.

34.Deferred income tax assets / deferred income tax liabilities
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Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are calculated and recognized based
on the difference arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
(temporary differences). On the balance sheet date, deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities shall be measured according to the applicable tax rate during the period

when the assets are expected to be recovered or the liabilities are paid off.
i. Recognition criteria of deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences, deductible losses and tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available in the future against
which the deductible temporary differences, deductible losses and tax credits can be utilized. The
deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability is not recognized in a
transaction that:(1) It is not a business combination;(2) At the time of the transaction, it affects

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

For the deductible temporary difference associated with investments in associates, to the extent
that, and only to the extent that:(1) The temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable
future;(2) The taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be

utilized.
ii. Recognition criteria of deferred tax liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences payable of the current

and previous period, excluding:
(1) Temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwill;

(2) Temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset/liability other than in a
business combination which, at the time of the transaction, does not affect either the accounting or

the taxable profit (tax loss);

(3) Taxable temporary differences associated with investment in subsidiaries or associated, but
only to the extent that the entity is able to control the timing of reversal of the differences and it is

probable that the reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future.

35.Leases

On the commencement date of the contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease.The contract is a lease or contains a lease if a party in the contract conveys the

right to use one or more identified assets for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

i. Separating components of a lease contract
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When the contract contains a number of separate leases, the company will divide the contract and

each separate lease will be accounted for separately.

If the contract contains both the leased part and the non-leased part, the Company will divide the
leased part and the non-leased part into two parts. The leased part shall be treated in accordance
with the leasing standards, while the non-leased part shall be treated in accordance with other

applicable accounting standards.
ii. Consolidation of lease contracts

Two or more contracts including leases concluded by the Company and the same transaction party
or its affiliates at the same time or at similar time shall be combined into one contract for

accounting treatment if one of the following conditions is met:

(1)The two or more contracts are entered into and constitute a package deal for an overall

commercial purpose which cannot be understood without being considered as a whole.

(2) The amount of consideration for one of the two or more contracts depends on the pricing or

performance of the other contracts.

(3)The right to use the assets transferred by the two or more contracts together constitute a

separate lease.
iii. The Company as Lessee

On the commencement date of the lease term, except for the short-term lease and the lease of
low-value assets with simplified treatment, the Company recognises the right-of-use assets and

lease liabilities.
(1) The short-term lease and the lease of low-value assets

Short-term leases refer to leases with a lease term of less than 12 months from the commencement
date, except for those with a purchase option.Low-value asset lease refers to the lease with a lower

value when the single leased asset is a brand new asset.

The Company does not recognize the use right assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases and
low-value asset leases, and the relevant lease payments are included in the cost of the relevant
assets or current profit or loss in accordance with the straight-line method during each period of

the lease term.
(2) Right-of-use asset

On the start date of the lease term, the right-of-use assets is initially measured at cost. The cost

includes:
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1) the initial measurement amount of lease liabilities;

2) The lease payment amount issued on or before the start date of the lease term, where if there is

a lease incentive, the amount related to the entitled lease incentive shall be deducted;
3) The initial direct expenses incurred by the Company as the lessee;

4) The cost expected to be incurred by the Company as the lessee to dismantle and remove the
leased assets, restore the site where the leased assets are located or restore the leased assets to

the state agreed in the lease terms(Excludes costs incurred to produce inventory).

After the commencement of the lease term, the company shall use the cost model to make

subsequent measurement of the right-of-use assets.

If the Company, as the lessee, can reasonably determine that the ownership of the leased assets is
acquired at the expiration of the lease term, depreciation shall be accrued within the remaining
service life of the leased assets. If it cannot be reasonably determined that the ownership of the
leased assets can be obtained at the expiration of the lease term, depreciation shall be accrued
during the lease term or the remaining service life of the leased assets, whichever is shorter. For
the right-of-use assets for which provision has been made for impairment,the company shall
depreciate in future periods at book value after deduction of impairment provisions with reference

to the above principles.

The Company shall, in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 8 - Asset Impairment, determine whether the assets of the right of use have been
impaired and conduct accounting treatment for the identified impairment losses. For details in this

note I11/24- Impairment of long-term assets.
(3) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company measures the lease liabilities at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. When calculating the present value of the
Jease payments, the Company adopts the interest rate implicit in the lease as the discount rate.If
the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee's

incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments comprise the following payments:

1) Fixed payment amount and substantial fixed payment amount after deducting the relevant
amount of lease incentive;

2) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

3) The exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that

option;
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4) Payments for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising an option
to terminate the lease;

5) Amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees.

The Company calculates the interest on the lease liabilities in each period during the lease term by

a fixed interest rate and records it into the current profit or loss, or the cost of relevant assets.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities, are recorded in

profit or loss, or in the cost of relevant assets, in the period of those payments.
iv. The Company as lessor
(1) Classification of leases

The Company divides the lease into finance lease and operating lease on the commencement date
of the lcase term.Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Ownership of the leased asset may or may not

eventually be transferred.All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company generally classifies a lease as a finance lease if one or more of the following

conditions exist:

1)At the end of the lease term, ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the lessee.

2)The lessee has an option to purchase the leased asset and the purchase price established is
sufficiently low compared to the fair value of the leased asset at the time the option is expected to
be exercised. The lessee can therefore be reasonably certain that the option will be exercised on the
commencement date of the lease.

3)Although the ownership of the asset is not transferred, the lease term accounts for the majority
of the service life of the leased asset.

4)On the commencement date of the lease, the present value of the lease receipts is almost equal to
the fair value of the leased asset.

5)The leased assets are special in nature and can only be used by the lessee if major alterations are

not made.

The Company may also classify a lease as a finance lease if it has one or more of the following

indications:

D)If the lessee cancels the lease, the lessee shall bear any loss caused to the lessor.
2)Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the balance of assets belong to the

lessee.
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3)The lessee has the ability to continue the lease for the next period at rents well below the

market level.
(2) Accounting treatment of financial leases

On the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes the finance lease receivables

and terminates the recognition of finance lease assets.

When the financial lease receivables are initially measured, the sum of the unguaranteed residual
value and the amount of lease receipts not received on the commencement date of the lease shall
be taken as the recorded value of the financial lease receivables according to the present value of

the discounted interest rate of the lease. Lease receipts include:

1)Fixed payment and substantial fixed payment after deducting the relevant amount of leasc
incentive;

2)Variable rental payments depending on an index or ratio;

3)Where it is reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise the purchase option, the lease
receipts include the exercise price of the purchase option;

4)In the case that the lease term reflects the exercise of the lessee's option to terminate the lease,
the lease receipts include the amount payable by the lessee to exercise the option to terminate the
lease;

5)The residual value of the security provided to the lessor by the lessee and the party related to
the lessee or an independent third party financially capable of fulfilling the security obligations;

The Company calculates and recognizes the interest income of each period of the lease term
according to the fixed embedded interest rate of the lease and the variable lease payments
obtained which are not included in the net lease investment measurement are included in the

cuirent profit and loss when actually incurred.
(3) Accounting treatment of operating leases

During each period of the lease term, the Company shall adopt the straight line method or other
systematic and reasonable methods to recognize the rental receipts from the operating lease as
rental income.The capitalization of the initial direct expenses incurred in connection with the
operating lease shall be apportion on the same basis as the recognition of rental income during
the lease term and recorded into the current profit or loss by stages.Variable lease payments
obtained in relation to operating leases and not included in lease receipts shall be included in

current profits or losses when actually incurred.

36.Accounting for hedge
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According to the hedging relationship, the company divides hedging into fair value hedging,

cash flow hedging and net overseas investment hedging.

i. For hedging instruments that simultancously meet the following conditions, the hedge

accounting method shall be used to deal with them
(1) The hedging relationship only consists of qualified hedging instruments and hedged items.

(2) At the commencement of the hedging, the Company formally designated the hedging
instrument and the hedged item, and prepared written documents on the hedging relationship and

the risk management strategy and risk management objectives engaged in the hedging.
(3) The hedging relationship meets the requirements of hedging effectiveness.

If the hedging simultaneously satisfies the following conditions, the hedging relationship shall be

determined to meet the requirements of hedging effectiveness:

1) There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.  This
cconomic relationship causes the value of the hedging instrument and the hedged item to change
in opposite directions because they face the same hedged risk.

2) In the value changes generated by the economic relationship between the hedged item and the
hedging instrument, the influence of credit risk does not dominate.

3) The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship, which is equal to the ratio of the number of the
hedged items actually hedged by the Company to the actual number of the hedging instruments
that hedge them, but does not reflect the imbalance in the relative weights of the hedged items and
the hedging instruments, which will lead to ineffective hedging and may produce accounting

results inconsistent with the hedging accounting objectives.
ii. Fair value hedge accounting treatment

(1) Gains or losses arising from hedging instruments are included in current profits and losses. If
the hedging instrument is used to hedge a non-tradable equity instrument investment (or a
component thereof) that is selected to be measured at fair value and whose change is included in
other comprehensive income, the gain or loss arising from the hedging instrument is included in

other comprehensive income.

(2) The gain or loss of the hedged item due to the hedged risk exposure is recorded into the
current profit and loss, and the book value of the recognized hedged item not measured at fair
value is adjusted at the same time. If the hedged item is a financial asset (or its component)
measured at fair value and its change is included in other comprehensive income, the gain or loss

caused by the hedged risk exposure is included in the current profit and loss, and its book value
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has been measured at fair value and does not need to be adjusted; If the hedged item is a
non-tradable equity instrument investment (or its component) that the company chooses to
measure at fair value and its change is included in other comprehensive income, the gain or loss
caused by the hedged risk exposure is included in other comprehensive income, and its book

value has been measured at fair value and does not need to be adjusted.

If the hedged item is a firm commitment (or part thereof) that has not yet been recognized, the
accumulated change in fair value caused by the hedged risk after the hedging relationship is
designated shall be recognized as an asset or liability, and the related gains or losses shall be
recorded into the profits and losses of each relevant period. When an asset is acquired or a
liability is assumed as a result of the performance of a firm commitment, the initial recognition
amount of the asset or liability is adjusted to include the cumulative change in the fair value of

the hedged item that has been recognized.

(3) If the hedged item is a financial instrument (or a component thereof) measured at amortized
cost, any adjustment made to the carrying amount of the hedged item is amortized at the effective
interest rate recalculated on the date of commencement of amortization and included in the
current profit or loss. Such amortization may commence on the adjustment date, but no later than
the point at which the adjustment of hedging gains and losses is made for the termination of the
hedged item. If the hedged item is a financial asset (or its components) measured at fair value
and its change is included in other comprehensive income, the accumulated recognized hedging
gain or loss shall be amortized in the same way and recorded into the current profit and loss, but

the carrying value of the financial asset (or its components) shall not be adjusted.
iii. Cash flow hedge accounting treatment

(1) The part of the gain or loss generated by the hedging instrument that is the effective hedging
shall be regarded as the cash flow hedging reserve and recorded into other comprehensive
income. The amount of the cash flow hedging reserve shall be determined according to the lower

of the following two absolute amounts:

1) Accumulated gains or losses on the hedging instrument since the commencement of the
hedging;

2) The cumulative change in the present value of the estimated future cash flows of the hedged
item since the beginning of the hedging. The amount of cash flow hedge reserve included n other
comprehensive income in each period is the change in cash flow hedge reserve in the current

period.
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(2) The part of the gain or loss generated by the hedging instrument that is mvalid for the
hedging (i.e., other gains or losses after deducting other comprehensive income) shall be

included in the current profit and loss.

(3) The amount of cash flow hedging reserve shall be handled in accordance with the following
provisions:

1) If the hedged item is an anticipated transaction and the anticipated transaction results in the
subsequent recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability by the Company, or the
anticipated transaction of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability forms a firm commitment
applicable to fair value hedge accounting, the amount of cash flow hedge reserve originally
recognized in other comprehensive income shall be transferred out, The initial recoguition amount
included in the asset or liability.

2) For cash flow hedges not covered in the previous article, during the same period in which the
expected cash flow hedged affects the profit and loss, the amount of cash flow hedge reserve
originally recognized in other comprehensive income shall be transferred out and recorded into the
profit and loss of the current period.

3) If the amount of cash flow hedge reserve recognized in other comprehensive income is a loss
and the loss is not expected to be made up in whole or in part in future accounting periods, when
the loss is not expected to be made up, the part that is not expected to be made up is transferred

from other comprehensive income and included in the profit or loss of the current period.
iv. Net investment hedging of overseas operations

Hedging of net investment in overseas operations, including hedging of monetary items that are
accounted for as part of the net investment, is treated by the Company in accordance with

provisions similar to cash flow hedge accounting:

(1) The part of the gain or loss arising from the hedging instrument that is the effective hedging

shall be included in other comprehensive income.

When disposing the overseas operation in whole or in part, the above gains or losses on hedging
instruments included in other comprehensive income shall be transferred out accordingly and

included in current profits and losses.

(2) The portion of the gain or loss arising from the hedging instrument that is invalid shall be

included in the current profit and loss.
v. Terminate the use of hedge accounting

Under any of the following circumstances, the use of hedge accounting shall be terminated:
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(1) Due to the change of risk management objectives, the hedging relationship no Jonger meets the
risk management objectives.

(2) The hedging instrument has expired, been sold, the contract has been terminated or exercised.
(3) There is no longer an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging
instrument, or in the value change generated by the economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument, the influence of credit risk begins to dominate.

(4) The hedging relationship no longer meets other conditions for the application of hedge
accounting methods stipulated in these Standards. If the hedging relationship rebalancing is
applicable, the enterprise shall first consider the hedging relationship rebalancing and then
evaluate whether the hedging relationship meets the conditions for applying the hedge accounting

method stipulated in the Standards.

Termination of hedge accounting may affect the whole or part of the hedging relationship.
When only part of the hedging relationship is affected, the remaining part that is not affected is

still subject to hedge accounting.
vi. Fair value selection of credit risk exposure

When a credit derivative instrument measured at fair value and whose change is recorded in
current profit and loss is used to manage the credit risk exposure of a financial instrument (or its
components), it may be designated as a financial instrument measured at fair value and whose
.change is recorded in current profit and loss when the financial instrument (or its components) is
initially recognized, in subsequent measurement or when it is not yet recognized. And make a

written record at the same time, provided that the following conditions are met:

(1) The subjects of credit risk exposure of financial instruments (such as borrowers or loan

commitment holders) are consistent with the subjects involved in credit derivatives;

(2) The solvency level of the financial instrument is consistent with the solvency level of the

instrument to be delivered under the terms of the credit derivative instrument.

37.Safety production fee

Safety production fees drawn by the company in accordance with national regulations shall be
included in the cost of related products or current profits and losses, and shall be recorded in the
account of "special reserve". If the time spent on production safety is expensed, the special reserve
shall be directly offset. Where fixed assets are formed, the expenditure incurred shall be collected
through the item of "construction under construction”, which shall be recognized as fixed assets
when the safety project is completed and ready for use; At the same time, special reserves shall be

written down according to the cost of forming fixed assets, and the accumulated depreciation of
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the same amount shall be recognized. The fixed asset shall not be depreciated in future periods.

38.Debt restructuring
i. Record debt restructuring obligations as a debtor

Where debt restructuring is carried out by means of asset repayment of debts, the Company shall
terminate the recognition when the relevant assets and the debts repaid meet the conditions for
termination of recognition, and the difference between the carrying value of the debts repaid and

the carrying value of the transferred assets is recorded in the current profit or loss.

Where the debt is restructured by means of equity instruments, the Company shall tenminate the
recognition when the repayment of the debt meets the conditions for the termination of recognition.
When the Company initially recognizes equity instruments, it measures them according to the fair
value of equity instruments, If the fair value of equity instruments cannot be measured reliably, it
measures them according to the fair value of debts repaid. The difference between the carrying
value of the debts repaid and the amount recognized by the equity instruments is included in the

current profit or loss.

If the debt restructuring is carried out by modifying other terms, the Company recognizes and
measures the restructured debt in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standard for
Enterprises No. 22 - Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments and Accounting

Standard for Enterprises No. 37 - Presentation of Financial Instruments.

If the debt is restructured by means of multiple asset repayment or combination, the Company
recognizes and measures the equity instruments and restructured debts in accordance with the
above-mentioned methods, and the difference between the carrying value of the debt repaid and
the carrying value of the transferred assets and the sum of the recognized amounts of the equity

instruments and restructured debits is recorded in the profit or loss of the current period.
ii. Record debt restructuring obligations as a creditor

In the case of debt restructuring by means of asset repayment, the Company shall, when initially
recognizing assets other than the financial assets transferred, measure them at cost, including the
cost of inventory, including the fair value of the relinquished claim and other costs directly
attributable to the asset such as taxes, transportation charges, handling charges, insurance fees and
other costs incurred in bringing the asset to its current position and condition. The cost of an
investment in an associate or joint venture, including other costs such as the fair value of
abandoned claims and taxes directly attributable {o the asset. The cost of investment real estate,
including the fair value of abandoned claims and other costs that can be directly attributed to the

asset, such as taxes. The cost of a fixed asset includes the fair value of the waiver of claims and
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other costs directly attributable to the asset, such as taxes, transportation fees, handling fees,
installation fees, professional service fees, etc. incurred before the asset reaches the intended
usable state. The cost of intangible assets, including the fair value of abandoned claims and other
costs that are directly attributable to taxes incurred in bringing the asset to its intended use. The
difference between the fair value of abandoned claims and the carrying value is included in the

current profit or loss.

Where a debt restructuring by converting debt into equity instruments results in the Company
converting the claim into an equity investment in an associate or joint venture, the Company
measures its initial investment cost at the fair value of the abandoned claim and other costs that
can be directly attributable to the asset, such as taxes. The difference between the fair value of

abandoned claims and the carrying value is included in the current profit or loss.

If the debt restructuring is carried out by modifying other terms, the Company shall recognize and
measure the restructured claims in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standard for

Business Enterprises No. 22 - Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments.

If multiple assets are used for debt restructuring or debt restructuring, the transferred financial
assets and restructured claims shall be recognized and measured first in accordance with the
provisions of Accounting Standards for Enterprises No. 22 - Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Instruments, and then the fair value ratio of the assets other than the transferred financial
assets shall be adopted. The fair value of the abandoned claims shall be allocated after deducting
the recognized amounts of the transferred financial assets and the restructured claims, and on this
basis the cost of each asset shall be determined separately in accordance with the foregoing
method. The difference between the fair value of abandoned claims and the carrying value is

included in the current profit or loss.

39.Changes in significant accounting policies and estimates

i. Changes in accounting policies

Contents and reasons for changes in accounting policies 1 Remarks

As of January 1, 2023, the Company implemented the Accounting Standards Interpretation for Businassl
Enterprises No. 16 issued by the Ministry of Finance in 2022, "Accounting treatment that deferred income: )
tax related fo assets and liabilities arising from single transactions is not applicable to the inilia[

recognition exemption”. |

(1) The impact of the implementation of accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

interpretation No. 16 on the Company

On December 13, 2022, the Ministry of Finance issued Interpretation of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 16 (Finance and Accounting [2022] No. 31, hereinafter referred to as
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"Interpretation No. 16"), interpretation No. 16 "Accounting treatment of deferred income tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from single transactions not applicable to initial recognition
exemption”, effective from January 1, 2023. Allows enterprises to execute ahead of the release
year. The Company implemented the accounting treatment related to this matter during the current

year.

Where deductible temporary differences and taxable temporary differences arise in respect of lease
liabilities and use rights assets recognized as a result of the application of individual transactions
under Interpretation 16 at the beginning of the earliest period for the presentation of the financial
statements under Interpretation 16 for the first time (i.e., January 1, 2022), as well as recognized
anticipated liabilities related to disposal obligations and corresponding related assets, The
Company adjusts the cumulative impact to retained earnings and other related financial statement
items at the beginning of the earliest period for which the financial statements are presented (i.e.
January 1, 2022) in accordance with Interpretation 16 and Accounting Standard for Business

Enterprises No. 18 - Income Tax.

In accordance with the relevant provisions of Interpretation No. 16, the Company has adjusted the

cumulative impact of the relevant items in the financial statements as follows:

1 January 2022 1 January 2022

_Items . Amount originally stated _ I_"Cunlulative irrjp)a_(:ta\mgu_nt__‘i Adjusted amounts presented
Deferred tax assets 1,459,916,391.26 648,045.64! 1,460,564,436.90
Deferred ta;IiaBilities ) 162,481,964.50;~ - : _6_8‘3-,135,.16.3 a _156_5_@6—66
.Sur;;u; r-eserv-e o 2,948,91.9,632.11; -3.508.65T 2,948,91&,1@
Unappropriated p_ro_ﬂt_ ) 7,802,754,907.06I1f - .-31.,57_7.87.5_ - __-7,852,723,329.19

For lease liabilities and use rights assets recognized for individual transactions under
Interpretation 16 that occurred between the beginning of the earliest period for the presentation of
the financial statements for which this interpretation is first applied (i.e., January 1, 2022) and the
date of implementation of the interpretation (January 1, 2023), as well as recognized anticipated
liabilities related to the disposal obligation and corresponding related assets, The Company shall

proceed in accordance with the provisions of Interpretation No. 16.

In accordance with the provisions of Interpretation No. 16, the Company has adjusted the relevant

items of the balance sheet as follows:

31 December 2022
Balance sheetitem  — —— _

Before change Cumulative impéct am(;uﬁt After the che@e.
Deferred tax assets 1,655,{)45,627.715 790703.82) 1,655,836,331.53
. === SR g R s it |8 e .
Deferred tax liabilities 158,331,067.00, 827,756.19| 159,158,823.19
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Balance sheet item

31 December 2022

Before change Cumulative impact amount After the change
Surplus reserve [ 3,038,155,711.33 -3,705:24 3,038,152,006.09
Unappropriated profit E 7,486,625,137.40 -33,347.18 7,466,591,790.27

According to the provisions of Interpretation No. 16, the Company has adjusted the relevant items

in the income statement as follows:

Income statement items

Year 2022

Before change

_Cumulative impact amount

After the change

Income tax expenses -60,047,058.23

1,965.85

-60,045,092.38

ii. Changes in accounting estimates

There has been no change in major accounting estimates during the reporting period.

IV.Taxation

1. Categories of tax and tax rates

Category of taxes Tax basisftype of income Tax rate Note
Income from sales of goods and provision of processing, 13%
repair and repair services i
Sale of real estate 9%
Warehousing and logistics revenue 6%
Value added tax
Taxable service income 6%
The balance of the transfer price of financial commodities 3%. 6%

after deducting the purchase price

Small scale and simple tax method

1% 3% 5%

Revenue from buses with 10-23 seats within 7 meters

i 0,
Consumption tax (including 23 seats) 5%
City maintenance and . o Eo
construction tax Turnover tax paid 7% 5%
Educational surcharge | Turnover tax paid I 3%
Local educational . [ .

 surcharge Turnover tax paid 2%
. = —
Properly tax Tax is based on 70% of the original value of the property 1.0%. 12%

(or rental income)

Explanation of income tax rates of different taxpayers:

n?i?nrit?elr Name of taxpayer Income tax rate
1 Yutong Bus GO.,LTD. 15%
2 Zhengzhou Jingyida Auto Parts Co., Ltd. 15%
3 Zhengzhou Kelin Motor Vehicle Air Conditioning Co.,Lid. 15%
4 ZHENGZHOU JINGYIDA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 25%
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_Eiﬂi;;f Name of taxpayer Income tax rate B
TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD.
B _5 Yutong Hongkong Limited | 16.50%
6 YUTONG RUSSIA LIMITED - B ] 20%
- 7 AUTOBUSES YUTONG DE VENEZUELA, SA. I 34%
8 CATHAYA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED i 0.00%
9 | SINOYUTONG INTERNATIONAL LTD © 1650% o
10 YUTONG MIDDLE EAST FZE : 0.00%
----- 11 YUTONG LUXENBOURG S.AR.L. 26.01% o
12 YUTONG FRANCE SAS 26%
13 YUTONG TANZANIA 30%
14 INSTANT ACCESS LIMITED 20%
15 YUTONG WORLDWIDE FZE . 0.00%
16 YUTONG INTERNATIONAL TRADE PTE.LTD. 17.00%
17 YUTONG HOLDCO PTE.LTD. 17.00%
18 YUTONG AUSTRALIA PTY LTD | 30%
The highest value is taken between
19 YUTONG PHILIPPINES CORPORATION 25% of corporate profits and 1% of
overall revenue
20 YUTONG KAZAKHSTAN LIMITED . 20%
21 | YUTONG SPAIN HOLDCO S.L. i 25%
22 YUTONG PANAMA S.A. 25%
23 YUTONG DE MEXICO S.A. DEC.V. 30%
24 YUTONG COLOMBIA SAS 31%
25 YUTONG CHILE SPA 27%
26 YUTONG CHILE IQUIQUE SPA ‘. 27%
27 | YUTONG-ECUADOR SA. ' 25%
28 | YUTONGPERUSAC. 30% "
29 YUTONG (HK) INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 16.50%
30 Hainan Yaoxing Transportation Group Co., Ltd. [ 15%
31 Haikou Jinlun Transportation Service Co., Ltd. 15%
32 Hainan Yaoxing Group Haikou Wuyue Industrial Co., Ltd. - 20%
33 Hainan Yuxing Road Transportation Co., Ltd. 15%
34 Haikou Yuxing Road Transportation Co., Ltd. 15%
__35 Xizang Kangrui Yingshi Industrial Co., Ltd. 25%
36 Zhengzhou Yucheng Mold Co., Ltd. 15%
37 Zhengzhou Saichuan Electronic Technology Co., Lid. 15%
38 Zhengzhou Chongxin Real Estate Co., Ltd. 25%
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ni:::;l.r Name of taxpayer Income tax rate
39 Zhengzhou Tongrun Real Estate Co., Ltd. 25%
40 . .Ehengzhou Tongzhou Real Estate Co., Ltd. ) _25%
41 Zhengzhou Fengyu Real Estate Co., Ltd. 25%
0 Changsha Economic and Technological Development Zone Sannong 25
Yutong Technology Co., Ltd.
43 Wuhan Yutong Shunjie BUS Industry Co., Lid. 25% -
44 Nanning Yutong Shunjie Bus Co., Ltd. 25%
45 Chengdu Yutong Bus Technology Development Co., Ltd. 20%
46 Zaozhuang Lvxin Ruikong Automobile sales and service Co., Lid. 20%
47 Shenyang Yutong Shunjie Bus Service Co., Ltd. 25%
48 Guangzhou Zhilan Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. 25%
49 Shenzhen Zhilan Automobile Sales Co., Lid. 25%
50 Shenzhen Yutong Zhilian Technology Co., Lid. 25%
51 Changehun Ruiteng Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. 20%
52 Shanghai Yutong Qingpu Automabile Technology Service Co., Lid. 25%
53 Chongging Lvxin Ruikong Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. 20%
54 Qingdao Lvxin Ruikong New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. 25%
55 Shanxi Lvxin Ruikong Automobile Sales Co., Ltd. 20%
56 Harbin Lvxin Automobile Sales Co., Lid. 20%
57 Inner Mongolia Lvxin Ruikong Automobile Sales Co., Ltd. 25%
58 Tianjin Lvxin Ruikong Intelligent Transportation Development Co., Ltd. 25%
59 Lhasa Yutong Shunjie Automobile Sales Co., Ltd. 25%
60 Zhengzhou Tonghe Property Service Co., Ltd. 20%
61 Zhengzhou Tongji Intelligent Technology Co., Lid. 20%
62 Suzhou Wanhao Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. . 20%
63 Zhengzhou Ruitu Industrial Co., Ltd. _ 20%
64 Zhengzhou Ruitan Industrial Co., Ltd. I 20%
65 Zhengzhou Yutong RV Co., Lid. 20%
66 Beijing Changlv Automobile sales service Co., Ltd. 20%
67 Shanghai Pengke Automobile sales service Co., Ltd. | 20%
68 Jinan Changlv Automobile sales service Co., Lid. 20%
69 Shanxi Tuyou Automobile sales service Co., Lid. 20%
70 Guangzhou Changlv Automobile sales service Co., Ltd. 20%
71 Xizang Debai Industrial Co., Lid. 20%
72 Shenzhen Yuxin Automobile sales service Co., Ltd. 20%
73 Xizang Deyou Industrial Co., Ltd. 20%
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Serial |

number | I N_ame of tgi(p_alygr_ - . !_ﬁme tax rate_ -
[CI Jiangsu Lvxin Transportation Industry Co., Ltd. 25%

_-__7-5_ -?-Hangzho-ﬁ-l._\;xin R;k_ong AutoRJ_b_iIe Sale;and égrv_ige Co.,?(;. I - 2-0"/:;_ -

- 76 | Hebei Xiongan Lvxin Ruikong New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. | 20”/: . B

2. Preferential tax and approval documents

On December 13, 2023, the Office of the Leading Group for the Identification and Management of
Nationa)] high-tech Enterprises in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Measures for the
Identification and Management of High-tech Enterprises (GuoKefei [2016] 32) and the Guidelines
for the Identification and Management of High-tech Enterprises (GuoKefei [2016] 195),
Announcement on the filing of the first batch of high-tech enterprises certified and reported by the
Henan Provincial certification Agency in 2023, The Company, its subsidiary Zhengzhou Jinda
Auto Parts Co., LTD., its holding subsidiary Zhengzhou Collin Automotive Air Conditioning Co.,
LTD., its holding subsidiary Xizang Kangrui Yingshi Industrial Co., LTD. Zhengzhou Saichuan
Electronic Technology Co., LTD., the holding subsidiary of the company, passed the identification
of high-tech enterprises, and the certificate number is: GR202341001314, GR202341002846,
GR202341001356, GR202341001705, valid for three years (2023, 2024, 2025); According to the
relevant provisions, the company will enjoy the relevant preferential policies of the state on

high-tech enterprises, and pay enterprise income tax at a tax rate of 15%.

On December 30, 2022, according to the relevant provisions of the Measures for the Identification
and Management of High-tech Enterprises (Guoke Fafo (2016) No. 32) and the Guidelines for the
Identification and Management of High-tech Enterprises (Guoke Fafo (2016) No. 195), the first
batch of high-tech enterprises identified by Henan Provincial accreditation institutions in 2022
were announced for filing. Zhengzhou Yucheng Mold Co.,Ltd., the holding subsidiary of Xizang
Kangrui Yingshi Industrial Co.,Ltd., has been identified as a high-tech enterprise, the certificate
number is GR202241001194, and the validity period is three years (2022, 2023, 2024). According
to relevant regulations, the company will enjoy the relevant preferential policies of the state on

high-tech enterprises, and pay corporate income tax at the tax rate of 15%.

According to the Notice on Printing and Distributing Several Policies to Further Encourage the
Development of Software Industry and Integrated Circuit Industry (Guo Fa (2011) No. 4) and the
Notice on Value-added Tax Policies for Software Products (Finance and Taxation (2011) No. 100),
after general VAT taxpayers sell software products developed and produced by themselves, VAT is
levied at the rate of 13%. The policy is implemented for the part of their actual VAT tax burden
exceeding 3%, and the VAT of subsidiaries Shenzhen Yutong Zhilian Technology Co., Ltd. and
Zhengzhou Jingyida Auto Parts Co., Ltd. is applicable to this policy.
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According to the Announcement of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of
Taxation on the Further Implementation of Preferential Income Tax Policies for Small and micro
Enterprises (Announcement No. 13 of 2022), from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2024, the
annual taxable income of small and micro profit enterprises exceeding 1 million yuan but not
exceeding 3 million yuan shall be included in the taxable income at a reduced rate of 25%. Pay
corporate income tax at a rate of 20%. According to the Announcement of the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Taxation on Preferential Income Tax Policies for Small and Micro
Enterprises and Individual Industrial and Commercial Households (No. 6 of 2023), from January 1,
2023 to December 31, 2024, the annual taxable income of small and micro profit enterprises does
not exceed 1 million yuan, reduced by 25%, shall be included in the taxable income. Pay corporate
income tax at a rate of 20%. According to the Announcement of the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation on Further Supporting the Development of Small and Micro
Enterprises and Individual Industrial and Commercial Enterprises (No. 12 of 2023), from January
1, 2023 to December 31, 2027, Resource tax (non-water-containing resource tax), urban
maintenance and construction tax, real estate tax, urban land use tax, stamp tax (excluding stamp
tax on securities transactions), cultivated land occupation tax, education fee surcharge and local
education surcharge shall be levied b}'/ half on small-scale taxpayers, small micro-profit enterprises
and individual industrial and commercial households, and the taxable income amount shall be
reduced by 25% for small micro-profit enterprises. The policy of paying corporate income tax at a

rate of 20% will be continued until December 31, 2027,

V.Notes to consolidated financial statements

(The following units of amounts are all RMB yuan unless otherwise specified, and the end of the
period refers to December 31, 2023, the beginning of the period refers to January 1, 2023, and the
end of the previous period refers to December 31, 2022)

1.Cash and Cash equivalents

ftem - Closing balance | Opening balance
Cash on hand 219,477.34 1,115,868.17
Bank deposits - 4,244,018,032.49 4,201,142,808.31
Other cash balances i 142,157,013.28 6,556,058.86
Amount of funds deposited in finance | 2047 414.127.48 | 2 825,809,200.61
_company S S | - —— —
Total ! 6,433,808,650.59 | 7,034,623,944.95
Including: Total amount deposited in _ 304,609,216.55 672,079.974.10

foreign countries

As of 31 December 2023,details of restricted funds:
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ltem Closing balance Opening balance
-_S-;c:urity deposit for mort-g;ge 1(-),_885.00 807,921.26
Bank acceptance margir: o 6,874,245.1; B 6,556,058.86
Funds in transit _127,617,367.29
— Letter o?credit deposit- o o - ‘4,740,000.00 o
) Deposit money for investment 2,641,997.58 o
Letter of guarantee 65,149.96
' Total 141,949,644.95 7.363980.12

2.Financial assets held for trading

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
. Financial assets at fair Vall_Je through profit or loss 100,121,315.07 22,110.96
Forward foreign exchange contract 22,110.96
Wealth management products 100,121,315.07 -
Total 100,121,315.07 22,110.96

Description of trading financial assets:

The significant increase in the balance of trading financial assets at the end of the period

compared with the beginning of the period was mainly caused by the increase in financial

products held at the end of the period.

3.Notes receivable

i. Categories of notes receivable

Item Closing balance Opening halance
Bank acceptances 245,723,606.09 254,522,810.92
Commercial acceptances 930,201.68 12,113,397.75
Total 246,653,807.77 266,636,208.67

ii. Notes receivable disclosed by provision of bad debts

Closing balance
Category Book balance Bad debt provision .
Proportion Proportion Carrying amount
Amount (%) Amount %)

Bad debt provision assessed

individually 3

Bad deb provision assessed by 246,702,765.75 | 100.00 48,957.98 002 |  246653,807.77

_ groups B

Including:Bank acceptances 245,723,606.09 99.60 245,723,606.09

Notes to financial statements Page.71




Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.

For the year ended 31 december 2023

Notes to the financial statements

English translation for reference only

Closing balance

Category Book balance | Bad debt provision
Anlwount Proportion Armount T Proportion |  Garrying amount
- %) | B
Commercial acceptances 979,159.66 0.40 48,957.98 i 5.00 930,201.68
Total 246,702,765.75 ] 100.00 48,957.98 0.02 246,653,807.77
Continued:
Opening balance
Category Book balance Bad debt provision
| Proportion Proportion |  Carying amount
_ Amount (%) Amount %)
Bad debt provision assessed ]
individually
Siduﬁﬁbt provislon assessed by 267,273,755.92 | 100.00 637,547.25 024 |  266,636,208.67
Including:Bank acceptances 254,522,810.92 95.23 254,522,810.92
Commercial acceptances 12,750,945.00 477 637,547.25 5,00 12,113,397.75
Total 267,273,755.92 100.00 637,547.25 0.24 266,636,208.67
iii. Provision, recovery or reversal of bad debt provision during the year
_— Opening Changes in the current period Closing
balance Pravision Recglel Write-off Other balance
or reversal changes
Bad debt provision assessed
_individually
Bad debt provision assessed by 63754725 | -568,589.27 48,957.98
groups
Including:Bank acceptances
Commercial acceptances 637,547.25 -588,589.27 48,957.98
Total 637,547.25 -588,589.27 48,957.98

iv. Endorsed or discounted notes receivable that is not yet matured as at the end of the

reporting period

[tem

Amount derecognized as at the end of

Amount not derecognized as at the end

|
the reporting period I of the reporting period
Bank acceptances ! 73,213,569.91
Total 73,213,569.91

4.Accounts receivable

i. Accounts receivable disclosed by aging

Aging

Closing balance

Opening balance

Within 1 year

2,498,308,727.73

3,131,530,093.58
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Aging Closing balance Opening balance
1—2 years 1,099,670,542.39 628,991,908.46
2—3 years ’. 495,093,072.26 401,230,838.86
3—4 years 268,297,625.95 175,269,638.15
4—5 years 147,189,357.74 384,536,627.47
More than 5 years 1,174,962,082.55 864,643,103.17
Subtotal 5,683,521,408.62 5,586,202,209.69
Less: bad debt provision 1,714,728,514.36 1,496,524,274 .42
Total 3,968,792,894.26 4,089,677,935.27
ii. Accounts receivable disclosed by provision of bad debts
Closing balance
Category Book balance Bad debt provision
Proportion Proportion |  Carrying amount
- Amount (%) Amount (%)
Bad debt provision assessed
individually 50,429,451.81 0.89 25,163,248.91 49.90 25,266,202.90
b assessed | 5on0001056.81 | 9941 | 1,68056526545 | 2099 | 394352669136
y groups
Including:Aging portfolio 5,611,308,491.98 98.73 1,672,391,691.50 29.80 | 3,938,916,800.48
High risk portfolio 21,783,464.83 0.38 17,173573.95 78.84 4,609,890.88
Total 5,683,521,408.62 100.00 1,714,728514.36 3017 | 3,968,792,894.26
Continued:
Opening balance
Category Book balance Bad debt provision
Proportion Proportion |  Carrying amount
Amount (%) Amount )
Bad debt provision assessed 62,485,081.51 142 3075241101 | 6362 | 2273267040
individually
Bad debt provision assessed | 50374712818 | 98.88 |  1456,771863.31 |  26.37 | 4,066,945264.87
by groups o
Including:Aging portfolio 5,503,094,664.47 98.51 1,440,377,489.43 2617 | 4,062,717,175.04
High risk portfolio 20,622,463.71 0.37 16,394,373.88 |  79.50 4,228,089.83
Total 5,586,202,209.69 100.00 1,496,524,274.42 26.79 4,089,677,935.27
Bad debt provision assessed individually
Closing balance
Company name
Book balance Bad debt provision Proportion (%) Reason
Customer 1 17,993,002.42 899,650.12 5.00 Expected unrecoverable
Customer 2 17,172,495.14 17,172,495.14 100.00 Expected unrecoverable
Customer 3 10,216,063.25 2,043,212.65 20.00 Expected unrecoverable
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Closing balance

Company name T
Book balance Bad debt provision | Proportion (%) | Reason
Customer 4 5,047,891.00 5,047,891.00 100.00 Expected unrecoverable
Tota 50,429,451.81 25,163,248.91 JI

Bad debt provision assessed by groups

(1) Aging portfolio

Aging portii o Closing balance B
Book halance Bad debt provision Proportion (%)

Within 1 year 2,494,262,350.16 124,713,117.64 5.00

1—2years 1,099,432,252.39 109,943,225.24 10.00 o
2—3 years 457,290,251.74 91,458,050.34 20.00

3—4 years 265,943,555.89 106,377,422.35 40.00

4—5 years | 136,200,514.68 81,720,308.81 60.00

More than 5 years 1,158,179,567.12 1,158,179,567.12 100.00

Total 5,611,308,491.98 1,672,391,691.50

(2) High risk portfolio

High risk portfolio e
Book halance Bad debt provision Proportion (%)

HVT/ithin 1 year 1,884,697.60 1,884,697.60 100.00

1—2 years 238,290.00 238,290.00 100.00

2—3 years 2,083,144.56 2,083,144.56 100.00

3—4 years 2,191,172.09 2,191,172.09 100.00

4-—5 years 4,577,604.45 4,544 947.25 99.29

More than 5 years 10,808,556.13 6,231,322.45 57.65

Total 21,783,464.83 17,173,573.95
iii. Provision, recovery or reversal of bad debt provision during the year
' Changes in the current period .

Category Opening balance Brovision Rigg;ﬁglor Wiiteoff C l?at:g;s Closing balance
gsgeggzg‘:;‘gﬁr;"y 3975241111 | 372187338 | 18,311,035.58 25,163,248.91
52&2225"5332325 | 4SBT | 2331740316 | 524,061.02 1,689,565,265.45
Including:Aging portfolio : 1,440,377,489.43 | 232,532,864.29 518,662.22 1,672,391,691.50

High risk portfolio I 16,394,373.88 784,598.87 5,398.80 17,173,573.95

Total 1,496,524,274.42 | 237,039,336.54 | 18,311,035.58 ! 524,061.02 1,714,728,514.36
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iv. Accounts receivable written off as at the end of the reporting period

Item

Amount of write-off

Actual write-off of accounts receivable

524,061.02

v. Top five accounts receivable based on debtors

Company | gy | Convactases | UL IESET | Prootinof | et s
| Closing balance | - Closing balance |

Number 1 r 966,723,147.12 37,535,674.00 1,004,258,821.12 17.23 165,082,248.27
Number 2 975,967,874.26 375,967,874.26 B 16.74 952,002,459.21

| Number 3 | 589,413,169.64 589,413,169.64 10.11 45,647,214.98
— Number 4 } 151 ,29:1,194.72 1 151,294,194.72 260 143,429,067.80
Number 5 138,531,400.00 o 138,531,400.00 2.38 6,926,570.00
Total 2,821,929,785.74 37,535,674.00 2,859,465,459.74 49.06 1,313,087,560.26

5.Financing receivables

i

Financing receivables situation

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Bank acceptances 211,076,691.04 62,257,015.37
Total 211,076,691.04 62,257,015.37

ii. Changes in receivables financing and fair value changes during the current period

Opening balance LG char;ﬂiz In the ourrent Closing balance
ltem Cost Fair value Cost b Fair value Cost Fair value
change change change
Bank acceptances | 62,257,015.37 148,819,675.67 211,076,691.04
H1t 62,257,015.37 148,819,675.67 211,076,691.04

The Company believes that the fair value of the financing of receivables measured at fair value

and whose changes are included in other comprehensive income is consistent with the carrying

value because the remaining term is not long.

iii. Endorsed or discounted notes receivable that is not yet matured as at the end of the

reporting period

item Amount derecognized as at the end of | Amount not derecognized as at the end
the reporting period of the reporting periad
Bank acceptances 344,825,653.67
Total 344,825,653.67
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iv. Other instructions on financing receivables

The ending balance of receivables financing increased by 239.04% from the beginning of the

period, mainly due to the increase of customers' settlement of payments with bank acceptance bills

during the period.

6.Prepayments

i. Aging analysis of prepayments

Closing balance

Opening balance

Aging :
Amount Proportion(%}) Amount Proportion(%)
Within 1 year 644,378,655.91 87.52 657,525,198.95 97.64
1-2 years 88,521,846.03 12.02 15,840,719.96 2.35 |
2-3 years 3,421,877.76 0.46 33,920.00 0.01
More than 3 years 3,000.00 0.00 22,942.81 0.00
Total 736,325,379.70 100.00 673,422,781.72 100.00

ii. Explanation of reasons why significant prepayments older than one year have not been

settled in time

Company name Closing balance Aging ng?-zsect)tr;esn:?ernt
Supplier 1 64,603,767.45 | 1-2 years Not delivered
Supplier 2 14,591,496.00 1-2 years Not delivered
Total 79,195,263.45

iii. Top five prepayments based on the payers

Company name Closing balance Probpsgti]%r; ?E/S)tal E Time of advance payment r?oia-assggﬁax;
Number 1 203,255,323.05 27.60 Within 1 year. 1-2years | Not delivered
- Number 2 58,246,619.75 7.91 Within 1 year Not delivered
Number 3 ‘ 49,096,682.75 6.67 Within 1 year. 1-2 years | Not delivered
Number 4 _37,899,000.00 515 | Within 1 year. 1-2years | Notdelivered
Number 5 37,164,074.43 5.05 l Within 1 year Not delivered
Total o 385,661,699.98 52.38

7.0ther receivables

ftem Closing balance Opening balance
Dividends receivable 4,504,187.49
Other receivables 1,020,759,936.91 911,664,434.07
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ltem Closing balance : Opening balance
Total 1,020,759,936.91 : 916,168,621.56

Note: Other receivables listed in the form listed above refers to other receivables excluding

interests receivable and dividends receivable.

i. Dividends receivable

Investee Closing balance Opening balance
Suzhou Qianji Zekang investment Center (limited partnership) | 4,504,187.49
Total 4,504,187.49

ii. Other receivables

(1)Aging analysis

Aging Closing balance Opening balance
Within 1 year 417,959,620.12 311,925,126.68
‘7—2 years 208,857,431.25 285,632,863.34
2—3 years 266,011,797.91 312,896,775.09
3—4 years 257,671,099.66 177,631,491.74
4—5 years 170,786,278.99 3,424,178.98
More than 5 years 9,631,149.75 31,670,647.61
Subtotal 1,330,917,377.68 1,123,181,083.44
Less: bad debt provision 310,157,440.77 | 211,516,649.37
Total 1,020,759,936.91 911,664,434.07

(2)Details of classification by nature

Nafure Closing balance Opening balance
Employee loans 18,402,670.02 39,491,679.85
Temporary payment 105,844,391.60 102,474,861 47
Security deposit 1,206,670,316.06 960,214,542.12
Equity transfer fee ; . 21,000,000.00
Subtotal 1,330,917,377.68 ' - 1,123,181,083.44
. Less: bad debt provision 310,157,440.77 211,516,649.37
Total 1,020,759,936.91 911,664,434.07

(3)Disclosed by bad debt provision methods

Closing balance

Category , Book balance Bad debt provision
| Proportion | Garrying amount
(%)

Proportion

(%) Amount

Amount
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f Closmg balance

Category Book balance Bad debt pl’OVISIOﬂ _
- _. Proportion | _ T Proportion | Carrying amount
S pront L o] |
Bad debt provision assessed 41,436.60 | 0. 00 41 43660 | 10000
individually — gl S itet S S
S;d_ssbt provision assessady | 433067504108 | 10000 | 31011600417 | 2330 | 1,020,759,936.91
Including:Aging portfolio 1 330,875, 941 08 100.00 310,116,004.17 23.30 1,020, 759 936 91
Total 1 330,917, 377 68 100.00 310,157,440.77 23.30 I 1,020,759,936.91
Continued:
Opemng balance
Category Book halance I Bad deb prowsmn i
- | Proportion " Proportion | Camying amount
] Amount % | Amount (%) )
Bad debt provision assessed | 53 175 841,44 2.06 2317684144 | 100.00 |
individually I | - .
Efoig;’bt provision assessed by | 4 10000400000 | o794 | 18833980798 | 1742 | 91166443407
- H ! |
Including:Aging portfolio : 1,100,004,242.00 97.94 : 188,339,807.93 ‘. 1712 | 911,664,434.07
== i = — { - i i
Total 1,123,181,083.44 100.00 i 211,516,649.37 | 18.83 : 911,664,434.07
Bad debt provision assessed individually
Closing balance
Company name - e S e ——— et
Book balance | Bad debt provision Propomon (% i Reason
Customer 1 41,436.60 ] 41,436.60 | 100.00 :' Expected unrecoverable
= = e = 1 . s— | _— S
Total 41,436.60 41,436.60 i 100.00

Bad debt provision assessed by groups

1) Aging portfolio

Closing balance

Aging portfolio =
Book balance

Bad debt provision Proportion (%) o
wnhm Iyear 41795062012 _ 089798103 500
1-2 years__“ - 208,857,431. 25 | [ 20,885,743.14 I 10.00 o
_ELS ;eai - : 266,011,797.91#:— . _5_3,2_05,359.59 'l 20.00 o
3—4 years | 257,671,099.66 103,068,439.86 | 40.00
4*‘?}79; [ _170,786,278.99 o 102,471,767. 40 60.00
More than 5_years ___9,589,713.15 | o -::__9,589:713? 100 0_0 -
Total 1,330,875,941.08 | 310,116,004.17 [
Provision for bad debts is based on the general model of expected credit losses
Bad debt provision ll Stage | i Stage !l Stage Il Total

|
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Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
impaired) (impaired) -

Opening balance . 188,339,807.93 23,176,841.44 211,516,649.37

12-month ECL

" Opening balance inthe |
_current period |

—Transfer to Stage ||

" Transfer to Stage Il

~ —Reverse to Stage Il

" _Reverse to Stage |

Provision 121,776,196.24 121,776,196.24

Reversal

Elimination

Write-off 23,135,404.84 23,135,404.84

Other changes
Closing balance 310,116,004.17 41,436.60 310,157,440.77

(4)Provision, recovery or reversal of bad debt provision during the year

Changes in the current period
Category Opening balance Closing balance
Provision Recovery or [ Write-off Other ’
reversal | changes .
Bad debt provision |
assessed individually 23,176,841.44 23,135,404.84 41,436.60
Bad debt provision
sssessed by, groups 188,339,807.93 | 121,776,196.24 310,116,004.17
Including:Aging portfolio 188,339,807.93 | 121,776,196.24 310,116,004.17
Total 211,516,649.37 | 121,776,196.24 23,135,404.84 310,157,440.77

(5)Other receivables written off as at the end of the current period

ltem Amount of write-off

Actual write-off of other receivables 23,135,404.84

Significant write-off of other receivables:

Company Nature of other Amount of Reason for Pracedures Is it arising from related
name receivables write-off write-off performed party transactions?
Approved by
Customer 1 Temporary payment | 23,135,404.84 | Not recoverable No
management
Total 23,135,404.84

(6)Top five other receivables based on debtors

Commpan Proportion to the total | Closing balance
pany Nature Closing balance Aging closing balance of other|  of bad debt
name . -
receivables (%) provision
Within 1 year,
Number 1 | Security deposit 1,060,528,439.41 | 1—2years,2—3 years,3 79.68 268,527,930.83
) —4 years, 4—5 years
Number 2 | Security deposit 130,980,661.86 V\Q't_r"; :/g’:;r 9.84 7,325,867.30
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Compan Proportion to the tofal | Closing balance
nar?we y Nature Closing balance Aging closing balance of other|  of bad debt
: _j | receivables (%) provision
- | S | . -
Number 3 | Temporary payment 25,859,562.21 3—4 years [ 1.94 10,343,824.88
Number 4 { Temporary payment 8,636,764.50 Within 1 year [ 0.65 431,838.23
Number 5 ‘ Temporary payment 7,980,000.00 Within 1 year | 0.60 399,000.00
- —1
Total 1,233,985,427.98 | 92.71 287,028,461.24
8.Inventories

i. Categories

Closing balance

Opening balance

ftem

Provision for . Provision for .
Book balance impairment Carrying amount Book balance impaiment Carrying amount
Raw materials | 1,300,024.780.98 | 153,294,512.57 | 1,155730,268.41 | 1406,156,983.52 | 112,069,167.73 | 1,204,087,815.79
Work in process | 400,755,032.69 42,968.21 400,712,064.48 416,577,505.00 696,406.58 415,881,098.42
Homemade
semi-finished 142,447,688.58 5,282,803.27 137,164,885.31 34,551,677.14 4,527,841.27 30,023,735.87
products
Finish goods 696,320,398.86 9,602,860.05 686,717,538.81 287,545,525.20 8,465,059.23 279,080,465.97
Development
t 1,146,113,946.23 1,146,113,946.23 | 1,908,881,699.66 1,908,881,699.66
costs
Development
878,675,736.06 | 15,398,551.18 863,277,184.88 978,418,396.77 25,711,371.70 952,707,025.07
products
Contract
performance 123,572,109.16 123,572,109.16 12,889,426.77 12,889,426.77
costs -
Total 4,696,909,692.56 | 183,621,695.28 | 4,513,287,997.28 | 5,045,021,114.06 | 151,469,846.51 | 4,893,551,267.55

ii. Provision for inventory depreciation and provision for contract performance cost

impairment
Opening Increase in the current period Decrease in the current period
ltem bal l Closing balance
aignge Provision Others | Reversal | Elimination | Others
Raw materials 112,069,167.73 | 112,005,107.24 | -36,154.03 70,743,608.37 153,294,512.57
Work in process 696,406.58 42,968.21 696,406.58 42,968.21
Homemade

4,527,841.27 2,132,649.92 1,377,687.92 5,282,803.27

semi-finished products
Finish goods 8,465,059.23 9,386,668.36 8,248,867.54 9,602,860.05
Development products | 25,711,371.70 -5,095,401.34 5217,419.18 15,398,551.18
Total 161,469,846.51 | 118,471,992.39 -36,154.03 | 86,283,989.59 183,621,695.28
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iii. Development costs

| Time of Estimated total This period turns
ltem ‘ ForiTanEEm Estimated time |  investment Opening balance Increase in the tothe
ent of completion | (ten thousand pening current period development of
- yuan) _ products
Jingjuiiayuan NEEE 306,640.00 |  268,567,187.14 | 110260,04647 |  -7,349,502.07
" ‘ :
ZhongGong C land July 2019 ggg’gmber 287,004.00 |  611,053,536.06 -377,976.97
Yutong.Fenghuangyuefu ggzvgmber February 2024 | 197,610.00 | 1,029,260976.46 | 170,127,503.62 | 1,050,127,818.62
Total 1,908,881,699.66 | 280,010,473.12 | 1,042,778,226.55
Continued:
Other decreases Including: amount of
. Accumulated amount | . Tt Source of
Item for the purrent Closing balance of interest capitalized .|nterestcap|tal|zgd funds
period in the current period
Jingiujiayuan 386,177,725.68 Other
ZhongGong C land 610,675,559.09 Other
Yutong.Fenghuangyuefu 149,260,661.46 Other
Total 1,146,113,946.23
iv. Development products
Inciuding:
Accumulat amount of
Time of . Increase in the Decrease in the Closing ed amount interest
ltem completion peiinglsience current period current period balance ofinterest | capitalized in
capitalized the current
period
Yutong
Dingxinjlayuan June 2019 903,451,555.38 261,199,702.51 | 642,251,852.87
Jingiujiayuan June 2021 65,374,896.73 -7,349,592.07 16,234,216.94 | 41,791,087.72
I;;%’;%rengh”a March 2023 1,050,127,818.62 | 906,458,555.13 | 143,669,263.49
D 0,501,04466 |  86.277,301.85 | 4490571453 | 50,963,531.98
Total 978,418,396.77 | 1,129,055,528.40 | 1,228,798,189.11 | 878,675,736.06
9.Contract assets
i. Contract assets
Closing balance Opening balance
ltem i P
Book balance P_rowgonfor Carrying amount | Book balance Ffrowgonfor Canying
impairment impairment amount
zgfr’;ﬂtfd 4869619165 |  6,559,360.00 |  42,136,83156 | 71,650,21557 | 5835949.39 | 65,814,266.18
State financial |
subsidies for new 37,535,674.00 3,097,050.00 34,438,624.00 | 434,894,474.20 | 23,598,440.58 | 411,296,033.62
enerqgy
Local financial
subsidies for new 21,753,600.00 1,087,680.00 20,665,920.00 20,305,987.50l 1,015,299.38 19,290,688.12
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Closing balance Opening balance
ltem o Provision for ' Provisionfor |  Ca o
. rrying
I | Book befl‘anfe | impairment ‘Carrymg amount | Book balance | impairment Amatnt
energy .
I
Completed but | [ R I -
unsettied |
) 37,562,380.29 7,277,619.01 30,274,761.28 | 36,000,000.00 | 3,600,000.00 | 32,400,000.00
construction
contracts _
Total 145,537,845.94 18,021,709.10 127,516,136.84 | 562,850,677.27 | 34,049,689.35 | 528,800,987.92

ii. Provision for impairment of contract assets in the current period

Oveni Changes in the current period .
ltem pening I e : T Closing
balance Provision ECOVETY O | yite-off = balance
reversal | changes |

Unexpired warranty 5,835,949.39 723,410.70 6,559,360.09

State financial subsidies for R

" 23,598,440.58 -20,501,390.58 3,097,050.00

Local inancidl subidies for 1,015,299.38 72,380.62 1,087,680.00

new energy

Completed but unsettled

construction contracts 3,600,000.00 3,677,619.01 7,277,619.01
Total 34,049,689.35 -16,027,980.25 18,021,709.10

iii. Other description of the contract assets

The balance of contract assets at the end of the period decreased by 75.89% compared with the

beginning of the period, mainly due to the transfer of national financial subsidies for new energy

that reached the standard at the end of the period.

10.Current portion of non-current assets

ltem Ciosing balance Opening balance
_Lc-)ng-term receivables due within one year 123,806,153.89 216,593,336.86
Debt investments due within one year 406,341,732.64 151,010,625.00
R Total 530,147,886.53 367,603,961.86

Description of non-current assets maturing within one year:

The ending balance of non-current assets maturing within one year increased by 44.22% from the

beginning of the period, mainly due to the increase in the amount of certificates of deposit

purchased by the company maturing within one year.

i. Long-term receivables due within one year are detailed in Note V/13.

ii. Debt investments due within one year:
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Closing balance

Opening balance

Item

| Provision for . Provision for | Carrm o
L Book balance | impairment Carrying amount Book balance impairment | amount
Certificates |
406,341,732.64 406,341,732.64 | 151,010,625.00 | 151,010,625.00
of deposit
Total 406,341,732.64 406,341,732.64 | 151,010,625.00 151,010,625.00

11.0Other current assets

i. Other current assets shall be listed by item

[tem Closing balance Opening balance
VAT retained 182,678,796.58 116,695,413.67
Input tax to be certified - 4,248,052.97 206,396.55
Deferred expenses 30,424 ,461.36 37,670,717.38
Pay taxes 'irTadvance 33,925,323.37 8,961,865.71
The hedged itel.n 21,731,139.40 . 1,882,729.07
Certificates of deposit 110,737,222.21
Government bond reverse repurchase 1,041,180,000.00
Wealth management products 300,876,164.38

Total 1,725,801,160.27 165,417,122.38

Description of other current assets:

The ending balance of other current assets increased 943.30% from the beginning of the period,

mainly due to the addition of short-term financial products during the period.

12.Debt investments

i. Details of debt investments

Closing balance I Opening balance
ter) Book balance Provision for Carrying amount Book balance o Carrying amount
impairment impairment
gggéiftates of | 540593,732.66 | 540,503,732.66 | 542,837,270.82 | 542,837,270.82
Subtotal 540,593,732.66 540,593,732.66 | 542,837,270.82 542,837,270.82
Less: Debt [
investments due | 406,341,732.64 406,341,732.64 | 151,010,625.00 151,010,625.00
within one year
Total 134,252,000.02 134,252,000.02 | 391,826,645.82 391,826,645.82

Description of Debt investments:

The ending balance of debt investment decreased by 65.74% compared with the beginning, which
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was mainly caused by the reclassification of the amount of the large CDS purchased by the

company that matured within one year.

13.Long-term receivables

i. Details of long-term receivables

| Closing balance | Opening balance o Discounted

Item ; ;
Bad debt Carrying Bad debt . rate interval
Book balance provision amount Book balance orovision Carrying amount

Collection by
installments — sale of 172,226,220.83| 22,666,090.46| 149,560,130.37{ 341,070,734.62| 29,020,691.27| 312,050,043.35| 3.5%-4.75%
goods
e SSHUITEAZ6a 3,863,581.92 3863581.92  14,170,49381 14,170,493.81
financing income . |

Less: Long-term _ [
receivables due within . 143,211,287.85| 19,405,133.96/ 123,806,153.89 237,917,299.15! 21,323,962.29| 216,593,336.86
one year | |

Total 25,151,351.06| 3,260,956.50| 21,890,394.56 88,982,941.66! 7,696,728.98| 81,286,212.68

ii. Details of bad debt provision

Changes in the current period
ltem Opening balance ing balance
: S Provision Recovery or Write-off Sliper R
reversal changes

Collection by
installments — sale of 29,020,691.27 -6,354,600.81 22,666,090.46
goods I
Less: Long-term E
receivables due within | 21,323,962.29 -1,918,828.33 19,405,133.96
one year

Total 7,696,728.98 -4,435,772.48 3,260,956.50

iii. Long-term receivables Other description

The ending balance of long-term receivables decreased by 73.07% from the beginning of the
period, mainly due to a decrease in the Company's contracts with a significant financing

component during the current period.

14.Long-term equity investments

Openi Changes for the current period
el ' " Adjustment to
Opening balance of | : justment to
Investee balance provision for |  Additional | Decrease in olpl\:) zsst;e:etggggir::d other
impairment | investment | investment . comprehensiv
) 1 . under equity method ie o
|. Joint ventures
TOO "QazTehna" 776.00 43,460,038.57 | 1,407,858.11
Subtotal 776.00 43,460,038.57 | 1,407,858.11
I.Associates
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Oveni Changes for the current period
e ' Adjustment t
Opening balance of ; justment to
INgestop balance provision for Additional | Decrease in Olpl\gzsst;nsegcggﬁg: q other
impairment | investment investment under equity method comprehensiv
I o - L qutty e income
Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd. 994,451,984.91 | 50,207,723.59
Guangzhou Yuhao Automabile Sales Co.,Ltd. 2,488,178.79 25,421.64
Ningbo Zhequan Trading Co. Ltd. 800,000.00 12,647.39
Subtotal i 996,940,163.70 800,000.00 50,245,792.62
Total 996,940,163.70 800,776.00 | 93,705,831.19 | 1,407,858.11
Continued:
. Changes for the current period | Closing balance
Investee Other equity DES?Jggdcifh Provision for | Closing balance | of provision for
changes . impairment impairment
profit
|. Joint ventures
TOO "QazTehna" 11,350,203.63 56,218,876.31
Subtotal 11,350,203.63 56,218,876.31
Il.Associates
Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd. 454,659,708.50 1,044,659,708.50 | 454,659,708.50
Guangzhou Yuhao Automobile Sales
2,513,600.43
Co.,Ltd.
Ningbo Zhequan Trading Co.,Ltd. 812,647.39
Subtotal 454,659,708.50 1,047,985,956.32 | 454,659,708.50
Total 11,350,203.63 454,659,708.50 1,104,204,832.63 | 454,659,708.50

Long-term Equity Investment note:

The increase in the ending balance of long-term equity investment impairment reserve compared
with the beginning of the period is mainly due to the company's judgment that there are signs of
equity impairment in Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. based on the changes in the
macro environment of the financial leasing industry, the securities market conditions of financial
institutions in the same industry and the company's transfer quotation. Therefore, according to the
provisions of Accounting Standards for Enterprises No. 8 - Asset Impairment, Estimate the
recoverable amount of long-term equity investments and make a corresponding provision for asset
impairment in accordance with the portion of the recoverable amount of the asset that is lower

than its carrying value.

15.0ther equity instruments investments

i. Details of other equity instruments investments
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Changes for the current period
- . - Loss recognized in
| . Gains recognized as )
Item Opening balance | qgitional Decrease in |other comprehensive othher . l’ Others Closing balance
investment investment |income in the current|  COTPTENENSVE: | :
eriod income in the
. - . o P current period
Beijing Sinohytec Co.,Ltd. |  290,015,546.00 39,050,183.06 250,965,362.94
Zhengzhou Yutong Group
Finance Co, Ltd. . 150,000,000.00 42,150,000.00 192,150,000.00
Chinese Cullure
lI(Shanghai)Equity 252,491,804.50 7,810,031.53 54,453,372.97 190,228,400.00
Investment Center(L.P.) | - |
Suzhou Qianji Zekang
Investment Center (L.P.) 239,914,614.92 n '_6_,174,398.82 55,717,616.10 178,022,600.00~
Herun Linghang harvest
investment preferred
Sl e 180,283,194.92 5,376,394.92 174,906,800.00
fund —
Shanghai Refire Group
199,545,335.00 31,725,335.00 167,820,000.00
Limited
Suzhou Industrial Park
Huizhen Equity 82,710,801.39 9,737,801.39 72,973,000.00
Investment Center (L.P.)
Harvest Pioneer Fund L.P.| 110,844,234.60 52,071,234.60 58,773,000.00
Herun Linghang Harvest
investment new
technology investment 38,492,909.77 8,027,690.23 46,520,600.00
fund No.3
Beijing Zhidu Depu Equity
Investment Center (L.P.) 52,163,998.30 16,968,800.72 10,842,402.4:-2“ 46,037,600.00
Guogi (Beijing) Intelligent
and Connected Vehicle
Research Institute 48,079,642.00 15,579,642.00 32,500,000.00
Co.,Ltd.
Zhengzhou Anchi
Guarantee Co.L{d. 13,340,000.00 11,601,700.00 24,941,700.00
Guolian Automotive
Power Battery Research 25,015,008.59 2,563,408.59 22,451,600.00
Institute Co.,Ltd.
:V“L”‘;“”'“m New Horizons | 50 080 055.13|  4,328,343.75|  3,456,538.20 9,478,660.68 21,474,100.00
Yutong Venezuela o
passenger train plant 2,612,400.00 2,612,400.00
Total 1,715,590,445.12|  4,328,343.75| 34,409,769.27 72,621,792.65 278,366,049.31 1,479,764,762.94
Continued:
Dividends income I
Item recognized in the | Accumulated income| Accumulated loss iReasonAloRdESIgalion
: s as at FVTOCI
current period o
Beijing Sinohytec Co.,Ltd. _ 223,965,362.94 Non-tradable
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Finance Co.,Ltd, 8,250,000.00 42,150,000.00 Non-tradable
Chinese Culture II(Shanghai)Equity Investment Center{L.P.) 11,362,250.48 Non-tradable
Suzhou Qianji Zekang Investment Center (L.P.) 3,207,963.54 Non-tradable
!-Ierun Linghang harvest investment preferred cornerstone 14,864,984.13 Non-iradable
investment fund
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| Dividends income

T
| Reason for designation

ltem recognized inthe  [Accumulated income| Accumulated loss
| curentperod | | wePOE

Shanghai Refire Group Limited 31,725,335.00] Non-tradable
|{SLuéh]ou Industrial Park Huizhen Equity Investment Center 15,182,050.29 Non-iradable
Harvest Pioneer Fund L.P. 95,214,202.54 Non-tradable
!—Ierun Linghang Harvest investment new technology . 17,634.249.61 Non-radable
investment fund No.3 _ _ —.
Beijing Zhidu Depu Equity Investment Center (L.P.) 3,407,910.32 Non-tradable
Guogi (Beling) Intelligent and Connected Vehicle Research | )
Instittte Co.Ltd. B . 17,500,000.00 Non-tradable
Zhengzhou Anchi Guarantee Co.,Ltd. 1 11,601,700.00 Non-tradable
Guolian Automotive Power Battery Research Institute Co.,Ltd. 20,548,400.00 Non-tradable
Millennium New Horizons |, L.P. 4,148,712.53 Non-tradable
Yutong Venezuela passenger train plant 2,612,400.00 Non-tradable

Total 8,250,000.00 304,261,363.71|  210,864,157.67

Fact sheet for termination of confirmation exists in this period:

1A anstnsdtvwlined | ansared o[RS for teminaton
earnings retained earnings
Millennium New Horizons 1, L.P, 4,848,986.01 Transfer in part
Beijing Zhidu Depu Equity Investment Center (L.P.) 886,773.19 Transfer in part
‘Suzhou Qianji Zekang Investment Center (L.P.) 883,597.07 Transfer in part
Chinese Culture lI(Shanghai)Equity Investment Center(L.P.) 1,453,400.49 Transfer in part
Total 6,619,356.27 1,453,400.49
16.0ther non-current financial assets
ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Investment in debt instruments 132,500,000.00
- Investment in equity instruments 598,803,277 .44 '
Total 598,803,277 .44 132,500,000.00

Description of other non-current financial assets:

The ending balance of other non-current financial assets increased by 351.93% from the beginning

of the period, mainly due to increased investment in equity instruments during the current period.

17.Fixed assets

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Fixed assets 4,170,579,928.57 4,155,874,234.96
Disposal of fixed assets 1,037,892.09 5,498,738.83
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Item

Total

Closing balance

4,171,617,820.66

Opening balance

4,161, 372 973 79

Note: The fixed assets in the above table refer to the fixed assets after deducting the liquidation of

fixed assets.

i. Fixed assets

(1)Details of fixed assets

Machinery and Other
ltem Buildings ) Vehicles : Tatal
| equipment equipments |
I. Cost: ' g i
1. Opening balance | 5,968,620,780. 68 | 369365276125 254,112, m 67 | 1578, 215 760. 83 | 11494,602,247. 3
2. Increase in the 11543421532 | 491578.779.30 | 2803302714 | 9729963045 |  733.346,55191
_current pefiod , i I — 1 I R
Additions | 31,699,063.02 2342540685 |  20,130,52359 |  36,486,94678 |  111,741,94024
Transfer from i | i - -
constructionin | 8373515230 | 468,153,37245 |  8,803403.55 |  60,912,683.37 621,604,611.67
_progress S ———— [ S - —
3. Decreaseinthie | 88,684,034.96 3753249642 | 12,467,162.49 | 1584666236 154,530356.23
current period | '[ _ |
Disposal or | 88,684.034.96 |  37,53249642 |  12,467,16249 |  15846,662.36 | 154,530,356.23
~ retirement ! i o
4. Closingbalance | 599537096104 | 4,147,699,044.13 |  270,579,709.32 ! 1,650,768,726.62 | 12,073,418,443.11
Il Accumulated i [ 1 ' o
depreciation | '. !- - .
1. Opening balance 3216 986,229. 98 | 2,671,277,660.78 | 220827,078.22 | 1,225977,341.64 | 7,335,068,310.62
2. Increaseinfhe | 9o5 747 309 74 221764,007.54 ] 19,298,112, 55‘ 136,784,209.01 | 673,503,638.84
_current period [ | | | .
| |
Chargeforthe | 9574730074 | 22176400754 = 19,208,112.55 | 19678420001 | 673,593,638.84
currentperiod | T : i ! e
! | |
3. Decreaseinthe | 52085523.85  34055277.93 |  7956,019.98 |  15,305736.88 |  109,402,558.64
current period | | RS ) .
Disposal or | - i
; 5208552385 | 3405527793 | 795601998 | 1530573688 109,402,558.64
retirement ' | |
| |
4. Closing balance | 3.460,648,015.87 | 2,858,986,390, % | 23,169,170.79 | 1,347 455, 81377 | 7,899,259,390.82
Poveonor — T 1| — ] T
impairment | | ', I | o
1. Opening balance | 2,677,620.86 65331251 ; 328,768.48 | 3,659,701.85
———— - -4 —— e et s P — —
2. Increase in the i '

_current period B | B ‘ - N o o
3. Decrease In the 892203 | 7130745 | 248,95 | 80,578.13
_ourrentperod s I | | | | E—
4. Closingbalance |  2,668,698.83 | 582,005.36 ‘ 328,419, 53 | 3,579,123.72

[V. Carrying amount | | | i i

1. Camrying amount | l ' _:” '

atthe end of the | 2532,054,246.34 | 1,288,130,648.38 | 38410,538.53 | 31108449532 |  4170,579,928.57
reporting period | I [ E . —
2. Carrying amount ‘ ! | !

atthe beginning of | 2,748,956,029.84 | 1,021,721,787.96 |  33,285,866.45 | 35190965071 |  4,156,874,234.96
the period | | !

Notes to financial statements Page.88




Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.

For the year ended 31 december 2023
Notes to the financial statements
English translation for reference only

(2)Fixed assets of which certificates of title have not been obtained

ltem Carrying amount | Reasons why certificates of title have not been obtalned
Eld_lngs - 1,091,219,848.02 | _ . |_r-1_p;rocess -
Jingyida Dining }£m _ -_53,052.00 i o Leg;elc_y of history -
o Total ) 1,092,082,900.(;_ o o - -

ii. Disposal of fixed assets

ltem . Closing balance 'I Openmg balance
Disposal of fixed assets 1,037,892. 09 5,498, 738 83
Total ' 1,037,892. 09 5,498,738.83

18.Construction in progress

ltem Closing balance |_ Opening balance
Constructlon in progress ' 189,997,999.56 i 276,431,436.65
Total 189,997,999.56 | 276,431,436.65

Note: Construction in progress in the above table refers to construction in progress after deducting

construction materials.
i. Construction in progress

(1)Details of construction in progress

Closing balance Opening balance

—— e —_—

Item

| Provisionfor | . - I Provision for 3 .

. BookaaI_ance ' impairment_| Carrying amo_LirE | Book balance | impaiment ! Carrying eﬂ)u?t

Production base and supporting | | | [

projects in the developmentzone | | | | 45,078,503.04 | ,' 45,078,5&3_.(“)4__

Equipment to be installed 82,090,734. 72 | 82 090,734.72 | 121,802,394.93 | ' 121,802,394.93

Sporadic works 5 107,907,264. 84 I 107,907.264.84 107 707,730.53 107,707,730.53
“New energy base sales center | | | - | 1T r

project, research and ' |

development project and storage | 1 ] {Ee2:B05a10 I fgER2 05810
_Centerproject L S I I —

Total I 189,997,999.56 | 189,997, 999 56 | 276,431,436.65 ' 276 431 436 65

(2)Changes in significant construction in progress

ltem ; Opening i Increaseinthe | Transfertofixed | Other decreases | Closing balance

‘balance | currentperiod | assets |
45,78,503.04 | 4,489,086.09 |  49,567,589.13 |

Production base and supporting | a
projects in the development zone |

Equipment to be installed 121,802, 394.93 | 474,956,596.22 | 510 780, 071 13 3,888,185, 30 82,090, 734 72
Sporadic works | 107,707, 700 53 58,685,926.63 08,486,392.34 . 107 907, 464 o4
New energy base sales center | F - | | -
project, research and 1,842,808.15 | 927,750.94 | 2,770,559.09

development project and storage | | L
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Opening Increase inthe | Transfer fo fixed .
ltem - balance ' current period geeais Other decreases | Closing balance
center project
Total 276,431,436.65 | 539,059,359.88 621,604,611.67 ; 3,888,185.30 | 189,997,999.56
Continued:
amount Construc | Amount of el c;nti?;ﬁ:;t'
Budget(Te | injected as . capitalized P
N tion accumulated | . onrate for, Source of
ltem nthausand |a proportion - interest for
progress | capitalized the funds
yuan) of budget %) interest the current current |
o )
B amount(%) i period period(%)
Production base and supporting
rojects in the development zone 67,899.00 99.50 100.00 3 Own funds
Equipment to be installed Own funds
Sporadic works Own funds
New energy base sales center
project, research and
development project and storage 152,580.96 99.00 100.00 Own funds
center project
Total 220,479.96

(3)Other description of construction in progress

The ending balance of construction in progress decreased by 31.27% compared with the beginning
of the period, mainly due to the completion of some construction in progress during the current

period.

19.Right-of-use assets

[tem Buildings Machinery and equipment Total
|. Cost
1. Opening balance _ 22,095,798.85 113,311.12 22,209,109.97
2. Increase in the current period 14,837,390.90 14,837,390.90
Lease 14,837,390.90 14,837,390.90
3. Decrease in the current period 1,759,402.46 1,759,402.46
Expiration of lease 1,547,782.26 1,547,782.26
o Other decrease 211,620.20 211,620.20
_ 4. Closing balance 35,173,787.29 - 113,311.12 35,287,098.41
ii. Accumulated depreciation
1. Opening balance 8,360,991.43 78,624.04 8,439,615.47
2. Increase in the current period 7,254,873.30 17,343.54 7,272,216.84
o Charge for the current period 7,254,873.30 17,343.54 7,272,216.84
3. Decrease in the current period 1,547,782.26 1,547,782.26
Expirati-on of lease 1,547,782.26 [ 1,547,782.26
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ltem Buildings : Machinery and equipment | Total
Other decrease :

4. Closing balance 14,068,082.47 : 95,967.58 | 14,164,050.05

I1I. Provision for impairment ! ' ]

1. Opening balance :

2. Increase in the current period |

3. Decrease in the current period ; 1 _

4. Closing balance g

IV Carrying amount _ '

1. Carrying amount at the end of the | aemam | qresmea | .
roporing period S Ll R Lol I i

2. Carrying amount at the beginning of | I |

the reporling period '| 13,734,807.42 | 34,687.08 | 13,760,494.50
20.Intangible assets

i. Details of intangible assets

[ d [ Vehicle ! ;
. ) Registered purchased '
ltem Land use rights trademark | mane_agement ! software systems Total
I - | | rights | | N -

[. Cost [ | |

1. Opening balance 1,786,554,029.97 |  500,000.00 ! 6,153,392.70 | 169,215,282.35 | 1,062,422,705.02
2. Increase in the 1 | [ - | 1 .
current period 14,995.011.66{ I ; 14,538,788.1.1_ | __29_.533,7991
Additions 14,995,011.66 | : | 10,650,602.81 | 25,645,614.47
“Transferfom | i i .

3,888,185.30 3,888,186.30

_constructioninprogress | | [

3. Decrease in the l .
curentperiod | |

4. Closing balance 1,801,549,041.63 |  500,000.00 i

6,153,392.70? 183,754,070.46 = 1,991,956,504.79

"Il Accumulated ' ' [
_amortization | : |

1. Opening balance 299,747,531.46 500,000.00 l_

2. Increas_e in the . 37 496,298.75 ;
current period : I

6,153,392.70 l 91,157,666.87

= [

Charge for the current I y !
 period o 37,496,298.75 |

|

397,558,591.03

— —

13,310,441.36 50,806,740.11

50,806,740.11

13,310.441.36 'I

3. Decrease in the _ 5 1
_curentperiod

4. Closing balance 337,243,830.21 | 500,000.00 |

6,153,392.70

lilProvision for 5
impairment 8

104,468,10823 | 448,365,331.14

1. Opening balance

2. Increase in the ; {
 cumrent period | '

3. Decrease inthe |
current period ni |

4. Closing balance
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! . Vehicle
| ) Registered purchased [
ltem Land use tights trademark manr?gﬁi?ent software systems | Total
V. Carrymg amount ' . [
1. Carrying amount at | o S ;. o
the end of the reporting 1 1,464,305,211.42 | 79,285,962.23 1,543,591,173.65
peried o | N l
2. Carrying amount at
the beginning of the 1,486,806,498.51 78,057,615.48 1,564,864,113.99
reporting period | | |
21.Goodwill
i. Cost of goodwill
" | Increase in the current Decrease in the
Name of the investee and item Opening Formatio%ez)‘?d 2= curren’_f P enod_} Closing balance
resulting in goodil balance business Others | Disposal | Others
) combination
Hainan Yaoxing
Transportation Group Co,, Lt 103,203.85 N 103,203.8?_
Total 103,203.85 103,203.85

ii. Explanations on impairment testing process of goodwill, key parameters and recognition

method of impairment losses

The present value of the expected future cash flow of the entire asset group of Hainan Yaoxing
Transportation Group Co., Ltd. is estimated by income method. Firstly, the future profitability and
net cash flow of the éompany‘s assets are estimated according to the company's previous
profitability and working capital situation. Secondly, combined with the macro situation, the
overall asset value of the company as of December 31, 2023 is estimated, and then the total equity
value of shareholders is calculated. The total equity value of shareholders = overall asset value -
interest-bearing debt. Thirdly, compare the recoverable amount of the entire asset group containing
goodwill with its carrying value. The recoverable amount is recognized by the higher fair value
minus disposal expenses and the present value of future cash flow. Since fair value minus disposal
expenses cannot be obtained, we take the present value of future cash flow, namely the value of all
shareholders' equity, as the recoverable amount of the entire asset group containing goodwill. The
recoverable amount of the entire asset group is greater than the carrying value, so no provision for

impairment of goodwill is made.

22.Long-term deferred expenses

. . Amortization for [
Opening ‘ increase in the Other | '
tiem | balance current period the cqrrent reductions | SleSiglodiance
- | period | 7 - |
Right of authentication 184,814.34 | 168,284.15 | 1653049
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| Amortization for

Opening Increase in the | Other ! .
iy balance ' current period the cgrrent reductions Closing balance
: L L o perod | . —
The cost of building repairs | 1,164,016 70 | 291, 004 17 873,012.53
Total 184,814.34 P ,164,016.70 | 459, 288 32 ! 889,542.72

Description of long-term deferred expenses:

The ending balance of long-term amortized expenses increased 381.32% from the beginning of the

period, mainly due to the additional amortized repair expenses during the period.

23.Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

i. Deferred tax assets before offset

Closing balance Opening balance

fom :Deduglt]%l ?etnecnelgorary! Deferred tax assets !Deduglt;?;«raetnegzorary Deferred tax assets
ge_ceivables - provision for bad debt; 1,909,254,695. 99' EG@O?.ZSI_ 1 622,851,441, 39 245,247,370.25
in:/;zngry_ l;rowsmn for impairment ) 157,532,490.59i 25,289,652, ég 126,139,380. 11 _ 21,586,157.73
Contract assets-Provision f;r@&we_nt— _;— 1- 0;1;,590.09 1,611, 38_8_ 55'— 30,449,689.35' R 4,567,453 .40
Fi;<e—d a_lssets-PEsa 1:or impairment ] 3,579.%23._72 536, 86&2 5;5 _—365%1 .85 548,955%
-;xe_d assets- Aamulated depreCIahon_ - i 9,918,236.41 1,495,066.57;_ __11 649,199. 31' | 1,755,000.96
-Intanglble assgis_f\ccumulated emjlz_atlon__ o —;I -___ 573,092.32 o 85963_8_5__— 1,247,721.1:4__ _181,1&.17
Financial liabilities held for trading ' 31,499,727.83| 4,724,959.17 21,331,454.77 3,199,718.22
-E)tﬁer‘equity instruments investr;;nts - I - 473,536,052.16/ 72 04_2265 5_8; : —42@ i@m 63,981 ,069.7_3
Eg-term receivables-LIwrealized finaﬁng%coglr _3,863,581.92: 579,53;.2—9|_ B 14 170,493. 81 2,155,5-74?
Payroll and eh:bloyee benefits payable 1,102,983,426.63: 166, 291_57g31i | 831 755,483. 06 " 124,95,202?
Accrued expenses - 1,702.868,059.éb: 284,620, 7;2 1g_ 1, 782%047 07 293,777,@
.Prov;)r;_ —Ir ) 2,270,630,917.50} 357,903, 711_01 1,734,339, ‘;37—3_9. 260,163-,054.75
Deferred_ Ec;m_el N - . 500,599,879.131 75,089,981. f;:_ ) %é9,163,678.81_ | 100,37458_2-
Deductible losses ) - _ ) _4_91_,78_6g5-018| 7;_5-1' 1—4.52 14. 2,323,310,626.27]_— 354,720,946.43
gntract Iiabilitie;_ - _ ! 326,197,89_@5 48,929, 684 52| 279,064,185.07 41,859,627.76
—Unreahzed profit of |nte_rn;transact|ons | 763,852,811 .353 116,349,520.73 867,912,726.91 130,699,669.43
Pre- sale housmg expect@ p_ro_ﬂ{_ - —_ mi6957_38| __47853535* - 8,682,101.17 2,170,525.29
xt;vemsmg and publicity expenses o | - | : 2,688,020.73 —&Zm
Public welfa_regnati_ons - : 20,264,306.96-I 5,066,076_.5_ 9,_747,874.31 _271363885_8
Long-term equity investments - Provision for I ;
impairment | 454,659, 708.50 68,198,956.28|
Loase na_binu_es ' __ ] 5,707,705 556,135, gél s, 558?2 _/90 703,82

Total 10,257, 191,775.34|  1,599,212,219.33) 10, 772 315,586. 15 1 655, 836 331 53
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ii. Deferred tax liabilities before offset

Closing balance Opening balance
Item " Taxable tem o bl s
porary | Taxable temporary s
) - differences Deferred tax l|ablmes differences Deferred tax I|ab|I|t|es.
Financial assets held for  frading-Wealth
121,315.07 18,197.26
management products
Other equity instruments investments 567,839,831.22 85,175,974.68 662,426,205.28 108,822,568.20
Fixed assets-Accumulated depreciation 298,464,253.60 44,799,090.64 281,312,009.75 42,233,617.20
Debt investments 39,342,343.77 5,901,351.57 22,837,270.82 3,425,590.62
Unrealized loss of internal transactions 25,661,939.84 3,849,290.98 25,661,939.84 3,849,290.98
Right-of-use assets 3,484,722.78 522,708.42 5,518,374.62 827,756.19
Long-term equity investments - Profit and loss
464,659,708.50 69,698,956.28
adjustment
Other non-current assets - Time deposit 17,866,805.56 2,680,020.83
Other current assets - Hedged instrument 14,806,162.86 2,220,924 43
Other current assets - Wealth management
876,164.38 131,424.66
products
Pre-sale housing expected profit 3,537,849.71 884,462.43
Total 1,436,661,097.29 215,882,402.18 997,755,800.31 159,158,823.19

iii. Unrecognized deferred tax assets

ltem Closing balance Opening halance
‘ Provision for impairment 106,599,804.14 143,778,187.32
Deductible losses 40,292,053.50 88,875,117.32
Provisions 11,473,381.54 255,833,293.87
Accrued expenses 7,485,903.82 105,691,611.21
Fixed assets-Accumulated depreciation 17,053.47 5,859,738.40
Financial liabilities held for frading 14,058,562.52 24,559,153.75
Total 179,926,778.99 624,597,101.87

iv. Deductible losses for which deferred tax assets are not recognised will be expired in the

following year

Year Closing balance Opening balance Remarks
2023 Year 10,611,502.63
MYear 7,607,056.70 12,747,445.99 .
2025 Year 6,020,446.67 12,681,610.91
2026 Year 4,399,330.32 31,328,355.38
2027 Year 14,228,077.10 21,506,202.41
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Year Closing balance Opening balance Remarks
2028 Year 8,037,142.71
Total 40,292,053.50 88,875,117.32

24.0ther non-current assets

Closing balance Opening balance
Item | Provision for Provision for | Carryi
. Tying
Book balance impairment Carrying amoupt Book balance impairment e
Prepayment for equipment | 44 06 744,38 14,006,744.38 | 9,495,230.37 | 9,495,239.37
engineering [ e o I
Time deposits and interest | 817,866,805.50 817,866,805.56
Total 831,873,549.94 831,873,549.94 | 9,495,239.37 9,495,239.37

Description of other non-current assets:

The significant increase in the balance of other non-current assets at the end of the period

compared with the beginning of the period was mainly due to the addition of time deposits with a

maturity of more than one year during the current period.

25.Financial liabilities held for trading

Item Opening balance Closing balance
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 45,558,310.35 45,890,608.52
Including: Forward foreign exchange contract 45,558,310.35 45,890,608.52
Total 45,558,310.35 45,890,608.52
26.Notes payable
Fhk Closing balance Opening balance
Bank acceptances 3,305,579,159.12 2,197,634,289.61
Commercial acceptances 106,134,512.15
Total 3,305,579,159.12 2,303,768,801.76

Description of notes Payable:

The balance of notes payable at the end of the period increased by 43.49% compared to the

beginning of the period, mainly due to the increase in the volume of purchases during the period

and the subsequent increase in the payment for goods settled by acceptance.

27.Accounts payable

[tem

Closing

balance

Opening balance

Materlal payable

3,031,527,594.22

4,537,632,374.14
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[tem Closing balance Opening balance
Payable for engineering equipment 806,166,264.55 659,542,666.45
Total 3,837,693,858.77 | 5,197,175,040.59

i. Significant accounts payable aged over 1 year

Item Closing balance Reasons for not been repaid or transferred
Supplier 1 53,548,975.47 The settlement period has not reached
Total 53,548,975.47

28.Receipts in advance

i. Receipts in advance

[tem Closing balance Opening balance
Rent and house receipts in advance | 4,157,974.12 10,389,583.54
Total 4,157,974.12 10,389,583.54

ii. Description of receipts in advance

The balance of receipts in advance at the end of the period increased by ~ 59.98% compared with
the beginning, which was mainly caused by the reduction of the advance rent in this period.
29.Contract liabilities

i. Contract liabilities

item Closing balance Opening balance
_‘Extended warranty for products and services 351,336,000.56 288,924,196.71
- Contract liabilities 2,121,330,720.32 o 1,020,645,099.70 .
N Total 2,472,666,720.88 1,309,569,296.41

ii. Description of contract liabilities

The balance of contract liabilities at the end of the period increased by 89.09% compared with the
beginning of the period, mainly due to the increase in advance vehicle payments received during
the period.

30.Payroll and employee benefits payable

i. Payroll and employee benefits payable

Increase in the Decrease in the
current period current period

ltem Opening balance Closing balance
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) Increase in the Decrease in the .
Item Opening bal_ance current period current period Closing balance
Short-term benefits 814,449,679.74 | 2,428,432,020.41 2,158,638,838.06 | 1,084,242,862.09
Post-employment benefits ~ Defined 3811531 | 21307897676 | 213,003,516 11394039
contribution plan T -
Termination benefits 21,893,108.08 36,760,462.06 34,367,220.64 24,286,349.50
Total 836,380,903.13 | 2,678,271,459.23 | 2,406,009,210.38 | 1,108,643,151.98

ii. Short-term benefits

Item

Opening balance

Increase in the
current period

Decrease in the
current period

Closing balance

Wages or salaries, bonuses,
_allowances and subsidies

811,820,845.48

2,042,491,188.84

1,775,175,699.41

1,079,136,334.91

Staff welfare 146,203,487.25 146,203,487.25
Sacial security contributions 1,012.24 113,420,895.77 113,389,303.39 32,604.62
Including: Medical insurance 1,012.24 95,506,004.82 95,476,085.32 30,931.74
Work injury insurance 5,370,908.01 5,370,119.61 788.40
Maternity insurance 12,543,982.94 12,543,098.46 884.48
Housing funds 65,773,179.70 65,744,811.22 28,368.48
Labor union and employee 2,627,822.02 60,543,266.85 58,125,536.79 5,045,554.08
education costs
Total 814,449,679.74 2,428,432,020.41 2,158,638,838.06 1,084,242,862.09

iii. Defined contribution plan

[tem

Opening balance

Increase in the

Decrease in the

Closing balance

current period current period
Basic pension insurance 38,115.31 204,186,234.21 204,113,460.76 110,888.76
Unemployment insurance 8,892,742.55 8,889,690.92 3,051.63
Total 38,115.31 213,078,976.76 213,003,151.68 113,940.39

31.Taxes payable

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
| Value added tax 83,477,468.06 122,490,521.19
_Consumption tax a 2,185,658.03 535,946.90
Enterprise income tax 14,389,819.49 40,841,355.67
- Individual income tax 6,103,084.70 7,729,166.61
City maintenance and construction tax 43,919,447 .61 5,094,306.35
Property tax 12,304,31 3.22- 11,333,460.74
Land use tax 9,895,900.01 9,721,706.20
Withholding taxes and fees 9,276,986.57 N 1,031,356.95
- Educational surcharge 17,002,676.56 2,359,513.44
Local educational surcharge N 11,335,118.05 ; 1,538,410.54
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[tem Closing balance Opening halance
“ Stamp tax 5,444,560.22 | o _2,207,858.81
_\_lilater cons;r-\;n;y Constructiomnd_ 2,591.47 " 3,869.31
Ewironmental pro;;ti_on tax 1 o 1,927.45 T ) 11.06
Land value added tax 3,657,092.21 i
_Cfstomer retention acgme tax 1 48,502.98 |
Total 219,045,146.63 204,887,483.77
32.0ther payables
ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Other payables 2,280,463,542.26 2,179,223,900.29
Total 2,280,463,542.26 2,179,223,900.29

Note: Other payables in the above table refer to other payables after deducting interest payable and

dividends payable.

i. Other payables

(1)Other payables presented by nature

[tem Closing balance Opening balance
Guarantee of quality 192,953,585.54 199,060,218.13
Expense payables 165,465,604.25 255,061,871.22
Withholding costs and expenses 1,922,044,352.47 1,725,101,810.94

Total 2,280,463,542.26 ! 2,179,223,900.29

(2)There are no significant other payables older than one year or overdue at the end of the

period.

33.Current portion of non-current liabilities

item Closing balance Opening balance
Lease liabilities due within one year 4,110,702.05 6,762,907.04
Total 4,110,702.05 6,762,907.04

Description of Current portion of non-current liabilities:

The ending balance of non-current liabilities maturing within one year decreased by 39.22% from
the beginning of the period, mainly due to the decrease in lease operations maturing within one

year.

Notes to financial statements Page.98




Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.

For the year ended 31 december 2023
Notes to the financial statements
English translation for reference only

34.0ther current liabilities

ltem | Closing balance | Opening balance
Tax on items to be transferred 197,926,277.63 ' 118,457,399.04
Other taxes 135,152,034.46 237,438,547.71
"~ An instrument that has been endorsed or discounted and - )
has not terminated recognition 73,213,569.91 121,048,684.68
The hedged item 9,189,630.12
Total ] 406,291,882.00 486,134,261.55
35.Lease liabilities
. [tem Closing balance Opening balance
Buildings ! 17,635,754.68 10,418,873.76
Less:Lease liabilities due within one year 4,110,702.05 6,762,907.04
Total 13,525,052.63 3,655,966.72

Description of lease liabilities:

The ending balance of lease liabilities increased 269.94% from the beginning of the period, mainly

due to new leases in the current period.

36.Provisions
Item Closing balance Opening balance . Reasons of the existence
Products quality warranty 2,363,876,546.60 1,968,632,638.90 Withholding on income
Rebate on sales 22,241,983.17 21,540,592.36 Rebhate on sales
Total 2,386,118,529.77 1,990,173,231.26

37.Deferred income

3 Increase in the Decrease in the . Reasons of
e Crale bence current period current period Closing balance the existence
Government subsidies Financial
weliatedio assats 495,577,150.48 915,000.00 155,909,340.77 | 340,582,809.71 appropriation
Government subsidies Financial
rclated to income. | 173,586,528.33 6,756,593.00 20,326,051.91 __160,017.069.42 approprialion
Total ! 669,163,678.81 5 7,671,593.00 176,235,392.68 | 500,599,879.13

i. Deferred income related to government subsidies
The Company's government subsidies are detailed in Note 9. Government Subsidies (1)

Liabilities involving government subsidies.

38.Share capital

ltem Opening balance Changes in the current period (+, -) Closing balance
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alizat |
! Ngw shares Sharle Cap|.tallzat|on of Others | Subtotal
) R ~ issued | donation | capital reserve N -
Number of shares | 2,213,939,223.00 . | 2,213,939,223.00
39.Capital reserves
. | Increase in the Decrease in the .
- ltem Opening balance _|‘ current period __current period _%lng bale?nce
Share premium 1,102,360,879.03 1,102,360,879.03
Other capital reserves 392,091,307.06 11,350,203.63 403,441,510.69
Total 1,494,452,186.09 11,350,203.63 [ 1,505,802,389.72

Description of capital reserve:

The Company's new equity investment in joint venture TOO "QazTehna" in the current period,
the shareholding ratio of all shareholders is not calculated according to the proportion of
sharcholders' contribution and the total registered capital, and the shareholding ratio of the
Company is 15% according to the agreement. The Company regards the actual contribution
amount of other shareholders as higher than the share calculated according to the shareholding
ratio as the capital input accepted by the investee. According to the provisions of the Standard,
the Company calculates the share to be enjoyed according to the shareholding ratio, adjusts the
book value of long-term equity investment, and includes the capital reserves - other capital

Treserves.
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Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.

For the year ended 31 december 2023
Notes to the financial statements
English translation for reference only

41.Special reserves

| : | Increaseinthe | Decreaseinthe )
- [tem J_Openmg balance current pe o_d__!___cu@_t period | Closing balance_
| |
Safety fund | 5,153,780.54 15,350,328.89 | 16,112,805.52 | 4,391,303.91
Total 5,153,780.54 15,350,328.89 | 16,112,805.52 4,391,303.91

Description of special reserves:

The Company shall, in accordance with the provisions of the "Measures for the Administration of
the Withdrawal and Use of Enterprise Production Safety Expenses" (caizi [2022] No. 136),
calculate the withdrawal of production safety expenses according to the prescribed standards
based on the operating income of the previous year. The extracted safety production fees are

mainly used for maintenance, testing, safety training and other expenses.

42,Surplus reserve

Increase in the Decrease in the

[tem

Opening balance

Closing balance

current period current period
Statutory surplus reserve 3,038,152,006.09 198,095,948.95 3,236,247,955.04
Total 3,038,152,006.09 198,095,948.95 3,236,247,955.04

Description of surplus reserve:

The increase of legal surplus reserve during this period is: according to the provisions of the

Company Law and the articles of Association, the company shall withdraw the legal surplus

reserve at 10% of the net profit.

43.Unappropriated profit

[tem Current period Prior period
Before adjustment; retained earnings of the prior period 7,466,625,137.40 7,802,754,907.06
Adjustment: Total retained eamings at the beginning of ol
the reporting period (Increase "+', decrease ") iy -31,577.87
After adjustment: retained eamings at the beginning of
the reporting period 7,466,591,790.27 7,802,723,329.19
Add: Net profit attributable to owners of the Company for
* the current period o B 1,817,084,152.22 759,140,760.22
Less: Transfer to statutory surplus reserve 198,095,948.95 89,235,882.63
Declaration of dividends on ordinary shares 2,213,939,223.00 1,106,969,611.50
Others 429,479.82
Add: Other comprehensive income transferred to
5,165,955.78 102,032,030.12
retained earnings
Others -669,355.31
Unappropriated profit at the end of the reporting period 6,876,806,726.32 7,466,591,790.27
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i. Details of the adjustments to retained earnings at the beginning of the reporting period:

As a result of the change in accounting policies, the cumulative impact is adjusted to retained
earnings and other related financial statement items at the beginning of the earliest period for
which the financial statements are presented (i.e. January 1, 2022), affecting undistributed profit at

the beginning of the prior period -31,577.87, as detailed in note III (39).

ii. Other descriptions of unappropriated profit

(1) According to the articles of association of the Company, the parent company shall set aside
the statutory surplus reserve of 198,095,948.95 yuan;

(2) According to the profit distribution plan reviewed at the 2022 Annual General Meeting of
sharcholders, the company will pay cash dividend of 10.00 yuan (tax included) for every 10 shares
based on the total shares of 2,213,939,223 shares at the end of 2022.

(3) Tnvestments in other equity instruments were partially transferred in the current period,
resulting in changes in fair value transferred from other comprehensive income to retained

earnings of 5,165,955.78 yuan.
44.0perating revenue and costs of sales

i. Operating revenue and costs of sales

Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
fem Revenue Cost 1 Revenue Cost
- Principal operating activities 24,102,422,756.85 | 17,662,996,725.01 | 19,530,146,921.48 | 15,006,754,012.29
Other§ 2,939,566,737.72 2,442,994,765.17 2,268,813,683.18 1,816,368,573.37
Total 27,041,989,494.57 |  20,105,991,490.18 ;1-,_7“98,960,604.67 16,823,122,585.66

ii. Main business (by contract type)

contract type I Revenue
. Vehicle sales contract _ 22,633,951 ,455.6.5_ _
Services and other contracts 1,468,471,301.20
Total R rl o 24,102,422,756.85

iii. Main Business (by region)

o Amour_lmcurred in the current Qeriod Amount incurred in the prior period
Revenue ' Cost Revenue Cost
Domestic sales 13,696,807,890.33 10,551,483,553.20 13,935,063,493.78 N 11,001,763,994.51
_Overseas sales 10,405,614,866.52 7,111,513,171.81 5,595,083,427.71 3,914,990,017.78
Total 24,102,422,756.85 17,662,996,725.01 ] _1_&%50,146,921 49 15,006,754,012.29
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45.Taxes and surcharges

ltem Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
—(‘;onsumption tax 16,016,586.27 10,897,109.20
City maintenance and cons{racgtion tax - 99,308,085.29 [ 31,936,063.70
Educational surcharge 40,940,413.27 o 13,686,537.71
_Local educational surcharge 27,294,323.17 9,124,358.47
__Propedy tax - 50,313,738.03 h 48,661 ,817.88
Land use tax ) 40,714,027.16 37,386,661.98
Vehicle and vessel usage tax - 146,520.68 : 183,610.70
Stamp tax 12,456,768.39 6,968,315.88
.?nvironmental protection tax 276,891.71 212,986.82
Land value added tax 39,859,428.11 65,492,928.20
Water conservancy Construction Fund 36,338.90 87,084.27
Others 280,919.08
Total 327,644,040.06 224,637,974.81
46.Selling expenses
ltem Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
Compensation for employees 513,445,701.14 482,320,441.80
After-sales service fee 727,316,489.50 551,578,989.64
Travel expenses 174,798,126.29 116,334,178.37
Advertising and publicity expenses 57,987,275.16 75,938,678.23
Consulting and agency fees 41,005,872.79 24,194,577.09
mBusiness entertainment expenses 81,660,907.15 77,877,864.55
Office expenses 9,809,421.39 10,555,362.84
Rental expenses 16,767,219.69 13,375,619.38
Consumption of materials 9,409,835.87 11,694,289.24
Insurance premium 592,218.09 730,585.19
Others 322,150,268.38 [ 274,399,931.23
Total 1,954,943,335.45 1,639,000,517.56

47.Administrative expenses

ltem Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
Compensation for employees 274,654,087.79 371,615,645.91
Travel expenses 11,945,941.06 3,168,346.41
Advisory agency fee _ 56,783,984.99 o 40,884,749.57
Office expenses 13,992,601.05 7,481,718.70
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ltem Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
Cost of services - 134,569,706.09 - 124,134,861.15
. Business entertainm;t;xpenses 25,682,385.53 9,931,492.25
" Depreciation expense 65,645,974.98 82,475,323.04
Rental expenses 4,422 ,594.40 4,685,349.83 “
_Material consumption charge o 19,502,647.39 ) 31,765,814.83
Cost of repair _4,579,092.30 ) 12,954,031.85
Amortization of intangible assets 28,212,936.09 o 26,543,691.21
- Others 79,321,500.03 130,608,419.82
Total - 719,313,451.70 846,249,444.57

48.Research and development expenses

ftem Amount incurred in the current petiod Amount incurred in the prior period
" Compensation for employees 814,504,523.50 1,029,261,818.67
Mold and testing fees 237,946,989.44 220,286,413.78
Advisory agency fee 52,022,159.25 70,344,043.03
_Research and development material costs 124,135,020.41 59,617,961.26
_Depreciation and amortization 123,094,622.09 148,444,058.11
Others 215,938,404 67 166,359,722.27
Total 1,567,641,719.45 1,694,314,017.12

49 Finance expenses

Jtem Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
. Interest expenses 1,870,787.06 234,535.01
Less: Interest income 146,521,974.16 61,999,128.31
_Add: Exchanges gains or losses 45,184,539.68 -16,688,220.37
_Add: Unrealized financing income -9,874,067.32 -16,784,952.97
Add: Other fees 23,537,756.62 16,994,760.83
o Total -85,802,958.12 -78,243,005.81

50.0Other income

i. Other income details

ltem Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
Government grants 300,717,687.51 415,418,500.13
Refund of tax handling fee 2,165,083.38 1,622,338.70
Tax reduction and exemption 26,892,248.69 16,413,460.83 .
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Jtem Amount incurred in the current period ', Amount incurred in the prior period

Total i 329,775,019.68 | 433,454,299.66

ii. Government subsidies included in other income

The Company's government subsidies are detailed in Note 9. Government Subsidies (2)
Government subsidies recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

51.Income from investments

i. Income from investments details

Amount incurred in the Amount incurred in the
ltem : 3 i
current period prior period
Income from long-term equity investments under equity method 98,966,718.81 100,415,500.59
Investment income on disposal of long-term equity investments 73,559,688.89
Investment income from disposal of held-for-trading financial assets I 7,451,466.00 -8,471,589.95
Interest income from holding debt investments 19,392,572.95 19,782,771.69
Dividend income from holding investments in other equity instruments 8,250,000.00 | 13,682,100.00
Investment income from holding financial assets at amortized cost 25,055,805.82 I
Others -60,080,845.70 -45,713,689.40
Total 99,035,717.88 153,254,781.82

ii. Description of income from investments

Income from other investments for the period -60,080,845.70 yuan, including income from
factoring business -54,170,176.39 yuan, interest from acceptance discount -669.31 yuan and
proceeds from debt restructuring - 5,910,000.00 yuan. Income from other investments in the
previous period was -45,713,689.40 yuan, including income from factoring business

-44,687,511.20 yuan and interest from acceptance discount -1,026,178.20 yuan.

52.Gains from changes in fair values

ltem Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
Financ_i;as_sets held for trading 32,457,617.27 -17,245,208.93
Other non-current financial assets -33,696,722.56 - B

Total —1,239:‘105.29 -17,245,208.93 -

Description of gains from changes in fair value:
The amount of fair value change income in the current period increased by 92.81% compared

with the beginning of the period, mainly due to the increase in fair value change mcome
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generated during the period of purchase and holding of financial products.

53.Credit impairment losses

ftem l Amount incurred in the current period '- Amount incurred in the prior period
Losses on bad debts [ -333,561,307.12 -441,440,832.56
Total -333,561,307.12 -441,440,832.56

In the above table, losses are indicated with "-",

54,Assets impairment losses

ltem Amount incurred in the current peried Amount incurred in the prior period
_Inventory price decline loss and contract
performance cost impairment loss -118.471,992.39 -108,862,520.40
Impairment loss of contract assets 16,027,980.25 -17,205,817.85
!mpairment loss on long-term equity 454,659,708.50
investments .
Total -557,103,720.64 -126,088,338.25

In the above table, losses are indicated with "-".

Description of asset impairment losses:

The amount of asset impairment loss in the current period increased by 341.84% compared with
the previous period, mainly due to the provision of long-term equity investment impairment

losses in the current period.

55.Gains from asset disposals

ltem Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
Gains or losses on disposal of fixed assets 46,722,820.36 53,992,660.32
Total 46,722,820.36 53,992,660.32

56.Non-operating income

et | Ao | g eforss
o in the current period
Total gains on disposal of non-current assets | 2,457,529.87 1,822,325.07 2,457,529.87
Income from claims | 33,234,826.23 “ 23,688,627.08 33,234,826.23
Others 30,006,111.36 7,352,969.83 30,006,111.36_
- Total 65,698,467.46 32,863,921.98 65,698,467.46

Description of non-operating income:

The amount of non-operating income in the current period increased by 99.91% compared with
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the previous period, mainly due to the increase in the amount of long-term prepaid money

transferred to non-operating income and the increase in the income of quality services and

compensation for contract breach.

57.Non-operating expenses

- Arononadin | TSI | e rtros
B - - for the current period
Total losses on disposal of non-current assets 1,167,010.89 1,359,027.94 1,167,010.89
Compensation, liquidated damages and fines 2,432,313.95 1,481,894.90 I 2,432,313.95
) D_onations to third parties 15,329,000.00 27,822,000.00 15,329,000.00
Othe-rs 4,644,713.27 247,832.71 4,644,713.27
- Total | 5,573.038.11 B 30,910,755.55_ | 23,573,038.11
58.Income tax expenses
i. Income tax expenses
ltem Amount incurred in the current period ] Amount incurred in the prior period
_Current tax expenses 93,454,483.07 62,025,678.38
Deferre(gx expenses 145,055,483.56 -122,070,770.76
Total | 238,509,966.63 | -60,045,092.38
ii. Reconciliation of income tax expenses to the accounting profit
Item Amount incurred in the current period
Total profit i 2,078,013,269.97
Income tax expenses calculated at statutory/applicable tax rate 311,701,990.50
. Effect of different tax rates applicable to subsidiaries -8,342,596.70
Effect of adjustment to income tax of prior periods , 76,864,797.56
" Effect of non-taxable income -15,818,283.48
Effect of non-deductible costs, expenses anch;ses i 25412,792.75
Effect qf using deductible losses for which deferred tax assets were previously not 1716.637.16
recognised I o
The impagct of additional deductions for R&D expenses i -203,353,339.07
Ezfrerg:] ?; g:gﬁchble temporary differences or deduclible losses unrecognized in the ! 53.144.112.94
The wages of the disabled shall be deducted l -178,114.73
Internal unrealized impact ! 795,244.5
Income tax expenses - 238,509,966.63

iii. Income tax expense other description
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The amount of income tax expense in the current period increased by 497.22% compared with

the previous period, mainly due to the increase in demand for the bus industry in the current

period, the rise in sales, and the corresponding increase in total profits.

59.1tems of the cash flow statement

i. Cash related to operating activities

(1)Other cash receipts related to operating activities

ltem Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
Government subsidies and tax refunds 138,41_ 3,639.29 281 ,238,35‘;.;
Interest income o 146,616,589.37 61,782,841.64
Non-operating income 29,209,939.89 4,686,718.31
Other transactions 401,762,743.34 743,833,966.23

Total

716,002,911.89

1,091,541,883.93

(2)Other cash payments related to operating activities

[tem Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period

Selling expenses shall be paid in cash 971,544,419.30 1,075,924,739.25
Administrative expenses be paid in cash 242,008,982.87 I 365,729,534.48
Eﬁféﬁg ang developmen expaness shal 593,323,774.63 | 484,563,507.95
Finance expenses be paid in cash 23,611,363.27 16,766,234.54

| Non-operating expenses be paid in cash 7,165,022.11 23,317,425.23
_De:}erred income be paid in cash 7,941,102.19 - 9,075,400.00
Other transactions 830,939,691.51 N 537,710,067.01
o Total 2,676,534,355.88 2,513,086,908.46

ii.

Cash related to financing activities

(1)Other cash payments related to financing activities

ltem Amount incurred in the current period | Amount incurred in the prior period
Dividend payment commission 1,221,149.22 |
" Cash paid to repay principal and interest on
lease liabilities ) 8,061,350.60 9,008,693.77
Return shareholders' capital contributions 311,393,425.28
Total 9,282,499.82 320,402,119.05

60.Supplementary information to the cash flow statement

i. Supplementary information to the cash flow statement
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[tem Current period Prior period
1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flow from operating o o o
_activities -
Net profit 1,839,503,303.34 767,804,691.63
Add: Credit impairment losses 333,561,307.12 441,440,832.56
Assets impairment losses 557,103,720.64 126,088,338.25
e o i
Amortization of right-of-use assets 7,272,216.84 7,441,160.94
I Amortization of intangible assets 50,806,740.11 43,186,387.55
- Amortization of long-term prepaid expenses - 459,288.32 519,848.81
s e =
Losses on retirement of fixed assets (gains are indicated by "—") -1,290,518.98 -463,297.13
Losses on changes in fair values (gains are indicated by "—") 1,239,105.29 17,245,208.93
. Financial expenses (income is indicated by "—") 28,591,010.29 68,552,942.08
Losses arising from investments (gains are indicated by "—") -153,206,563.58 -198,968,471.22
Decrease in deferred tax assets (increase is indicated by "—") 153,710,576.71 -131,290,824.90
Increase in deferred tax liabilities (decrease is indicated by "—") -8,655,093.15 9,220,054.14

Decrease in inventories (increase is indicated by "—")

261,885,261.49

1,106,114,685.85

Decrease in receivables from operating activities (increase is

indicated by "—")

-200,055,181.15

1,201,856,340.07

Increase in payables from operating activities (decrease is

indicated by "—")

1,218,901,736.40

-975,391,7456.13

Others

Net cash flow from operating activities

4,716,697,728.17

3,253,604,803.54

2. Significant investing and financing activities that do not involve

cash receipts and payments

Conversion of debt into capital

Convertible bonds due within one year

New right-of-use assets in the current period

3. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents

7,027,259,964.83
5,619,180,482.76

6,291,859,005.64
7,027,259,964.83

Closing balance of cash

Less: Opening balance of cash

Add: Closing balance of cash equivalents

Less: Opening balance of cash equivalents

-735,400,959.19 1,408,079,482.07

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

ii. Net cash received for disposal of subsidiaries in the current period

ltem Current period

Cash or cash equivalents received in the current period for disposal of subsidiaries in the current period
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Item Current period
Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by subsidiaries at the date of loss of contro! _ o
_I;IJ;: Previous periods dispose of cash or cash equivalents received by subsidiaries in the curre_nt;_e_riod 15,09_0,000.00
Rluding: Shangh;i Qianyong Ed[lstrial Co.,T_td. 15,090,000.00
Wet cash received for disposal of subsidiaries : - 15,090,000.00

iii. Total cash outflow related to leases

The total cash outflow related to leases in the current period was RMB 8,061,350.60 yuan

(previous period: RMB 9,008,693.77 yuan).

iv. Composition of cash and cash equivalents

ltem Closing balance Opening balance

|. Cash 6,291,859,005.64 7,027,259,964.83
Including: Cash on hand 219,477.34 1,115,868.17

Bank deposits 6,291,421,274.97 7,026,144,096.66

Other monetary funds 218,253.33
1. Cash equivalents
Including: Investments in debt securities due within thres months
I11. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 6,291,859,005.64 7,027,259,964.83
Including: Restricted cash and cash equivalents of the Company and
subsidiaries within the Group !
v. Monetary funds other than cash and cash equivalents

Item Closing balance Opening balance Reason
Security deposit for mortgage 10,885.00 8(-)7,921 .26 Use restricted
Bank acceptance margin 6,874,245.12 6,556,058.86 Use restricted
Funds in transit 127,617,367.29 Funds in transit
Letter of credit deposit 4,740,000.00 Use restricted
Deposit money for investment 2,641,997.58 Use restricted
. Letter of guarantee 65,149.96 - Use restricted
Total 141,949,644.95 7,363,980.12
61.Assets with restricted ownership or right-of-use
ftem Ending book balance Ending book value Reasons of restriction
Cash and Cash equivalents 10,885.00 10,885.00 | Security deposit for mortgage
Cash and Cash equivalents o 6,874,245.12 6,874,2.‘4—5.12 Bank acceptance margin
_Eash and Cash equivalents 127,617,367.29 127,617,367.29 | Funds in transit
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ltem Ending book balance Ending book value : Reasons of restriction
Cash an_d Cash equivalents 4,740,000.00 4,740,000.00 | Letter of credit deposit
Cash and Cash equivalents 2,641,997.58 2,641,997.58 | Deposit money for investment
- Cash and Cash equivalents | 65,149.96 65,149.96 | Letter of guarantee
Total o 141,949,644.95 141,949,644.95 i Security deposit for mortgage B

62.Foreign currency monetary items

i. Foreign currency monetary items

- Closi'ng balances of Exchange rates for ] Closing balance of RMB
foreign currencies translation |

Cash and Cash equivalents

Including: USD 26,802,601.01 7.08270 189,834,782.22
EUR 57,217,265.88 7.85920 449,681,936.00
HKD 443,487.78 0.90622 401,897.50
AUD 24,283,006.61 4.84840 117,733,729.25
SGD 5,840.73 537720 31,406.77
RUB 332,434,830.64 0.08027 26,684,543.86
ZAR 500.00 0.38193 190.97
AED 671,060.36 1.93255 1,296,857.70
DKK 48,353.09 1.05363 50,946.27
MXN 154,736,856.23 0.41815 64,703,216.43
THB 0.56 0.20736 0.12

- KzZT 80,580,977.19 0.01573 1,267,538.77

CLP 507,913,758.00 0.00805 4,088,705.75
PHP 73,282,970.58 0.12783 9,367,762.13
QAR 6,493,932.26 1.954Sd : 12,692,390.60
VES 726,791.55 0.19897 144,609.71
CUP 9,306.62 0.29546 2,749.73
CoP 405,062,105.00 0.00184 745,314.27
TZ8 170,135,518.72 0.00283 | 481,483.52
SAR 3,167,852.49 1.89265 5,995,636.02

Accounts receivable

Including: USD 231,561,200.65 7.08270 1,640,078,515.84
EUR 2,504,674.83 7.85920 19,684,740.42
AED 11,428.67 1.93255 22,086.48
MXN 6,455,877.68 0.41815 2,699,525.25 “
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- Closi.ng balances of Exchange rates for Closing balance of RMB
foreign currencies translation

QAR 2,273,732.76 1.95450 4,444,010.68
COP -4,782,207.00 0.00184 -8,799.26
PHP 11,004,800.00 R 0.12783 1,406,743.58

Other receivables )

Including: USD 34,062,190.76 7.08270 241,252,278.50
HKD 32,045.00 0.90622 29,039.82
CUP 20,996.00 0.29546 6,203.48
AUD 777,706.50 4.84840 3,770,632.19
VES 2,991,983.76 0.19897 595,315.01
RUB 3,017,000.00 0.08027 242,174.59
AED 165,138.60 1.93255 319,138.60
KZT 1,950,127.33 0.01573 30,675.50 -
COP 111,142,000.00 0.00184 204,167.85
MXN 353,547.40 0.41815 147,835.85

“Accounts payable 1

Including: USD 4,489,043.57 7.08270 31,794,548.89
EUR 374,668.58 7.85920 2,944,595.30

Other payables

Including: USD 26,978,354.62 7.08270 191,079,592.27
EUR 713,654.78 7.85920 5,608,755.65
HKD 324,045.00 0.90622 293,656.06
RUB 2,969,500.00 0.08027 238,361.77
VES 68.64 0.19897 13.66
KZT 282,290.00 0.01573 4,440.42
AUD 38,035.60 4.84840 184,411.80
COP 9,556,718.00 0.00184 17,555.69
MXN 5,455,467.96 041815 2,281,203.93
CLP 31,767.00 0.00805 255.72
QAR 867.03 1.95450 1,694.61
AED 100,000.00 1.93255 193,255.00
128 2,510,502.49 0.00283 7,107.23

- JPY 21,896.35 502130 109,948.14
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ii. Description of overseas business entities

.. |
Name of subsidiary Major bt{smess Standard currency | Reason
location of account ‘
Yutong Hongkong Limited HongKong CNY | Xtegﬂ:{; :; st’;ecl?\?i;]é) sa s
YUTONG RUSSIA LIMITED Russia CNY .! EXte';S'O.” of the company's
- S - ) ! usiness aclivities
AUTOBUSES YUTONG DE VENEZUELA, S.A, Venezuela CNY E"te;fj's"i:e‘“;stg‘zg\fi?ep:“ys
- British Virgin Extension of the company's
b pany
_ SATHRYA I EREATIDIGLIEINITED | Islands (BVI) (O] business actities
SINOYUTONG INTERNATIONAL LTD | HongKong CNY E"te’t‘)fl'sf’irr‘];;;haig;’i?epsa“y's
YUTONG MIDDLE EAST FZE Dubai ONY | Extension of the company's
- | business activities
| . 1
YUTONG LUXENBOURG SARL. Luxembourg CNY | EXtegzggg;‘;;‘:“f‘:‘;’;”ys
| f 1,
YUTONG FRANCE SAS Paris, France CNY E"tegz';?]gsfsﬂgig\?i?;’sa”y g
YUTONG TANZANIA Tanzania 178 S
INSTANT ACCESS LIMITED hingdorigiiSatid ChY B O G oS
Arabia business activities
YUTONG WORLDWIDE FZE United Arab CNY Extension of the company's
Emirates business activities
YUTONG INTERNATIONAL TRADE PTE.LTD. Singapore ONY Extegzl:i::;stzitcim;:ws
YUTONG HOLDCO PTE.LTD. Singapore CNY EX‘egfl';?]e";S”:cﬁfj]?gsa”ys
YUTONG AUSTRALIA PTY LTD Australia CNY EXtegz';rr‘]e"gstgecgeﬁ‘i‘é’sa”y s
YUTONG PHILIPPINES CORPORATION Philippines ONY EXteEi‘;’r‘]:stt';ecmea“y i
YUTONG KAZAKHSTAN LIMITED Kazakhstan CNY E"tegz‘:i;ggsﬂzt‘i’;’i?é’sa"ys
YUTONG SPAIN HOLDCO S.L. Spain CNY E"tegﬂsoi::;s‘lit‘;;’ig‘g:“y 2
YUTONG PANAMA SA. Panama ONY EXtegﬂgi’;:sf ;haea‘\{;’l;?é’sa”y i
YUTONG DE MEXICO S.A. DE C.V. Mexico CNY E’“eEfjg;:sfsﬂ;;ﬁig‘g;“y's
YUTONG COLOMBIA SAS Colombia CONY EXtegi';ﬂg;‘;ect‘i’\‘,’i?é’sany i
z - :
YUTONG GHILE SPA | Chie CNY R Lt
i usiness activities
i . '
YUTONG CHILE IQUIQUE SPA Chile CNY EXtegz';’r‘]e"sfs”;ig\%?gSa“y i
YUTONG-ECUADOR S.A. Ecuador CNY EXtegi';ﬁgggim::”"""
YUTONG PERU S.AC. Pery CNY EXtegfl';’;eosfstgi;&?j;“V's
YUTONG (HK) INTERNATIONAL LIMITED HongKong CNY B

business activities

VI. R&d expenditure

i. List by the nature of the fees
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ltem Amount incurred in the current period |  Amount incurred in the prior period
Compe-n_sation for employees E 814,504,523.59 _ 1,029,261,818.67
Mold and t;;sting fees ‘ o 221,896,508.73 B 220,286,413.78
Advisory a;:ncy fee l 52,022,159.25 _70,344,043.03
Cost of services o 47,399,841.90 | 20,630,119.73
Research and development material costs | 12413502041 | 5961796126
Depreciation and amortization 110,155,085.75 ) 148,444,058.11
Others O tors79.2 | 145,729,602.54
Total | ” 1,567,641,719.45 ! o 1,694,314,017.12
_Incl_u_ding:Expensed R&D expenditure 1 o 1,567,641,719.45 1,694,314,017.12 -
Capitalized R&D expenditure ! N

VII.Changes of the scope of consolidation

1.Subsidiaries acquired through investment and establishment

Subsidiary Reasons for change
INSTANT ACCESS LIMITED Newly established subsidiaries
Zhengzhou Xuhua Enterprise Management Center (Limited Partnership) Newly established subsidiaries
Zhengzhou Xubiao Enterprise Management Center (Limited Partnership) Newly established subsidiaries
Zhengzhou Xuxin Enterprise Management Center (Limited Partnership) Newly established subsidiaries
Zhengzhou Xurong Enterprise Management Center (Limited Partnership) Newly established subsidiaries
Zhengzhou Xuzhou Enterprise Management Center (Limited Partnership) Newly established subsidiaries
Beijing Changlv Automobile sales service Co., Ltd. Newly established subsidiaries
Shanghai Pengke Automobile sales service Co., Ltd. B Newly established subsidiaries
Jinan Changlv Automobile sales service Co., Lid. Newly established subsidiaries o

_Shanxi Tuyou A‘l;gmobile sales service Co., Ltd. Newly established subsidiaries

Guangzhou Changlv Automobile sales service Co., Ltd. i Newly established subsidiaries
Zhengzhou Ruibiao Enterprise Management Center (Limited Partnership) Newly established subsidiaries -
Shenzhen Yuxin Automobile sales service Co., Lid. | Newly established subsidiaries -
Hangzhou Lvxin Ruikong Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. Newly established subsidiaries
Hebei Xiongan Lvxin Ruikong New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. Newly established subsidiaries
2.Changes of consolidation scope for other reasons

Subsidiary Reasons for change
Zhengzhou Ruixir;g_ Automobile Technology Co., Ltd. [ Write off
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VIILEquity in other entities
1.Equity in subsidiaries

i. Composition of the Group

Registered I Shareholding
Serial Subsidia capital Main place | Place of Business ratio(%) Acquisition
number i (ten thousand | of business | registration nature - method
' yuan) : Directly | Indirectly
i - — T e — | - | I— ] B
Zhengzhou Jingyida Auto Parts Co., ' ' Auto parts Business
1 52,733.00 Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | productionand | 100,00 combination under
) L . B 1 L sdes _the same control
i Vehicle air ‘
Zhengzhou Kelin Motor Vehicle Air | ' conditioning | Business
2 o | 2,000.00 Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | roduction and 70.00 combination under
Conditioning Co.,Ltd. P the same control
_ | . = __sales " o
ZHENGZHOU JINGYIDA _ Adoparts |
3 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 500000 | Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | productionand | 100.00 vaeets‘ifn:ﬁt
| TECHNOLOGY CO. LTD. J | s |
—— . T T Business
4 Yutong Hongkong Limited HKD 1.00 i Hongkong Hongkong | el)rg)%ortrttfandde 100.00 ' combination under
- - . ' i | |_the same control
. | ) ‘ i i ' ; Business
5 | YUTONG RUSSIA LIMITED USD 2.00 Russia | Russia igpageand 4 gggp | Combination not
- . i export trade | under the same
P R [ | S S ' control
| AUTOBUSES YUTONG DE , . ’
' VES3000 | Venezuela | Venezuela =~ mPortand 90.02 Setup by
VENEZUELA, S.A. | i | exporttrade investment
- N - ; British | British - |
| CATHAYA INTERNATIONAL | ST5.50 Vigin | Virgin Import and 100.00 Setup by
LIMITED ' Islands | Islands export trade . ' investment
| (BVD Bvh) | !
= L SR i ; S [ i S [
| SINOYUTONG INTERNATIONAL ! | g
| USD 100.00 | Hongkong | Hongkong | MPortand 44500 | S By
LTD ! ! { | export trade investment
9 | YUTONG MIDDLE EAST FZE " AED 100.00 Dubai | Dubai impegt and 100.00 Setup by
| I m— | N ISR (- i | ___investment
| |
10 | YUTONG LUXENBOURG SAR.L. EUR120 | Luxe?b"“r ! Luxeg‘bour - e’)f;%or[ttfa”dde 100.00 I::;S“tfnzt
VR i | R Paris,_ Paris, .I.n_wp&t and | o | Set_ugby.
11 LUTONG FFiNCE SAS _ .__EUR_10.00_ r _Fince | France ex_pgr_T trade ‘IOO-.OO_J_-_ invesiment
’ .| Dar-esSal | Importand Set up by
12 YU'IE)I\ETA_NZA_NI{-\ _ . Usb 2{_.‘_ Tanzania : aam J' export trade 100.00 | investment
. | | Kingdom of | L 1 e
13| INSTANT ACCESS LIMITED | SAR100.00 Saudi Riyadh ImpeifEnd 100.00 ‘Set up by
!- Arabia | | export trade investment
— ...I__ i = .-— __;,._ __i_,—
14 | YUTONG WORLDWIDE FZE AED 1000 | Ug'te.d AED | e Importand | 100.00 ‘Setup by
B 4 T 1 ! mirates | exporttrade_ | _investment
| YUTONG INTERNATIONAL TRADE ! ! | .
| SGD 300.00 Singapore | Singapore | Import and 100.00 .Set Up by
PTELTD. | | export trade investment
16 | YUTONG HOLDCO PTELLTD, SGD1.00 | Singapors | Singapore | meortand 100.00 SenRly
l | . export trade investment
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' Registered . Shareholding
Serial Subsidia capital { Main place Place of Business ratio(%) Acquisition
number &4 (ten thousand | of business | registration nature A — method
yuan) _1 Directly | Indirectly
17 | YUTONG AUSTRALIA PTY LTD AUD100 | Austalla | Austali | mPortand 100.00 Setup by
[ | _exporttrade | investment
YUTONG PHILIPPINES
18 USD 2000 | Philippines | Mandaluyo | - import and 100,00 Setup by
CORPORATION ng export trade investment
19 | YUTONG KAZAKHSTANLIMITED | USD3.00 | Kazakhstan | Alma-Ata | mPortand 100,00 Setup by
. exportirade | investment
20 | YUTONG SPAIN HOLDCO S.L. EUR 0.30 Spain Spain Uit S0 100.00 Setup by
export trade investment
21 | YUTONG PANAMA S.A. | usp1.00 | Panama | Panama | ImPOftand 100.00 Setup by
export trade investment
2 | YUTONGDE MEXICOSA. DECV. | MXN2000 | Mexico | Mexico | meorand 100,00 ‘Set up by
export trade investment
23 | YUTONG GOLOMBIA SAS USD500 | Colombia | Colombia | mPortand 100.00 Setup by
export frade | investment
24 | YUTONG CHILE SPA USD 5.00 Chile Chile o 100,00 Setup by
export trade investment
25 | YUTONG CHILE IQUIQUE SPA USD 5.00 Chile lquique || meortand 100,00 SeHERD
export frade investment
26 | YUTONG-ECUADOR SA. USD10.00 | Ecuador | Quio | Importand 100,00 Setup by
- Ecuador export trade investment
27 | YUTONG PERU SAC. USD 5.00 Peru | Lima,pery | mPOrtand 100,00 Setup by
export trade investment
YUTONG (HK) INTERNATIONAL : et Setunb
D1. port an et up by
28 D HKD 1.00 Hongkong | Hongkong export trade 100.00 vestment
] Business
Hainan Yaoxing Transportation Car, taxi, bus g,
29 10,000.00 Hakou | Hakou | passenger | 100.00 Sl il
Group Co., Ltd. transport under the same
o control
. Business
Haikou Jinlun Transportation Tourist _—
30 : ’ 50.00 Haikou Haikou passenger 100.00 s T
Service Co., Ltd. transport under the s;ame
| contro
Hainan Yaoxing Group Haikou i 1 Business
31 . 10000 | Hakou | Halkou SR 10000 | combination under
Wuyue Industrial Co., Ltd. industry ihe same control
- Hainan Yuxing Road Transportation o 000 e ma Transportation | o0 o Set up by
Co., Ltd. T and storage ' investment
Haikou Yuxing Road Transportation :
33 ’ P 1,000.00 Hakou | Hakou | !rnsportation 100.00 ‘Set up by
Co., Ltd. and storage [ investment
Xizang Kangrui Yingshi Industrial Asset operation
34 70,000.00 Lhasa Lhasa and investment | 100.00 .Set PRy
; Co., Ltd. management investment
| Zhongzheng Jiaotong Yutong Setup b
35 | (Lankao) Poverty Alleviation 10,010.00 Lankao | Lankao Investment 99.90 ostupby
Industry Fund (L.P.) investment
Mold and auto Business
36 Zhengzhou Yucheng Mold Co., Ltd. 5,000.00 Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou parts 51.00 combination under
E— manufacturing the same control
37 | Zhengzhou Saichuan Electronic 5,000.00 Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou Ipciy 51.00 5usmess
| development, combination under
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‘ RegisFered Shareholding
Serial Subsidiary capital Main place Place of Business ratio(%) Acquisition
number (ten thousand | of business | registration nature — - method
yuan) Directly | Indirectly
Technology Co., Ltd. consulting, the same control
— o services i
Zhenczhou Chonaxin Real Estat Real estate
engzhou Chongxin Real Estate
g | Y g 80,000.00 | Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | CEYEIOPMENt | 40050 Setup by
Co., Ltd. and investment
- - management
Zhengzhou Tongrun Real Estat il
| Zhengzhou Tongrun Real Estate
39 o J 6005000 | Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | S€velopment 100.00 SEtup oy
Co., Ltd. and investment
management
Zhengzhou Tongzhou Real Estat ReRICSEE
engzhou Tongzhou Real Estate
40 ¢ g 505000 | Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | C8velopment 100.00 Sat up by
Co., Ltd. and investment
management
Zhengzhou Fengyu Real Estate Rea estale
engzhou Fengyu Real Estate Co.,
pr ? o 990000 | Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | EVEIOPMeNt | 40000 st up by
Ltd. and investment
management -
Changsha Economic and
Technological Development Zone Automobile and
42 d ; 4,000.00 Changsha | Changsha parts sales, 100.00 .Set Py
Sannong Yutong Technology Co., service investment
Lid.
Wuhan Yutong Shunjie BUS Automobile and
43 4,000.00 Wuhan | Wuhan | padssales, | 100.00 Setup by
Industry Co., Ltd. service investment
Nanning Yutong Shunjie Bus Co., Automobile and
44 ¢ J 4,000.00 Nanning Nanning parts sales, 100.00 'Set Up by
Ltd. service investment
Chengdu Yutong Bus Technolol Automobile and
45 o 400000 | Chengdu | Chengdu | parssales, | 10000 Set up by
Development Co., Ltd. service investment
Zaozhuang Lvxin Ruikong
46 Automobile sales and service Co., 1,000.00 Zaozhuang | Zaozhuang Sl (.)f 100.00 ,SEt up by
. automobiles investment
Shenyang Yutong Shunjie Bus Automobile and
47 .y i g ) 4,000.00 Shenyang | Shenyang parts sales, 100.00 .Set up by
Service Co., Lid. service investment
Guangzhou Zhilan Automobile Sales | Automabile and
48 ’ 35,000.00 Guangzhou Guangzho parts sales, 100.00 ,SEt up by
and Service Co., Ltd. u service investment
Shenzhen Zhilan Automobile Sales Automobile and Set up by
49 5,000.00 Shenzhen Shenzhen parts sales, 100.00 )
Co.,, Ltd. service investment
Shenzhen Yutong Zhilian Software Set up by
50 2,000.00 Shenzhen Shenzhen development 100.00 )
Technology Co., Lid. and sales investment
Changchun Ruiteng Automobile Automobile and
51 ¢ ) . 500.00 Changchun Enangents parts sales, 100.00 ,SEt up by
Sales and Service Co., Ltd. n senvice investment
Shanghai Yutong Qingpu Auomabile and cetunb
52 Automabile Technology Service Co., 4,000.00 Shanghai Shanghai parts sales, 100.00 ) P by
» service investment

Notes to financial statements Page.119




Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.

For the year ended 31 december 2023
Notes to the financial statements
English translation for reference only

I Registered Shareholding |
Serial Subsidia capital Main place Place of Business ratio(%) Acquisition
number Y (ten thousand | of business | registration nature — method
yuan) Directly | Indirectly
L g | I
Chongging Lvxin Ruikong | Automobile and Setuob
53 Automobile Sales and Service Co., 1,000.00 Chongging | Chongging parts sales, 100.00 I , poy
" SEnice | investment
| Qingdao Lyxin Ruikong New Ener . Automobile and | B
54 . g Y1 1000000 | Qingdao | Qingdao | partssales, | 100.00 SO
Technology Co., Ltd. service investment
| Shanxi Lvxin Ruikong Automobile Automobile and
55 i ¢ 500.00 Taiyuan Taiyuan | parts sales, 100.00 _SEt up by
Sales Co., Ltd. ' senvice investment
Harbin Lvxin Automobile Sales Co., ’ , Automobile and Set up by
56 | 500.00 Harbin Harbin parts sales, 100.00 )
| Ltd. service investment
Inner Mongolia Lvxin Ruikon Automobile and [ o
57 . = 1,000.00 Hohhot Hohhot parts sales, | 100.00 Setup by
Automohile Sales Co., Ltd. service investment
Tianjin Lvxin Ruikong Intelligent Adtomobile and Setunb
58 Transportation Development Co., 10,000.00 Tianjin Tianjin parts sales, 100.00 ) p oy
- service investment
Lhasa Yutong Shunjie Automobile Automobile and
59 EL 5,000.00 Lhasa Lhasa | patssales, | 100.00 Sl
Sales Co., Ltd. service investment
Zhengzhou Tonghe Propert
60 E gne Froperty 1000.00 | Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | PP | 40000 St b
Service Co., Ltd. Services investment
Zhengzh Tongji  Intelligent Technology
engzhou ongji ntelligen
61 g g ; 300000 | Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | CEVEIOPMENL 40005 iSSPy
Technology Co., Ltd. consulting, investment
services
; Business
Suzhou Wanhao Automobile Sales Automobile and b combination not
62 ) 1,001.00 Suzhou Suzhou parts sales, 100.00
and Service Co., Ltd. S under the same
control
63 | Zhengzhou Ruitu Industrial Co., Ltd. 50.00 Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | -2SM98Md | 400,00 LSGHLRIEY
service investment
Zhengzhou Ruitan Industrial Co., i
e | 5000 | Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | -S3SMIA 1 4600 ‘Set up by
Ltd. service 1| investment
o Automobile and | Setuob
65 Zhengzhou Yutong RV Co., Ltd. 5,000.00 | Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou i parts sales, 100.00 ) poy
service investment
Zhengzhou  Xuhua  Enterprise Enterprise 5at D
66 Management ~ Center  (Limited 49.00 Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | management 1.00 ) p by
partnership) Beriices investment
Zhengzhou  Xubiao  Enterprise Enterprise i St urlh
67 Management  Center  (Limited 49.00 Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | management 1.00 . p by
Pastnershiy) Sy investment
Zhengzhou  Xuxin  Enterprise Enterprise _—
68 Management ~ Center  (Limited 49.00 Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | management 1.00 | . P oy
; | investment
Partnership) SRAEER '
nership J
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. [ Registered ' . Shareholding I .
Serial Subsidiary | capital | Main place Place of Business ratio(%) ‘ Acquisition
number | (tenthousand | of business | registration nature - —— method
yuan) Directly | Indirectly |
— — = | i _
| Zhengzhou  Xurong  Enterprise | Enterprise | i St
69 Management ~ Center  (Limited 49.00 Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | management I 100 | . P oy
) ' services investment
Partnership)
Zhengzhou  Xuzhou  Enterprise Enterprise Setust

70 Management ~ Center  (Limited 49.00 Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | management 1.00 . poy

. sernvices investment
Partnership) _
Beijing Changlv Automobile sales Automobile and [ .

m J. o 100.00 Beijing Beijing parts sales, 51.49 Setup by
service Co., Ltd. semvice investment
Shanghai Pengke Automobile sales  Automabile and

2 .g ’ 100.00 Shanghai | Shanghai | parts sales, 51.49 Setup by
service Co., Ltd. semvice investment
Jinan Changlv Automobile sales Automobile and

73 . ; 100.00 Jinan Jinan parts sales, 51.49 Setup by
service Co., Ltd. service investment
Shanxi Tuyou Automobile sales Automobile and Set up by

74 ) 100.00 Shanxi Shanxi parts sales, 51.49 .
service Co., Ltd. service investment
Guangzhou Changlv Automobile Automobile and

7 ’ . 100.00 Guangzhou | CUNIO | hads sales, 51.49 Setup by
sales service Co., Ltd. u service investment

Enterprise Set o b

76 | Xizang Debai Industrial Co., Ltd. 10,000.00 Lhasa Lhasa | management | 100.00 i
services investment

Zhengzhou  Ruibiao  Enterprise Enterprise =0

77 Management ~ Center  (Limited 180.00 Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou | management 1.00 ) P by
) services investment

Partnership)

Shenzhen Yuxin Automobile sales Automobile and Set up by

78 o 400.00 Shenzhen | Shenzhen parts sales, 55.45 3
service Co., Lid. service investment

Enterprise Setun b
79 Xizang Deyou Industrial Co., Ltd. 10,000.00 Lhasa Lhasa management 100.00 . p oy
services investment
Jiangsu Lvxin Transportation Automobile and

80 ° 50,000.00 Nanjing Nanjing parts sales, 100.00 Setup by
Industry Co., Ltd. service investment
Hangzhou Lvxin Ruikeng Automobile and .

81 Automobile Sales and Service Co., 2,000.00 Hangzhou | Hangzhou parts sales, 100.00 . P oy

service investment
Ltd. |
Hebei Xiongan Lvxin Ruikong New ; ; Automobile and

) = g 500.00 i Hebel | = harts sales, 100.00 ‘Setup by

Energy Technology Co., Ltd. iongan Xiongan sanice. | investment

Note: The registered capital unit is 10,000 yuan, the currency of overseas subsidiaries is shown in the table above, and

the currency of domestic subsidiaries is RMB.

(1)The basis for holding half or less voting rights but still controlling the investee

The company's subsidiaries, Zhengzhou Yutong RV Co., Ltd, Xizang Debai Industrial Co.,

Ltd.(hereinafter referred to as the Company), newly added the Zhengzhou Xuhua Enterprise
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Management Center (limited partnership), Zhengzhou Xubiao Enterprise Management Center

(limited partnership), Zhengzhou Xuxin Enterprise Management Center (limited partnership),

Zhengzhou Xurong Enterprise Management Center (limited partnership), Zhengzhou Xuzhou

Enterprise Management Center (limited partnership), Zhengzhou RuiBiao Enterprise Management

Center (limited partnership) investment, the shareholding ratio of 1%, according to the articles of

association, the company as a general partner, has the actual control of the invested units, so

included in the scope of the merger.

2.Equity in joint-ventures or associates

i. Significant joint ventures and associates

1
Main place Place of Business

Shareholding ratio(%})

. . Accounting
Jolnt-ventures /associates of business | registration nature Directly Indirectly treatment
Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Financial .
Co.Ltd. Zhengzhou | Zhengzhou Services 20.00 Equity method

ii. Main financial information of significant associates

Item

Closing balance/current period

Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd.

Current assets

34,201,849,413.80

Non-current assets

808,596,971.53

Total assets

35,010,446,385.33

Current liabilities

31,231,698,247.82

Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

31,231,698,247.82

Minority interests

1,851,586,587.38

Attributable to shareholders of parent company

1,927,161,550.13

Shares of net assets in proportion | 1,095,836,959.88
Adjustments

—Goodwil -

—Unrealized profits from internal transactions B

—Others -505,836,959.88
Book value of equity investment in joint ventures 590,000,000.00

Fair value of equity investments with public offer

Revenue

1,295,548,238.44

Net profit

349,648,203.62

Net profit from discontinued operations

Other comprehensive income
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T

' Closing balance/current period
[tem ‘
|

Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd.

Total comprehensive income | 349,648,203.62

Dividends received from joint ventures of the current year i

§

Continued:
e Opening balance/ prior period '
Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd.
Current assets . 32,373,325,717.56
Non-current assets 358,613,127.58
Total assets ' 32,731,938,845.14
Current liabilities 26,997,740,703.38
Non-current liabilities 2,305,053,366.20
o Total liabilities 29,302,794,069.58
* Minority interests 1,680,280,940.02
Attributable to shareholders of parent company 1,748,863,835.54
Shares of net assets in proportion 994,451,984.91
Adjustments
—Goodwill

—Unrealized profits from internal transactions

—Others

Book value of equity investment in joint ventures 994,451,984.91

Fair value of equity investments with public offer

Revenue 1,064,266,157.28
Financial expenses 347,732,783.49
Income tax expenses

‘Net profit [
Net profit from discontinued operations 347,732,783.49

Other comprehensive income

Other notes:

Based on the changes in the macro environment of the financial leasing industry, the securities
market conditions of financial institutions in the same industry and the company's transfer
quotation, the company judges that there are signs of impairment in the equity of Henan Jiuding
Financial Leasing Co., LTD., and estimates the recoverable amount of long-term equity
investment in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards for Enterprises No. & -
Asset Impairment. The book value of the equity investment in the associated enterprise after the

adjustment of the Company's share of net assets based on shareholding ratio is 59000.00 ten
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thousand yuan.

jii. Summary financial information of nonsignificant joint ventures and associates

ltem Closing balance/ current period | Opening balance/ prior period
Joint ventures: j ‘ -
Total book valueo?nvestment - o 56,218,876.31 JP
[tems calculated according to shareholding ratio — - — '
Net profit - 48,720,926.19
Other comprehensive income - T o
Total comprehensive income 48,720,926.19 N
Associates: a —
Total book value of investment | 3,326,247.82 | 2,488,178.79
i ltems calculated according to shareholding ratio - | -
Net profit 38,069.03 -272,517.78
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income 38,069.03 ] -272,517.78
IX.Government grants
1.Liabilities involving government subsidies
Agigléng?g Opening balance sult?si;ei:g?n{rt]he ﬁtr;gru Pr:égfr::?ﬁ%g Oth(enroct2a1n)ges Closing balance iﬁ:g’;g_?:;etgé
current period current period
Deferred income 495,577,150.48 915,000.00 154,654,238.58 1,255,102.19 | 340,582,809.71 Asset-related
Deferred income‘ 173,586,528.33 6,756,593.00 12,740,051.91 7,586,000.00 | 160,017,069.42 |  Income-related
Total 669,163,678.81 7,671,593.00 167,394,290.49 8,841,102.19 | 500,599,879.13

Note 1: Among other changes, RMB 7,941,102.19 is paid to the project partner and RMB
900,000.00 is adjusted as part of the consideration received in advance in connection with the

services provided by the company.

2.Government subsidies recognized in profit or loss for the current period

Subsidy project

Accounting account

Amortization of deferred earnings

Other income

Industrial support and reward

Other income

Market development subsidies

Other income

Reward for talents

Other income

Research and development subsidies

Other income

Amount incurred in Amount incurred in Asset-related/
the current period the prior period income-related
167,394,20049 208,440008.41 | Assetrelated
income-related

107,713,185.00 126,435,594.00 Income-related
9,688,800.00 Income-related

5,000,000.00 10,950,000.00 Income-related
7,114,000.00 14,856,400.00 Income-related
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I ]
VAT is refunded as soon as it is collected Other income j 4,876,339.11 | 8,322,058.80 | income-related
Others Other income ]' 8,619,872.91 | 16,716,548.92 |  Income-related
Total j 300,717,687.51 | 415,418,500.13

X.Risks relevant to financial instruments

Major financial instruments of the Company including cash and cash equivalents, equity
investments, debt investments, loans, accounts receivable and accounts payable, etc. Operating
activities of the Company are exposed to various financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk. Risks related to these financial instruments and the risk management policies the

Company adopted for lowering these risks are listed as below:

The Board of Directors is respomsible for planning and establishing the Company's risk
management structure, formulating the Company's risk management policies and related
guidelines and overseeing the implementation of risk management measures. The Company has
developed risk management policies to identify and analyze the risks to which the Company is
exposed. These risk management policies clearly define specific risks and cover many aspects
such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk management. The Company periodically
evaluates changes in the market environment and the Company's business activities to determine
whether to update its risk management policies and systems. The Company's risk management is
carried out by the relevant departments in accordance with the policies approved by the Board of
Directors. The Company's internal audit department conducts periodic reviews of risk
management controls and procedures and reports the results to the Company's audit Committee.
The Company diversifies its financial instrument risk through appropriate diversification of its
investments and business portfolio, and reduces the risk of concentration in a single industry, a

specific region or a specific counterparty by developing appropriate risk management policies.
1.Various types of risks arising from financial instruments

i. Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that will cause a financial loss to the Company due fo failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties. Appropriate credit policies are made by the

management of the Company to constantly observe the exposure of these credit risks.

The Company only has trade with recognized third party with good credit standing as result of
adoption of relevant policies. Credit-worthiness of the customers are evaluated based on financial
position of the customer, possibility to guaranteed by a third party, credit record and other factors

(i.e., present market condition), thus relevant credit periods are set. The Company monitors the
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debtors' credit records regularly and ensures its overall credit risk within controllable range by
written reminders, shorten or cancel credit periods to the debtors with bad credit history, in order
to ensure that the Company will not be exposed to significant risk of bad debts. In addition, the
Company reviews the recoverability of financial assets at the end of the reporting period to ensure

that the adequate impairment losses are made for relevant financial assets.

Other financial assets of the Company comprise of cash and cash equivalents, other
receivables,debt investments,Long-term receivables, etc. Credit risk from such financial assets is
from default of counterparties, and its maximum risk exposure is equivalent to the carrying
amount of such instruments. There is no external guarantee provided by the Company that may

expose the Company to credit risk.

For cash and cash equivalents held by the Company are mainly saved at national banks and other
large and medium-sized commercial bank, which are considered to have high prestige and good
condition of assets by the management, thus it is considered to be no significant credit risk or no
significant loss due to default of the opposite party. Deposits are manipulated after consideration
of market reputation, scale of operation and financial background of each financial institution

known, in order to restrict the credit risk amount of each single financial institution.

As part of credit risk management of the Company, impairment loss of accounts receivable and
other receivables are assessed by means of aging analysis. For many clients are involved in
accounts receivable and other receivables, aging can reflect the solvency and bad debt risk of these
clients. Expected loss rate is determined on the basis of historical credit loss experience, after
adjustment with the consideration of current conditions and future economic forecasts (i.c.
national GDP growth, total capital investment, national monetary policy). For long-term
receivables, the Company comprehensively considers the scttlement period, the payment period
agreed in the contract, the financial status of the debtor and the economic situation of the industry
in which the debtor operates, and makes a reasonable assessment of the expected credit losses

after taking into account the forward-looking information mentioned above.

As at 31 December 2023, book balance and ECL impairment of relevant assets are listed as below:

[tem Book balance Provision for impairment
) N_otes receivable | 246,702,765.75 - :1895‘758—
Accounts receivable | 568352140862 | 1,714,728,514.36
Bank at;ceptances B 211,076,691.04
Other receivables - - 1.330,917,377.68m " 310,157,446.77.
Debt investments . 5 _ 134,252,000.02
Eﬁzgwfﬁfﬁ ;iie;’v:abr')es CIncluding amounts 172,226,220.83 ; 22,666,000.46
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Item

Total

Book halance

7,778,696,463.94 |

Provision for impairment

2,047,601,003.57

The Company's main customers are large bus companies, etc.

These customers are reliable and

good standing, and therefore, the Company considers that these customers do not have significant

credit risk.

Due to the Company's broad customer base, there is no significant credit

concentration risk.

As the Company's accounts receivable risk points are distributed among multiple partners and

multiple customers, 49.07% of the Company's accounts receivable as of December 31, 2023

(December 31, 2022:41.19%) originated from the top five customers with balances, and the

Company does not have significant credit concentration risk.

The Company's maximum credit exposure is the carrying value of each financial asset on its

balance sheet.

For the bank financial products invested by the Company, the credit rating of the counterparty

shall be higher than or the same as that of the Company. In view of the counterparty's good credit

rating, the Company's management does not expect that the counterparty will be unable to meet its

obligations.

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that there is a shortage of capital when the Company repay the duty of

delivering cash or other financial assets.

self-cash flow forecasting.

The Company and its subsidiaries are responsible for

The management of the Company monitors rolling forecasts of the

Company's short-term and long-term liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash and

securities that are readily convertible to cash to meet operational needs,

while maintaining

sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities from major financial

institution so that the Company does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of its

borrowing facilities to meet the short-term and long-term liquidity requirements.

As at 31 December 2023, the undiscounted contractual cash flows of financial liabilities and

guarantees off-balance sheet of the Company are listed as below by maturity date:

Closing balance
ltem Immediate " | Morethans | -
i oayment Within 1 year £ years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years i years _Total
Non-derivative |
financial liabilities | B - o 1 -
Notes payable 3,305,579,159.12 [ 3,305,579,159.12
" Accounts | R -
payable 3,837,693,858.77 ! 3,837,693,858.77
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Closing balance

ltem Timmediate | e [ B m | Morethan5 | )

) payment | Wlthm_‘l yei __1:2 years %-3_yfars 34 yeai ] 4-5 yeaﬁ years }_ _ Total _
Other payables | 2,280,463,542.26 i 2,280,463,542.26
Siieycurht 73,213,569.91 73,213,569.91
liabilities ! B il o
Current portion of
non-current [ 4,110,702.05 4.110,702.05

_liabilities i . - S I I R
Lease liabilities 3,563,828.13 | 3,663,718.42 | 3,073,575.48 | 2,003,445.87 | 1,220,484.73 13,525,052.63

Total 9,496,950,130.06 | 4,110,702.05 | 3,563,828.13 | 3,663,718.42 | 3,073,575.48 | 2,003,445.87 1,220,484.73 | 9,514,585,884.74

iii. Market risk
(1) Exchange rate risk

The main business of the company is located in China and the main business is settled in RMB.
The company has a certain scale of export sales, export to many countries, transaction currencies,

foreign exchange risks mainly include the following aspects:

Foreign exchange risk mainly comes from the volatility and unpredictability of exchange rate,
resulting in the risk of loss of the company's foreign exchange assets or liabilities; The fluctuation
of exchange rate will cause the company's export cost to increase or the customer's purchase cost

to increase, reducing the customer's purchasing power.

1) The situation of forward foreign exchange contracts or currency swap contracts signed by the

Company this year is as follows:

In order to reduce the impact of receivables on exchange rate fluctuations, the company has
established a sound management mechanism and process, and signed full forward foreign
exchange contracts with banks according to the receivables contract to avoid foreign exchange

risks. The forward foreign exchange contracts performed by the Company during the year are as

follows:
Unit: ten thousand yuan
ltem usDh EUR AUD GBP MXN DKK AMD QAR
Sign a contract 62,124.88 | 41,952.41 6,691.03 1,518.56 | 218,274.32 1,400.43 139,980.24 | 26,788.47
Complete the delivery 44,606.93 17,199.45 4,465.36 151856 | 215329.10 1,400.43 139,980.24 | 26,788.47
Not yet due 17,517.95 | 24,752.96 2,225.67 2,945.22
Revenue 147217 -1,746.16 146.31 -84.66 -9,578.77 -22.51 -144.56 -71.36

2) As at 31 December 2023, the foreign currency financial assets and foreign currency liabilifies

held by the Company are converted into RMB and listed as below:
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ltem | ; —
usD EUR AUD

" Foreign currency
financial assets:
Cash and Cash

189,834,782.22 | 449,681,936.00

117,733,728.25

Joribin | | 127,955.250.12 | 89520569759
Accounts receivable | 1,640,078515.84 | 19,684,74042 | 8,563,566.73 | 1,668,326,822.99
Otherreceivables | 24125227850 | | 377063219 | 157455070 | 24650746139

Swbiolal | 207116557656 | 469,366,676.42 | 121,504,36144 | 138,003,367.55 | 2,800,129,98197

"~ Foreign currency
financial liabilities:

Accounts payable 31,794,548.89 2,944,595.30 34,739,144.19
Other payables 191,079,592.27 5,608,755.65 184,411.80 3,147,492.23 200,020,251.95
Subtotal r 222,874,141.16 8,553,350.95 184,411.80 3,147,492.23 234,759,396.14

3) Sensitivity analysis:

As of December 31, 2023, for various foreign currency financial assets and financial liabilities of
the Company, if RMB appreciates or depreciates by 10% against them and other factors remaisn
unchanged, the Company will reduce or increase its net profit by approximately 256,537,058.58
yuan (approximately 241,713,377.55 yuan in 2022).

(2) Interest rate risk

The company's interest rate risk mainly arises from bank borrowings. Financial liabilities with
floating interest rate expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk, while financial liabilities
with fixed interest rate expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. The Company
determines the relative proportion of fixed and floating rate contracts based on prevailing market

conditions.

The company's finance department continuously monitors the company's interest rate level. An
increase in interest rates will increase the cost of new interest-bearing debt and the Company's
outstanding interest expense on interest-bearing debt with floating interest rates, and will have a
material adverse impact on the Company's financial performance. The management will make

timely adjustments based on the latest market conditions.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company has no floating rate contracts.

2.Hedging

i. The company carries out hedging business for risk management

Corresponding risk | Qualitative and quantitative The economic Expected effective | The impact of

ltem management strategies information on hedged risk | relationship between the realization of risk | corresponding
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and objectives hedged item and the management hedging activities on
related hedging objectives risk exposure
instrument

The company has
As the foreign exchange | established a sound | The hedging business
return ultimately needs | foreign exchange | of the company is
to be seffled into RMB, | management mainly based on the

The amount of forward
foreign exchange
In order to effectively avoid | transactions conducted by
the risk of exchange rate | the Company is based on the

S \ the spot settlement | mechanism and | forecast return of all
Overseas fluctuations in the. process Companys foracast . of exchange rate fluctuates | process, and tracks | overseas sales
' of overseas vehicle and | foreign currency collection, . ! )
vehicle sales g from time to time due to | the  execution of | orders, and the
: spare parts sales, raw | the amount of foreign . i ;
collection and . 5 ! : market influence. In | orders through | foreign exchange
materials and equipment | currency in forward foreign . ! . ' )
overseas X ) order to avoid the risk of | information setflement is based
imports, we use hedging as | exchange contracts shall not
purchase future exchange rate | technology to ensure | on  the locked
a means fo lock the cost | exceed the expected amount .
payment : . . . fluctuations, the | that the amount and | exchange rate after
. and income of orders in | of foreign currency collection X . ;
hedging advance to avoid the | in the future, and the delive settlement  exchange | time  of  foreign | the  payment s
business ' WVlrate is locked in | exchange payment | received, so as to

impact of exchange rate | period of forward foreign
fluctuations on the | exchange business shall

advance through | match the locked | hedge the risk of
hedging tools according | amount and time, so | uncertain  exchange

company's earnings match the ftime of foreign | "% oicted retum | as to avoid risk | rate on the payment
currency collection predicted time and amount exposure and delivery | date
i | by the Company delay |

ii. The company carries out qualified hedge business and applies hedge accounting

Book value related to ) RSIGIMAENYS K vglue hedge ) Hedging validity and , The impact of hedge
) adjustment of the hedged item included in O . .
Item hedged items and . X hedging invalidity are partof | accounting on the financial
hedging instruments the recognized carying value of the the source | statements of the company
o , hedged item |
Type of hedging risk
Exchanae The correlation between the
rate ris?( -23,827,170.95 Inapplicability hedged item and the hedged -142,717,314.55
. o instrument
Hedging class
- Fairvalte | ‘ i - The correlation between the | -
hedde -23,827,170.95 | Inapplicability hedged item and the hedged | -142,717,314.55
g | instrument |
3.Financial assets
i. Tranfer method classification
tranfer | The nature of the transferred Amount of financial Termination | The judgment basis of the termination of
~ methed | financlal assets assets transferred recognition condition confirmation )
With acceptance by a bank with a higher
[ credit rating, the credit risk and delayed
| i payment risk are small, and the interest rate
Termination risk related to the bill has been transferred
Endorsement | Bank acceptance not yet due SHp2atser acknowledgement to the bank, it can be judged that the main
risks and rewards on the ownership of the
bill have been transferred, so the
B B | confirmation is terminated
Unterminated
Endorsement | _l?ank acceptance not yet due | 73,213,569.91 acknowledgement
. . Termination Transfer to a financial institution without
Factoring Accounts receivable ) |. 1,369,177,756.84 acknowledgement | recourse o
Total 1,787,216,980.42 |
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ii. Financial assets whose recognition has been terminated by transfer

i The amount of financial | Gains or losses associated
ltem _ tranfer method . assets that have been | with the termination of
S S | derecognized | tecogniion
Bank acceptance not yet due '. Endorsement | 344,825,653.67 |
Accounts receivable ]. Factoring : 1,369,177,756.84 | -35,705,554.18
Total | | 1,714,003,410.51 | -35,705,554.18
X1.Fair value

1.Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Company presents book value of financial assets in accordance of three levels of fair value on
31 December 2023. If the inputs used to measure fair value are categorized into three different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the
level of the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. Definitions of three

levels are listed as below:

Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the entity can access at the measurement date;,

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

Level 2 inputs include: 1) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 2) quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; 3) inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, for example interest rates and yield
curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, implied volatilities and credit spreads; 4) inputs
that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other

means (‘market-corroborated inputs’).

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

2.Fair value measurement at end of the period

i. Continuous fair value measurement

Fair value at end of the period
ltem — T ———— T
Level 1 Level 2 [ Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value N
thvough profitorloss - { 100,121,315.07 100,121,315.07
Wealth management
orodiicls ] 100,121,315.07 100,121,315.07
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Fair value at end of the period

ltem - —" S—
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 | Total

Financing receivables 211,076,691.04 i 211,076,691.04
Other equity instruments 250,065,362.94 1228799.400.00 | 1,479,764,762.94
investments el |
2;22{5”0”'0“"‘*“ﬂ“ano'a' !' 45177327744 | 14703000000 | 598,803,277 44

Total assets | 250,965,362.94 45177327744 | 1,687,027,406.11 ' 2,389,766,046.49
Financial liabilities at fair value | T 1
through profitor loss s | 45,596,310.35 I -

Forward foreign exchange ' 45,558 310.35

contract o\ 4oL

Total liabilities } 45,558,310.35

3.The basis for determining the market price of continuous and non-continuous level 1 fair

value measurement items:

It is the unadjusted quotation of the same asset or liability available in the active market at the

measurement date.

4.Qualitative and quantitative information on the valuation techniques used and important

parameters for continuous and non-continuous level 2 fair value measurement items

i. Ttis the directly or indirectly observable input value of the relevant asset or liability in addition

to the input value of the first level;

ii. The second level of input values include: quotations of similar assets or liabilities in active
markets; Quotations of the same or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; ~Observable
inputs other than quotes, including interest rates and yield curves, implied volatility and credit
spreads, etc., that are observable during normal quotes intervals;  Input values for market

verification, etc.

5.Qualitative and quantitative information on the valuation techniques used and important

parameters for continuous and non-continuous level 3 fair value measurement items

Valuation techniques are used to determine the fair value of certain items invested in other equity
instruments that are not traded in active markets. The valuation model used is mainly discounted

cash flow model.

For some projects invested in other equity instruments that are not traded in the active market, it is
not feasible to adopt income method or market method to evaluate the equity of the invested
company due to the low equity held by the company and no significant impact, and the invested

company has not introduced external investors or transferred equity between shareholders in the
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near future, which can be used as the reference basis for determining the fair value. In addition,
from the analysis of relevant information available, the company has not found that the internal
and external environment of the invested unit has changed significantly since the beginning of the
year, so it is a "limited situation" in which book cost is the best estimate of fair value, so cost is

taken as fair value at the end of the year.

6.Continuous fair value measurement items, if there is a conversion between various levels
during the current period, the reasons for the conversion and the policy for determining the

timing of the conversion

The above continuous fair value measurement items of the Company did not have convetsion
between levels during the year.

7.Changes in valuation technology during the current period and reasons for the changes
The fair value valuation technique of the Company's financial instruments has not changed during
the year.

8.The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value mainly include: receivables, creditor's
rights investment, short-term borrowings, payables, non-current liabilities due within one year,

lease liabilities.

The difference between the carrying amount and fair value of the above financial assets and

liabilities not measured at fair value is very small.

XIILRelated parties and related party transactions

1.The company's parent company

Registered | Shareholding | Proportion of voting
PEEHIESET Place of Business nature capital ratio of parent i rights of parent
registration (ten thousand |company to the| company to the
- ) o yuan) | ~company(%) company(%)
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Zhengzhou M.achlner;./ manufacturing, 80,000.00 3770 3770
Co. Lid. finance, investment, etc

The ultimate controlling party of the company is Tang Yuxiang.

2.Please refer to the notes VIII-1 for details of the company's subsidiaries.
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3.Joint venture and associates of the enterprise

Please refer to the notes VIII-2 for details of the company's joint venture and associates.

The situation of other joint ventures or associated enterprises which have related party transactions

with the Company during the current period or the balance of related party transactions with the

Company in the previous period is as follows:

Joint-ventures or associates

TOO "QazTehna"

Relationship with the company

Joint-ventures

Guangzhou Yuhao Automobile Sales Co.,Ltd.

associates

4.0ther related parties

Name of other related parties

Relationship with the company

Zhengzhou Yutong Heavy Industries Co.,Ltd.

A confrolling subsidiary of the parent company

Aolande Environmental Technology Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Shenlan Power Technology Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Zony Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

EWEA-TECH Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Yutong mining equipment Co., Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Yutong Group Finance Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

SINOMACHINARY INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Henan Haiwei New Energy Technology Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Zhibo Environmental Technology Co.,ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Dingju New Material Technology Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Shanxiang New Energy Technolagy Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Zhibo Electromechanical Equipment Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Yutong Commercial Vehicle Co. Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Yutong Light Commercial Vehicle Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Yujia Auto Supplies Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Yipinju Industrial Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Henan Liwei New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Henan Kuailu Travel Service Co.,Lid.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Huizhongzhicheng Education Technology Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

SAILING INTERNATIONAL LEASING LIMITED

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Zunpin trading Co.,Ltd.

A controlling subsidiary of the parent company

Zhengzhou Yuansheng Enterprise Management Co.,Ltd.

Same actual controlier

Henan Lvdu Property Service Co.,Ltd.

Same actual controller

Anhe Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd.

Same actual controlier
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Name of other related parties Relalionship with the company

Anying Commercial Factoring Co.,Ltd.

Same actual controller

Zhengzhou Haohan Technology Co.,Lid. Same actual controller

Jiangsu Haofeng Construction Engineering Co.,Ltd.

Shanghat Lvlan Engineering Consulting Co.,Ltd.

Same actual controller

Same actual controller

Same actual controller

Same actual controller

Tianjin Oasis Construction Technalogy Co.,Ltd.

Shanghai Huitong Energy Co.,Ltd.

Henan Maodu decoration engineering Co.,Ltd. Same actual controller

Zhengzhou Bainian Dehua Business Management Co.,Ltd. Same actual controller

Zhengzhou Yiren Industrial Co.,Ltd. Same actual controller

Henan Tengdu Real Estate Marketing Planning Co.,Ltd. Same actual controller

Zhengzhou Beiouke Safety Technology Co.,Ltd. Other
Zhengzhou Traffic Transportation Company Other
Zhengzhou Zhongcheng Lubrication Technology Co.,Ltd. Other

5.Related party transaction

i. For subsidiaries that have a controlling relationship and have been included in the scope
of the Company's consolidated financial statements, their mutual transactions and

parent-subsidiary transactions have been offset.

ii. Purchase of goods and receiving of service

Related party Naturt:);):t;elated Amount in the Amount in the prior
fransactions _hcurrent period period
I . Financing
_Anhe Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd. services 527,645.73 15,826,416.25
N . Mortgage
Anhe Financial Leasing Co. Ltd. discount interest 8,774,678.27 36,129,424.10
m . Receiving of
_ Anhe Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd. sanfie 1,350,000.00 B
Yutong Heavy Industiies Co.Ltd. and its controlled Purchase of 3.052.526.44 6.040.155.79
subsidiaries goods e TR
Yutong Heavy Industries Co.Ltd. and its confrolled Receiving of 19.160.813.52 17.885.904.57
subsidiaries service R e
Yutopg .Heavy Industries Co.,Ltd. and its controlled Leasing services 050,542.37 180.466.34
subsidiaries - )
Zhengzhou Lvdu Real Estate Group Co.Ltd. and its Purchase of 482.937.05
controlled subsidiaries goods .
Zhengzhou Lvdu Real Estate Group Co.Ltd. and ils Receiving of
controlled subsidiaries i 17,395,313.40 46,628,781.81
Zhengzhou Yuansheng Enterprise Management Co.,Ltd. Purchase of 337137 58
and its controlled subsidiaries goods e -
Zhengzhou Yuansheng Enterprise Management Co.,Ltd. Receiving of 1728334.73
and its controlled subsidiaries service p. -
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.Ltd. and is controlled Purchase of [ 338 697 001.96 353 773.785.59
subsidiaries N goods | D iy Yyt
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.Ltd. and its controlled Receiving of 27,468,509.11 47,418,002.78
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Related part et ::trelated i Amount in the : Amount in the prior
party i party | currentperiod | period
| taensactions | [
subsidiaries service | !
“Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.Ltd. and its controlled | Purchase of fixed | _| .
 subsidiaries assets 6,624,007.20 | 2,655,558.23
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.Ltd. and its controlled Financing
subsidiaries B senvices 29,963,235.68 30,094,980.15
Zheng;hgu Yutong Group Co.Ltd. and its controlled Leasing services 973,612.24 !
subsidiaries - -
Zhengzhou Zhongcheng Lubrication Technology Co.,Ltd. Pu;c:(?;: L 14,443,667.57
. | Mortgage | N '
Zhengzhou Yutong Gro‘up Finance Co.,Ltd. | discount interest | _ 49,429.71
Zhengzhou Shenlan Power Technology Co.,Ltd. P“g’:{fj: of | 561262,386.04 | 1,035.216,083.94
Zhengzhou Shenlan Power Technology Co.,Ltd. Re::x:gg N 319,792.18 5,058,985.68
EWEA-TECH Co. Ltd. P“g:j‘i: L 108,070,04149 | 136,014,546.23
EWEA-TECH Co.Ltd. Receiving of 183,263.20 744,278.97
service
Zhengzhou Shanxiang New Energy Technology Co.,Ltd. Pugsgjds: N 21,708,251.40
Zhengzhou Beiouke Safety Technology Co.,Ltd. P“g:g;: Bt 29,.814,475.95 38,629,476.34
Zhengzhou Beiouke Safety Technology Co.,Ltd. Reg:mgg N 633,431.73 291,400.30
Zhengzhou Bainian Dehua Business Management Co.,Ltd. Reg:x:gg g 35,000.00 597,101.53
. ' . Financing
Anying Commercial Factoring Co. Ltd. senvices 2,068,371.66 3,018,454.03
. . . Mortgage
Anying Commercial Factoring Co.,Ltd. discount interest 34,457,685.35 10,540,374.81
Shanghai Huitong Energy Co.,Ltd. Advisory services 2,674,528.30
. Recelving of
HShangha| Huitong Energy Co.,Ltd. service 213,537.74
Henan Maodu decoration engineering Co.,Ltd. Recelv!ng o 677,331.10
service
Total 1,208,491,342.24 1,811,658,623.90

iii. Sales of goods and rendering of service

Related party

Nature of related

Amount in the

Amount in the

- party transactions current period prior period
N . Sale of finished
Anhe Financial Leasing Co. Ltd. vehicles 2,150,442.49
Anhe Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd. Sales of Materials 1,106.82 1,907.08
- . - rendering of
Anhe Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd. service 1,849,878.17 1,894,116.91“_
Anhe Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd. Leasing services 572,773.25
Anying Commercial Factoring Co.,Ltd. rer:ieirllir;g of 1,052,530.42
“VYutong Heavy Industries Co.Ltd. and its controlled | Sale of finished
subsidiaries yvehicles 76,418.58 409,734.51
Yutong Heavy Industies Co.Ltd. and its controlled .
cibilHianas Sales of Materials 79,579,194.36 | 107,070,658.49 '
Yutong Heavy Industries Co.ltd. and its controlled rendering of
subsidiaries sorloa 18,781,7563.62 27,623,848.49
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Related party

Nature of related

Amount in the

Amount in the

- B - party transactions current period prior period
Yutopg .Heavy Industries Co.,Ltd. and its controlled Leasing services | 1831689
subsidiaries ) | S -
Yutong Heavy Industries Co.Ltd. and its controlled Salesof fixed | 20930.09
subsidiaries assets | ) T
Zhengzhou Beiouke Safety Technolagy Co. Ltd. Sales of Materials 1,476,183.44 1,295,844 53
Zhengzhou Beiouke Safety Technology Co. L. ] of 275,800.87 884,549.89
Zhengzhou Traffic Transportation Company Sale Of.f inished 1,400,353.98
: vehicles o
Zhengzhou Traffic Transportation Company Sales of Materials 3,502.13 18,892.47
Zhengzhou Lvdu Real Estate Group Co.lLtd. and its . '
 controlled subsidiaries Sales of Materials 3,426,3384.99
gg:ﬁgﬁ:gZué:ig?arissal Estate Group Co.Ltd. and its rer;det-l::\rllir;lg5 of 410,46136 419,565.01
Zhengzhou Yuansheng Enterprise Management Co. Ltd. rendering of 1016.066.76
and its controlled subsidiaries service R
Zhengzhou Bainian Dehua Business Management Co.,Ltd. rer;de?v”i’;g of | 49,319.34 32,924.53
Zheng;hgu Yutong Group Co.Ltd. and its controlled | Sale off|n|shed 17194.939.53 16,627,224 81
__subsidiaries vehicles
S Sitog” S Co.Ltd. and its controlled | g o0 of praterials | 251,011,780.93 | 227,768,190.72
s:t?;?j?:r?:s Yutong Group Co.Ltd. and its controlled renstlenrllir;g of 94.485,965.81 52.264,500.30
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.Ltd. and its controlled Sales of fixed
subsidiaries assets 21650 191,232.13
igggi%iz:r?éjs Yutong Group Co.Ltd. and its controlled Leasing services 5357.106.92
Zhengzhou Zhongchehg Lubrication Technology Co.,Ltd. Sales of Materials 57,368.04
Zhengzhou Zhongcheng Lubrication Technology Co.,Ltd. rensi?\rllirc]:g of 122,234.09
Zhengzhou Yiren Industrial Co. Lid. fegeilng gt 19,443.40
service
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Finance Co.,Ltd. Leasing services 277,875.00
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Finance Co.,Ltd. renderi‘ng of 260,402.87
service
Zhengzhou Shenlan Power Technology Co.,Ltd. Sales of Materials 519,795.99 973,835.17
Zhengzhou Shenlan Power Technology Co, Ltd. rens‘lfv”igg ot 704932275 | 19,304,308.55
Zhengzhou Shenlan Power Technology Co.,Ltd. Leasing services 10,943.12
EWEA-TECH Co.,Ltd. Sales of Materials 8,488,129.08 16,974,063.34
EWEA-TECH Co. L. Bl 1,498,829.33 2,586,034.39
service
Sales of fixed
EWEA-TECH Co. Ltd. assets 26,000.01
Zhengzhou Shanxiang New Energy Technology Go.,Ltd. Sales of Materials 1,757,306.81
Zhengzhou Shanxiang New Energy Technology Co.,Ltd. rensifvnizg ] 1,384,333.33
. rendering of
Shanghai Huitong Energy Co.,Ltd. service 31,064 43
" " Sale of finished
TOO "QazTehna"(note) vehicles 1,415,272,505.00
&t 1,908,222,593.38 485,196,029.64
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Note: The Company's new investment in TOO "QazTehna" in the current period, the mvestment
agreement stipulated that the relevant rights retroactive to April 21, 2021, the Company in 2021
and 2022 to TOO "QazTehna" vehicle sales of 213,626,338.50 yuan, 325,043,908.00 yuan.

iv. Related party deposits and loans

(1) Deposit

Related party Opening balance Elfr?gr?t[tp:[;rtizg Wlthdr:\gr;g dcurrent Closing balance
~ Zhengzhou Yutong Group ' .
Finance Go.Ltd. 2,825,809,200.61 | 51,713,330,305.77 | 51,691,725,387.90 2,847,414,127.48
Total i 2,825,809,209.61 | 51,713,330,305.77 _ 51,691,725,387.90 2,847 414,127.48
(2) Interest on deposits
Pricingnrgethod Amount in the current period Amount in the prior period
decision-making Proportion Proportion of
Related party procedure of of similar similar
Amount : Amount 0
related party transaction transactions(%
fransactions s(%) )
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Finance | ot price | 54,593,695.03 37.26 | 39,927,808.89 64.40
Co.Ltd P
Total 54,593,695.03 39,927,808.89

(3) Commission fees and account management fees

Pricingnrgethod Amount in the current period | Amount in the prior period
Related party decision-making Proportion Proportion
Related party transaction procedure of - of similar Amount of similar
| related party transactions fransactio
transactions (%) ns(%)
Commission fees
Zhengzhou Yutong and account Market price | 1,538,614.18 649 | 856,237.00 5.04
Group Finance Co.,Lid.
management fees
Total 1,538,614.18 856,237.00
(4) Factoring
ltem Amount in the current period Amount in the prior period
Anying Commercial Factoring Co.,Ltd. 567,524,160.00 309,520,035.00
SAILING INTERNATIONAL LEASING LIMITED 692,772,496.82 413,008,896.86
Total 1,260,296,656.82 722,528,931.86

(5) Other businesses

As of December 31, 2023, the amount of outstanding guarantees issued by the Company and its
subsidiaries in Zhengzhou Yutong Group Finance Co., Ltd. is 251,476,259.50 yuan.

v. Remuneration of key management personnel
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ltem | Amount in the current period Amount in the prior period

Remuneration of key management personnel | 11,306,462.01 9,789,354.01

vi. Other related party transactions

Related party transaction Related party Amountplgrm urrent Amour:;;:]iotze prior
!
Acquisition of equity SINOMACHINARY INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 65,739.55
Total 65,739.55
vii. Receivables and payables of related parties
(1) Receivables from related parties
Closing balance Opening halance
Item Related party i
Carrying value Bad debts Carrying value Bad debts
Accounts
receivable
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.,Ltd. 41,674,668.91 2,083,73343
Zhengzhou Yutong Heavy
Industries Co. Ltd. 8,574,660.50 428,733.02 15,107,164.78 755,358.24 ‘
EWEA-TECH Co. Ltd. 5,023,413.34 251,170.67 2,946,011.17 147,300.56
Zhengzhou Yutong mining
) equipment Co., L1d. 3,499,769.35 174,988.47 4,196,257.74 209,812.89
Guangzhou Yuhao  Automobile 347816871 | 100814423 | 2832637278 |  9,699,43553
Sales Co.,Ltd.
Henan Haiwei New  Energy
Technology Co.Ltd. 2,327,573.01 116,378.65 3,822,690.75 191,134.54
= Commerial  Vehicle 1,770,250.39 88,5298 |  11,053,488.21 552,674.41
Ty, on COERECET NRIEE 429,848.94 2149245 | 843091014 421,545.51
Jiangsu  Haofeng  Construction
Engineering Co. Ltd. 398,185.67 38,028.53 362,385.00 18,119.25
P ey INEHISTes 353,072.90 17,653.64 343,924.84 17,196.24
Sy e Supples 222,248.54 11,112.43 116,128.07 5,806.40
Zhengzhou Shenlan Power
| Technology Co.Ltd. 83,791.48 4,189.57 66,902.21 3,345.11
Zhengzhou Shanxiang New Energy
Technology Co.,Ltd. 4,624.37 231.22 420,564.95 21,028.25
Zhengzhou Haohan Technology
| co,td. 2,211.26 110.56
Zhengzhou Traffic  Transportation 1068.56 53.43
Company e '
Zhengzhou Zhibo Environmental '
Technology Co. Ltd. 685,591.08 34,279.55
Tianjin Oasis  Construction
Technology Co.,Ltd. 35,.800.67 1,790.03
Notes
_receivable
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.,Ltd. 48,602,202.84
i i |
Yutong Commercial Vehicle 9.750,449.62 58.703,959.83 l
Co. Ltd. .
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" Related part Closing balance Opening balance
em elated party —
Carrying value Bad debis Carrying value Bad debts
o Zhengzhou Yutong Heavy
. Industries Co. Ltd. 8,077,401.38 9,231,771.71
Henan Haiwei New Energy
Technology Co.Ltd. 2,594,489.99 7,817,075.07
EWEA-TECH Co.,Ltd. 2,240,388.19 2,327,462.58
Zhengzhou  Yutong  mining -
equipment o, Lid. 1,488,457.36 2,840,463.06
Zhengzhou Zhibo Environmental
Technology Co.Ltd. 1,200,000.00 14,442,334.06
Yutong Light Commercial Vehicle 749 008.72 2 970,887 42
Co, Ltd. han it
Zhengzhou Zony Heavy Industries
Co, Lid. 122,827.83
Financing
recelvables
Henan Haiwei New  Energy
Technology Co.Ltd. 1,813,116.35 751,866.38
Zhengzhou Yutong Heavy
Industries Co.Ltd. 1,294,269.38 2,216,050.00
Yutong Light Commercial Vehicle
Co. Ltd. 553,447.20
Yutong ~ Commercial ~ Vehicle
Co. Ltd. 5,328,586.06
Zhengzhou Shanxiang New Energy
Technology Co. Ltd. 2200000
Zhengzhou Yutong mining
equipment Co., Ltd. 160,233.74
Prepayments
Zhengzhou  Yipinju  Industrial
Co.Lid. 1,102,223.60 198,699.08
Other
receivables
Anhe Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd. 1,060,528,439.41 | 268,527,930.83 | 917,030,101.21 | 159,735,266.39
frving,  Commeria Factorng | 43008066186 | 732586730 | 22211,70042 | 1,110,585.46
Contract assets
Zhengzhou Yutong Heavy
Industries Co.,Ltd. it 37.830.00
Henan Haiwei New  Energy
Technology Co.Ltd. 441,700.00 44,170.00 441,700.00 22,085.00
Zhengzhou Yutong mining
equipment o, L. 35,100.00 1,755.00
Yutong  Commercial ~ Vehicle
Co..Ltd. 15,000.00 750.00
Yutong Light Commercial Vehicle
Co. Ltd. 15,000.00 750.00
éhe“féhc’“ Zony Heavy Indusiries 10,567.72 106877 10,567.72 529.30
0., Lid. 587, ,058. ,587. !
Zhengzhou Shenlan Power
Technology Co.Ltd. 7,784.89 77849 7,784.89 389.24
(2) Payables to related parties
ltem Related party Closing balance Opening balance
Receipts in
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Item Related party Closing balance Opening balance

advance o o
Yutong Light Commercial Vehicle Co.,Ltd. ll 441,225.13
Zhengzhou Traffic Transportation Company ' 372,731.55
Zhengzhou  Shenlan Power  Technology
Co. Ltd. Gtk

Contract

_liabilities
Zhengzhou Traffic Transportation Company 336,613.89
Zhengzhou  Huizhongzhicheng  Education
o Technolagy Co.,Lid. - __?’849'56

TOO "QazTehna" 36,501,173.00

Olher current

liabilities )
Zhengzhou Traffic Transportation Company 43,759.81
Zhengzhou  Huizhongzhicheng  Education
Technology Co. Lid. Infal.

Notes payable
Henan Haiwei New Energy Technology
CouLtd. 212,013.47

Accounts

payable
Zhengzhou Yipinju Industrial Co.,Ltd. 1,634,333.87 1,653,082.73
A Shenlan  Power  Technology 23,623,367 61 135,367,373.23
Zhengzhou Yujia Auto Supplies Co.,Ltd. 2,931,800.43 4,613,680.97
Henan Liwei New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. 715,098.70 2,355,850.05
ér:.arl?;hou Zhibo Environmental Technology 2,288.810.83 6.204.022.30
EWEA-TECH Co.,Ltd. 7,343,401.23 25,743,866.06
Zhengzhou Zhongcheng Lubrication
Technology Co.,Ltd. 182149534
Zhengzhou Beiouke Safely —Technology 1,378,105.16 8.714,020.62
Co. Ltd.
Henan Lvdu Property Service Co.,Ltd. 1,341.18 678,351.93
(Sjgérliggal Lvlan  Engineering  Consulting 285.271.79 366,204.39
gl;?rﬁ?‘fmu Dingju New Material Technology 7341716
Zhengzhou  Shanxiang  New  Energy
Technology Co.Ltd. 613,008.00 4,730,263.18
Yutong Light Commercial Vehicle Co.,Ltd. 16,371,182.48 40,157,694.91
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.,Ltd. 40,091.95

Henan Haiwei New Energy Technology 13.054.164.60 13402 73150
Co..Ltd. el eI
Zhengzhou Zhibo Eleclromechanical

Equipment Co. Ltd. 350,085.84 : 288.00
Jiangsu Haofeng Construction Engineering 3.877.924.65 3.993.207.93
Co, Ltd. e =it
SAILING INTERNATIONAL ~ LEASING

LIMITED 633,618.44
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ltem J Related party Closing balance Opening balance
© | Yutong Commercial Vehicle Co Lt 1,404,891.74 121,140.04
é Zher]gzhou Haohan Technology Co.,Ltd. B 5,987,630.52 o 2,105,071.94
N ' Zhengzhou Yutong mining equipment Co., Ltd.—. - 19,109.92
) . Zhengzhou Yutong Heavy Industries Co.,Ltd, 504.21 15,179.08
Anying Commercial Factoring Co.,Ltd. i 39,5650,733.05
Zhengzhou Zunpin trading Co.,Ltd. 530.00 B
| Henan Maodu decoration engineering Co.,Ltd. 1}'6,806.12
- Other payables '
] Aolande Environmental Technology Co.,Ltd. 538,000.00 538,000.00
Guangzhou Yuhao Automobile Sales Co.,Ltd, 500,000.00 500,000.00 -
Zhengzhou Yipinju Industrial Co.,Ltd. 280,000.00 230,000.00
Henan Kuailu Travel Service Co.,Ltd. 200,000.00 B 1,000,000.00
Henan Liwei New Energy Technology Co., Lid. B 151,000.00
EZE?;%Z?#CO.,UTM Electromechanical 102,855.08 102,855.08
élgngtsdu Haofeng Construction Engineering 51,870.00 19,093.35
%23}\%&(;; Col.-’lﬂghongzhmheng Education 25,000.00 15,000,00
Henan Maodu decoration engineering Co.,Ltd. 6,900.30
Zhengzhou Haohan Technology Co.,Ltd. 192.95 192.95
Iggiipdjfengdu Real Estate Marketing Planning 20,000.00
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.Ltd. 5,327,702.11
(Z:r;?rligt;;hou Zhibo Environmental Technology 20,838.27
SINOMACHINARY INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 62,219.60

XIII.Commitments and contingencies

1.Significant commitments

The Company has no material commitments that need to be disclosed.

2.Important contingent event on the balance sheet date

i. Issue letters of gnarantee and letters of credit

As of December 31, 2023, the details of issued and unexpired letters of credit and letters of

guarantee are as follows:

[tem usb EUR CNY MNT R e
" Lelter of
credit 4,981,176.00
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ltem | USD EUR | CNY MNT . OAR MXN
(L]ﬁgf:rﬁge 1794983527 | 8536008100 | 92741404648 | 14164,386,76500 | 2,977,729.10 | 2,987,830.00

ii. Other contingent liabilities (excluding contingent liabilities that are highly unlikely to

result in outflow of economic benefits from the enterprise)

Customers purchase vehicles through financing by selecting appropriate financial instruments and
financing parties, and the company undertakes repurchase responsibility for part of the business,by
the end of the reporting period, the balance of repurchase liability borne by the company is 5.08
billion yuan, among which the mortgage loan business cooperated with Zhengzhou Anchi

Guarantee Co.,Ltd. bears 2.513 billion yuan of repurchase liability.

On 1 September 2011, Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.,Ltd., the conirolling shareholder of
Zhengzhou Anchi Guarantee Co.,Itd. (the financing support party), made an undertaking that,
during the period when Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.,Ltd. directly or indirectly controls
Zhengzhou Anchi Guarantee Co.,Ltd. (unless directly or indirectly controlled by the Company),
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.,Ltd. shall bear the actual loss caused by the repurchase liability of

the mortgage loan business cooperated with Zhengzhou Anchi Guarantee Co.,Ltd.

As of December 31, 2023, the balance of mortgage loan guarantee provided by the company's

subsidiaries to banks for commercial housing purchasers is 613 million yuan.

In addition to the above contingencies, as of December 31, 2023, the Company has no other

material contingencies that should be disclosed and not disclosed.

XIV.Subsequent events
1.Profit distribution

According to the 2023 profit distribution plan approved by the Board of Directors of the Company,
the Company intends to distribute a cash dividend of 15 yuan (tax included) to all shareholders for
every 10 shares. As of December 31, 2023, the company has a total share capital of
2,213,939,223.00 shares, based on which a total cash dividend of RMB 3,320,908,834.50
(including tax) is proposed to be paid. If the total share capital of the company changes before the
registration date of equity allocation, the company intends to maintain the same distribution ratio
per share and adjust the total distribution accordingly. The plan is subject to review by the

company's 2023 annual General Meeting of shareholders.

Tn addition to the above post-balance sheet events, as of the approval date of the financial report,
the Company has no other major post-balance sheet events that should be disclosed and not

disclosed.
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XV.Other significant matters
1.Division Information
i. Determination basis and accounting policies for reporting segments

The company determines its operating divisions based on its internal organizational structure,
management requirements and internal reporting system. An operating segment of the Company

refers to a component that simultaneously satisfies the following conditions:
(1) The component is able to generate income and incur expenses in daily activities;

(2) The management can regularly evaluate the operating results of the component to decide to

allocate resources to it and evaluate its performance;

(3) Able to obtain the financial position, operating results, cash flow and other relevant accounting

information of the component.

The Company determines a reporting segment on the basis of an operating segment, and an

operating segment that meets one of the following conditions is identified as a reporting segment:

(1) The segment revenue of the operating segment accounts for 10% or more of the total revenue

of all segments;

(2) The absolute segment profit (loss) of the segment accounts for 10% or more of the greater of

the total profit of all profitable segments or the total loss of all loss-making segments.

If the total amount of foreign transaction revenue of the operating segment of the reportable
segment determined in accordance with the above accounting policies does not account for 75% of
the consolidated total revenue, the number of reportable segments shall be increased, and other
operating segments not treated as reportable segments shall be included in the scope of the

reportable segment according to the following provisions until the proportion reaches 75% :

(1) Identify the operating segment that the management considers useful for the users of
accounting information to disclose the information of the operating segment as the reporting

segment;

(2) Combine the operating segment with one or more other operating segments that have similar
economic characteristics and meet the conditions for the combination of operating segments as a

reporting segment.

The transfer price between segments shall be determined with reference to the market price, and
the assets and related expenses jointly used with each segment shall be distributed among different

segments in proportion to the revenue.
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jii. The Company determines the factors considered by the reporting segment and the types

of products and services of the reporting segment

The company's reporting divisions are business units that provide different products and services.
As various businesses require different technologies and marketing strategies, the Company
independently manages the production and operation activities of each reporting segment and
evaluates its operating results separately to decide to allocate resources to it and evaluate its

performance.

The company has 4 reporting divisions: bus manufacturing division, foreign trade division,

passenger transport division, other division.
iii. Report segment financial information

Unit of amount; ten thousand yuan

Closing balance/ current period
bus ) passenger I
ltem | foreign trade Offset
manufacturin ) transport | other division . Total
. division o against
g division division
(1)Operating revenue 2,431,281.00 | 909,685.73 4,388.08 183,645.10 824,800.96 | 2,704,198.95
Including: external revenue 1,612,992.64 908,761.06 4,388.08 178,057.17 2,704,198.95
Inter-segment 818,288.36 924.67 558793 | 824,800.96
revenue
(CleEIEEEL operaing | o 40434505 | 03675376 | 424702 | 181,063.95 | 820,012.16 | 2,496,397.62
" Including: depreciation
expense and 68,878.17 500.13 748.64 2,285.87 80039 | 73,213.19
amortizafion
o expense i
(3)Investment income from [
joint ventures and 5,024.58 4,872.09 9,896.67
joint ventures
(4)Credit impairment losses -31,586.91 -443.85 -64.02 -1,261.35 -33,356.13
(5)Assfgzs'gnspa'rme”t 5450404 | 1,635.13 4136 38834 | 5571037
(6)Profit before tax 236,935.95 -27,068.03 141.06 2,581.14 4,788.79 207,301.33
(7)Income tax expenses 19,902.31 773.08 1,468.05 -1,707.55 23,851.00
(8)Net profit 217,033.64 -27,841.12 141.06 1,113.10 6,496.35 183,950.33
(9)Total assets 3,027,136.43 | 327,687.03 | 10,355.52 394,654.32 674,137.70 | 3,085,695.60
(10)Total liabilities 1,431,441.36 | 375,380.07 1,315.52 191,149.79 319,253.10 | 1,680,033.63

XVI.Notes to major account of the company's financial statements

1.Accounts receivable
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i. Accounts receivable disclosed by aging

Aging Closing balance | Opening halance
Within 1 year N o 3,595,038,274.52 4,582,013,609.99 -
1—2 years 1,502,565,226.23 664,737,104.82
_2:3 years_ o 584,846,448.86 285,188,502.25
" 3—4years 201,558,661.28 166,071,981.16
4—5years 139,809,672.12- 3_78,796,340.84
: More than 5;% 1,158,570,392.37 854,941,249.97
) Subtotal 7,182,388,675.38 6,931,748,789.03
Less: bad debt provision 1,553,268,713.38 1,359,763,623.11
Total 5,629,119,962.00 5,571,985,165.92

ii. Accounts receivable disclosed by provision of bad debts

Closing balance
Category Book balance Bad debt provision -
Proportion Proportion arrying amount
‘ Amount (%) Amount (%)

Bad debt provision assessed
individually
g;‘ig:m provision assessed by | 7 4a0sgas75ag | 10000 | 1,653268713.38 | 2163 | 5629,119,962.00
Including:Aging portfolio 4,617,904,388.14 64.30 | 1,546,721,951.46 3349 | 3,071,182,436.68

High risk portfolio 6,546,761.92 0.09 6,546,761.92 100.00

Related parties portfolio 2,557,937,525.32 35.61 2,557,937,525.32

Total 7,182,388,675.38 100.00 | 1,553,268,713.38 2163 | 5,629,119,962.00
Continued:
Opening balance
Category Bock balance Bad debt provision .
Proportion Proportion |  Carrying amount
Amount (%) Amount (%)

Bad debt provision assessed
individually
gfo‘fjggbt provisionassessed by | 03174878903 | 10000 | 1,359,763623.11 | 1962 | 5,571,985,165.92
Including:Aging portfolio 4,975,865,588.75 71.78 | 1,354,584,241.68 2722 | 3,621,281,347.07

High risk portfolio 5,179,381.43 0.08 5,179,381.43 100.00

Related parties portfolio 1,950,703,818.85 28.14 1,950,703,818.85

Total 6,931,748,789.03 100.00 | 1,359,763,623.11 1962 | 5,571,985,165.92

Bad debt provision assessed by groups

(1) Aging portfolio
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Closing balance

Aging portfolio —
Book balance Bad debt provision Proportion (%)
Within 1 year 1,680,200,381.22 84,010,019.15 5 o
1—2years 1,091,694,321.93 109,169,432.19 B 10
2—3 years 437,373,998.66 8_7,474,799.73 20
3—4 years R 158,093,691.28 63,237,476.51 40
4—5 years 119,279,427.93 71,567,656.76 60
_More than 5 years 1,131,262,567.12 1,131,262,567.12 100
h Total 4,617,904,388.14 1,546,721,951.46
(2) High risk portfolio
High risk portfolio e
Book balance Bad debt provision Proportion (%)
Within 1 year 1,561,781.73 1,561,781.73 100.00
1—2 years 238,290.00 238,290.00 100.00
2—3years 1,134,000.00 1,134,000.00 100.00
3—4 years
4—5 years i 1,628,618.94 1,528,618.94 100.00
More than 5 years 2,084,071.25 2,084,071.25 100.00
Total 6,546,761.92 6,546,761.92
(3) Related parties portfolio
Closing balance
Item
Book halance Bad debt provision Proportion (%)
Related parties within the scope of
consolidation 2,557,937,525.32
Total 2,557,937,525.32

iii. Provision, recovery or reversal of bad debt provision during the year

Opening balance

Changes in the current period

Closing halance

Category _—
Provision Recovery Write-off GlipE
or reversal changes

Bad debt provision assessed
individually ]
Bad debt provision assessed | 4 359 763,693 11 | 193,505,090.27 1,553,268,713.38
by groups
Including:Aging portfolio 1,354,584,241.68 | 192,137,709.78 1,546,721,951.46

High risk portfolio 5,179,381.43 1,367,380.49 6,546,761.92

Total 1,359,763,623.11 | 193,505,090.27 1,553,268,713.38
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iv. Top five accounts receivable based on debtors

copary | | Commtases | AUGLIECET | Pomion e | g gt poion
| Closing balance Closing halance
Number 1 1,827,770,859.96 1,827,770,859.96 25.10
m-m_berZ ll '566,723,147.12 37,535,674.00 1,004,258,821.12 1_37_9 165,682,248.27 |
E;ber 3| 975,967,874.26 - 975,967,874.26 13.40 952,002,459.21
Number 4 589,413,169.64 589,413,169.64 8.09 45,647,214.98 ’
Number 5 287,509,069.88 287,509,069.88 3.95 .
Total 4,647,384,120.86 37,535,674.00 4,684,91!;794.86 64.33 | 1,162,731,922.46 '

2.0ther receivables

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Dividends receivable 16,000,000.00 .
Other receivables 2,091,204,447.88 2,919,469,885.42
o Total 2,091,204,447.88 2,935,469,885.42

Note: Other receivables listed in the form listed above refers to other receivables excluding

interests receivable and dividends receivable.

i. Dividends receivable

Investee Closing balance Opening balance
Lhasa Yutong Shunjie Automobile Sales Co.,Ltd 16,000,000.00
Total 16,000,000.00

ii. Other receivables

(1)Aging analysis
Aging Closing balance Opening balance
_Within 1 year 1,059,244,138.09 1,371,515,213.84
1—2 years 638,756,438.65 789,588,452.84
- 2—3 years 265,639,126.83 757,245,882.20
3—4 years a 255,752,320.22 176,020,580.24
4—5years 169,175,072.24 1,837,989.57
Me than 5 years 3,150,103.74 25,328,711.01

Subtotal 2,391,717,249.77 3,121,536,829.70
Less: bad debt provision 300,512,801.89 202,066,944.28
Total 2,091,204,447.88 | 2,919,469,885.42
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(2)Details of classification by nature

Nature Closing balance Opening balance
_Employee_loé;s ) - 16,270,06; .4_3 37,170,296.52
" Temporary payment 1473509,68590 | 2,113,454,327.64
_éé;u;imeposit - 1T 1,201,937,502.44 949,912,205.54
‘ Equity transfer fee N - - 21,000,000.00
Subtotal 2,391,717,249.77 3,121,536,829.70
Less: bad debt provision - 300,512,801.89 | 202,066,944.28
Total 2,091,204,447.88 2,919,469,885.42

(3)Disclosed by bad debt provision methods

Closing balance

Category

Book balance

Bad debt provision

Amount (%)

Proportion

Amount

Proportion

Carrying amount
(%)

Bad debt provision assessed
individually

Bad debt provision assessed by

aroups 2,391,717,249.77 100.00 300,512,801.89 12,56 | 2,091,204,447.88
Including:Aging portfolio 1,296,462,636.25 54,21 300,512,801.89 23.18 995,949,834.36
Related parties portfolio 1,095,254,613.52 45.79 1,095,254,613.52
Total 2,391,717,249.77 100.00 300,512,801.89 12.56 | 2,091,204,447.88
Continued:
Opening balance
Category Book balance Bad debt provision
Proportion Proportion |  Carrying amount
Amount (%) Amount %) -
Bad debt provision assessed
individually 23,135,404.84 . 0.74 23,135,404.84 100.00
Eri‘ilg:b‘ provision assessed by | 5 098 401 424,86 | 99.26 178,931,639.44 577 | 2,919,469,885.42
Including:Aging portfolio 1,072,493,032.55 34.36 178,931,639.44 16.68 893,561,493.11
Related parties portfolio 2,025,908,392.31 64.90 2,025,908,392.31
Total | 3,121,536,829.70 100.00 202,066,944.28 6.47 | 2,919469,885.42
Bad debt provision assessed by groups
1) Aging portfolio
Closing balance
Aging portfolio
| Book balance Bad debt provision Proportion (%)
Within 1 year i 396,313,999.85 19,815,700.00 | 5.00
1—2 years | 206,732,013.37 20,673,201.34 10.00
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Closing balance
Aging portfolio —
Book balance Bad debt provision Proportion (%)
2—3years 265,339,126.83 53,067,825.37 20.00
3—4 years 255,752,320.22 102,300,928.09 | 40.00
4—5years 169,175,072.24 101,505,043.35 E 60.00
More than 5 years 3,150,103.74 3,150,103.74 ! 100.00
Total 1,296,462,636.25 300,512,801.89 i

2) Related parties portfolio

Jtem

Closing balance

Book balance

Bad debt provision

Proportion (%>

Related parties within the scope of

merger

1,095,254,613.52

Total

1,095,254,613.52

Provision for bad debts is based on the general model of expected credit losses

Bad debt provision

Stage | Stage

I Stagell |

12-month ECL L
impaire

Lifetime ECL (not

Lifetime ECL

d) (impaired)

Total

Opening balance

178,931,539.44

23,135,404.84

202,066,944.28

Opening balance in the
current period

—Transfer to Stage |l

—Transfer to Stage
Il

—Reverse to Stage |l

—Reverse to Stage |

Provision

121,581,262.45

121,581,262.45

Reversal

Elimination

Write-off

23,135,404.84

23,135,404.84

Other changes

Closing balance

300,512,801.89

300,512,801.89

(4)Provision, recovery or reversal of bad debt provision during the year

T

Changes in the current period

Category Opening balance Closing balance
Provision e Write-off St ’
reversal changes
s 23,135,404.84 23,135,404.84
assessed individually
Bad debt provision
assessed by groups 178,931,539.44 | 121,581,262.45 300,512,801.89
Including:Aging portfolio 178,931,539.44 | 121,581,262.45 300,512,801.89
Total 202,066,944.28 | 121,581,262.45 23,135,404.84 300,512,801.89
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(5)Other receivables written off as at the end of the current period

Item Amount of write-off
Actual write-off of other receivables : 23,135,404.84
Significant write-off of other receivables:
| Is it arising from
Nature of other g Reason for Procedures
Company name - Amount of write-off write-off performed related pany
R transactions?
Approved b
Customer 1 Temporary 23,135,404.84 | Notrecoverable | PP / No
| payment management
Total 23,135,404.84
(6)Top five other receivables based on debtors
Company | Proportion to the total | Closing balance
Nature Closing balance Aging | closing balance of other of bad debt
name ) | receivables (%) provision
Within 1 year,
) ) 1—2years,2—3
Number 1 Security deposit 1,060,528,439.41 years,3—4 years 4434 268,527,930.83
o —b5 years
Within 1 year,
Number 2 Temporary payment 730,327,632.04 1—2 years 30.54
Within 1 year,
Number 3 Temporary payment 156,480,000.00 1—2 years 6.54 .f
! Within 1 year,
Number 4 Temporary payment 136,027,920.00 1—2 years 5.69
Number5 | Security deposit 130980,651.86 | \in T year, 548 7,325,867.30
1—2 years
Total 2,214,344,653.31 92.59 275,853,798.13
3.Long-term equity investments
Closing balance Opening balance
ltem | Provision for . Provision for | :
Book balance impairment__ Carrying amount | - Book balance impairment_| Carrying amount
Investment in |
o 3,416,700,630.86 3,416,700,630.86] 3,911,192,380.86 | 3,911,192,380.86
subsidiaries |
Investment in joint |
ventures and 1,047,085,956.32|454,659,708.50| 593,326,247.82|  996,940,163.70| 996,940,163.70
associales
Total 4,464,686,587.18(454,659,708.50| 4,010,026,878.68| 4,908,132,544.56 | 4,908,132,544.56
1. Investment in subsidiaries
Provision for Closing

Increase inthe | Decrease in the
current period current period

impairment in balance of
the current provisions for
period impairment

initial investment

cost Opening balance

Investee Closing balance
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' ’ Provisionfor | Closing
Initial investment ; Increase inthe | Decrease in the impairmentin | of

Investee Opening balance n @ .th pairment in balgpce
current period current period the current provisions for

cost Closing balance
period impairment

ml% Hongkong 29,879,767.55 29,879,767.55 29,879,767.55

Hainan Yaoxing
Transportation Group 15,020,000.00 48,505,401.00 48,505,401.00
Co., Ltd.

Zhengzhou Jingyida

Auto Pars Co., Ltd. 1,253,594,473.94 | 1,253,594,473.94 1,253,594,473.94

Changchun Ruiteng
Automobile Sales and 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
Senvice Co., Ltd. |
Changsha Economic
and Technological
Development Zone 41,487,520.00 41,487,520.00 41,487,520.00
Sannong Yutong
Technology Co., Lid.
Shanghai Yutong
Qingpu Automobile
Technology Service
Co., Lid.

40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00

Chengdu Yutong Bus
Technology 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00
Development Co., Ltd.

Wuhan Yutong Shunjie

BUS Industry Co., Ltd. 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00

Xizang Kangrui
Yingshi Industrial Co., 700,000,000.00 700,000,000.00 700,000,000.00
Ltd.

Shenyang Yutong
Shunjie Bus Service 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00
Co., Ltd.

Shenzhen Zhilan
Automobile Sales Co., 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00
Ltd.

Nanning Yutong

Shunjie Bus Co,, Ltd.
Zhengzhou Chongxin
Real Estate Co,, Ltd.

40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00

705,000,000.00 705,000,000.00 705,000,000.00

Harbin Lvxin
Automobile Sales Co., 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
Ltd.

Zhengzhou Tonghe
Praperty Service Co., 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
Ltd.

Shanxi Lvxin Ruikong
Automobile Sales Co., 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
Ltd.

Chongging Lvxin |

Ruikong Automobile
Sales and Service Co., 720,000.00 720,000.00 720,000.00

Ltd.

Zhengzhou Fengyu

Real Estate Co., Ltd. 259,000,000.00 760,000,000.00 501,000,000.00 259,000,000.00

Shenzhen Yutong
Zhilian Technology 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
Co., Lid.

Guangzhou Zhilan
Automobile Sales and

3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
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| Provision for Closing
| Initial investment . Increase inthe | Decrease in the ' impairment in balance of
INVESISS ' cost Opening balance current period current period oSl elencs the current provisions for
~ period impairment
Service Co., Ltd.
" Qingdao Lvxin : -
Ruikong New Energy 270,000.00 170,000.00 | 100,000.00 270,000.00 [
Technology Co., Ltd. | |
Lhasa Yutong Shunjie | [
Automabile Sales Co., 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 |
Ltd. -
Hainan Yuxing Road
Transportation Co., 21,800,000.00 21,800,000.00 21,800,000.00
Ltd. | | N
Zhengzhou Ruitu 1 |
 Industral Co, Ltd. . 7,442,600.00 7,442,600.00 7,442,600.00
Zhengzhou Ruitan
Industrial Go., Ltd, 7,440,000.00 7,440,000.00 7,440,000.00 B
Inner Mongolia Lvxin
Ruikong Automobile 580,000.00 580,000.00 580,000.00
Sales Co., Ltd.
Zhengzhou Tongji [
Intelligent Technology 540,000.00 540,000.00 540,000.00
Co., Ltd.
Zhengzhou Kelin
Motor Vehicle Air 1,449,818.37 1,449,818.37 1,449,818.37
Conditioning Co.,Ltd.
Xizang Debai
Industrial Co., Ltd. 2,247,100.00 11,900.00 2,235,200.00 2,247,100.00
Xizang Deyou
Industrial Co., Ltd. 50,241,900.00 50,026,400.00 215,500.00 50,241,900.00
Zaozhuang Lvxin
Ruikong Automobile
sales and service Co., 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
Ltd.
SINOYUTONG
INTERNATIONAL LTD 6,384,500.00 6,384,500.00 6,384,500.00
Zhengzhou Yutong RV
3,826,050.00 3,826,050.00 3,826,050.00
Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Lvxin Ruikong
Inteligent | 131,500.00 131,500.00 131,500.00 |
Transportation
Development Co., Ltd.
A 3,383,215,229.86 | 3,911,192,380.86 6,508,250.00 | 501,000,000.00 | 3,416,700,630.86
2. Investment in joint ventures and associates
Changes for the current period
Investes Opening " . Investment income or | Adjustment to other
balance Additional | Decrease in | | o ocognised under | comprehensive
investment |  investment €09 P
equity method income
| Associates
Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Co. Ltd, 994,451,984.91 50,207,723.59
Guangzhou Yuhao Automobile Sales Co.,Ltd. 2,488,178.79 25,421.64
Ningbo Zhequan Trading Co.,Ltd. 800,000.00 12,647.39
Total 996,940,163.70 800,000.00 | 50,245,792.62

Notes to financial statements Page.153




Yutong Bus CO.,LTD.

Tor the year ended 31 december 2023
Notes to the financial statements
English translation for reference only

Continued:
| Changes for the current period Closing balance
Investee Other equiﬂ Declared cash Brovision for Others Closing balance oflprov‘[smn for
- . changes | dividend or profit|  impairment | impairment
|.Associates ! |
Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd. 454,659,708.50 1,044,659,708.50 | 454,659,708.50
Guangzhou Yuhao Automobile Sales Co.,Ltd. 2,513,600.43
Ningbo Zhequan Trading Co.,Ltd. 812,647.39
Total ! 454,659,708.50 ’ 1,047,985,956.32 | 454,659,708.50
4.0perating revenue and costs of sales
i. Operating revenue and costs of sales
Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
ltem
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
Principal operating activities 21,411,686,369.61 | 15,786,704,420.27 | 17,953,682,039.89 | 14,145,632,508.97
Others 2,282,098,032.41 1,851,611,618.45 1,708,321,827.50 1,361,297,235.53
Total 23,693,784,402.02 | 17,638,316,038.72 | 19,662,003,867.39 | 15,506,929,744.50
ii. Main business (by contract type)
contract type Revenue
Vehicle sales contract 21,403,254,854.61
Services and other contracts 8,431,515.00
Total 21,411,686,369.61
iii. Main Business (by region)
) Amount incurred in the current period Amount incurred in the prior period
region
l, Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
Domestic sales 12,254,295,406.97 9,694,665,300.17 12,884,526,141.22 10,652,198,257.57
Overseas sales 9,157,390,962.64 6,092,039,120.10 5,069,155,398.67 3,403,434,251.40
Total 21,411,686,369.61 15,786,704,420.27 17,953,682,039.89 ' 14,145,632,508.97

5.Income from investments

Amount incurred in the

Amount incurred in the

ltem current period prior period
Income from long-term equity investments under equity method 50,245,792.62 100,415,500.59
Income from fong-term equity investments under cost method 168,450,000.00 79,170,000.00
"Investment income on disposal of long-term equity investments 59,400,108.13
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Amountincurred in the Amount incurred in the
ltem ) . .

o o o | current period prior period
Investment income from disposal of held-for-trading financial assets 7,408,315.32 -8,777,562.55
Interest income from holding debt investments 19,392,5672.95 19,782,771.69
Dividend income from holding investments in other equity instruments 8,250,000.00 13,682,100.00
Investment income from holding financial assets at amortized cost 25,055,805.82
Others i -32,232,845.52 -39,411,711.04

&t [ 246,569,641.19 224,261,206.82
XVIIL.Supplementary information
1.Details of current non-recurring profit and loss

ltem Amount Description

Gain or loss on the disposal of illiquid assets, including the write-off of the asset
impairment provision 48’013’339'34_
Government subsidies included in the profit and loss of the current period, except [
for government subsidies that are closely related to the normal operation of the [
company, comply with the provisions of national policies, enjoy in accordance with 295,841,348.40
the standards determined, and have a continuous impact on the profit and loss of
the company
In addition to the effective hedging business related to the normal operation of the
company, the profit or loss of fair value changes arising from the holding of 50.660.739.48
financial assets and financial liabilities by non-financial enterprises and the loss or e
gain arising from the disposal of financial assets and financial liabilities
Capital occupation fee charged to non-financial companies included in current
profit and loss 24,957,023.50
Profit and loss of entrusting others to invest or manage assets
Profit and loss from external entrusted loans i
Loss of assets due to force majeure factors, such as natural disasters
Reversal of provision for impairment of receivables tested individually 18,311,035.58

The investment cost of subsidiary, joint venture and associates acquired by a
company is less than the income from the fair value of the identifiable net assets
of the investee when the investment is acquired

Current net profit and loss of subsidiaries from the beginning of the period to the
date of business combination under the common control

Gains or losses from non-monetary assets exchange

Profit and loss of debt restructuring -5,910,000.00

The one-time expenses incurred by the enterprise because the relevant business
activities are no longer continuous, such as the expenses of relocating employees
One-time impact on current profit and loss due to tax, accounting and other laws
‘and regulations

Payment of one-time recognized shares due to cancellation or modification of the
share incentive plan

For cash settled share payments, gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value of employee compensation are payable after the vesting date

Profit and loss from changes in fair value of investment properties measured by
fair value model

Gains from transactions where the transaction price is significantly unfair
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Item [ Amount Description

Profits and losses arising from contingencies unrelated to the normal operation of |
the company i B ! R

Custody fee income from entrusted operation |

Other non-operating income and expenses except the above items 40,834,910.37
Other profit and loss items conforming to the definition of non-recurring profit and o
loss : ~
Less: The impact of income tax [ 67,744,314.24
The Impact on non-controliing interests (After tax> : 2,407,942.41
Total 402,556,140.02

2.Return on net assets and earnings per share

Profitin the reporting period | Weighted average retum onnet | Eamngsporshars_
assets (%) Basic earnings per | Diluted earnings per

share share

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

of the company 12.97 0.82 0.82

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

of the company after deducting non-recurring 10.10 0.64 0.64

profit and loss

Notes to financial statements Page.156




j ﬁ

W%%@me

101 IBEL Y& b AR WhHEHFEE
HeoEcodrzlor Hf H I
w09 g

CERINMEN T oS
SR DT o AN Y,

ST . = S A ey ¥ |
HRTHL el

BHERHAE

_@?ﬂm

D0S09LI06SE0I0ITLE

By B

I R—%




i st 20 A B ey e Y ek e
1 !F.u—uuh th\] H
..\n. B ) xvﬂn.«..u..a
[E EEr TR,
- .ﬂrl\W( . N .u.n...._
. o.yvl,,,
.u.......lpu_uh.q.,..u.ux..\.n.\ =
=) EXLEm

(TGRS
WEET  WHE LN EET SR
"Tis B CH

R ORY CHGEY (FTUNSY SIS
A LR ) R 7

CHERFREEEA (TR G S 113)
JEL

S ME R NSHELGLTH TR YLIE

MAHBY B TIE (TR SEn1S)
By W

£600000 ekgm

*Hif H O

HeoH L1110z
g XA

WU HE L WG pysms
6 M T

ﬁ@%*ﬁﬁtﬁ 8101011
g CE A W

XS BRI

W E R
M RBHE
ﬁ$ﬁ<$¢ﬁm

EHC VB 59V 58 by il B X BN

o) 2

-
)
2

;
R IR

O SR i




SMIEPSE 3O TI(

AT T 3 Sy GPSLTRTIN e 2P
A — Vi N

I3 w A lﬂ“% e =~ {}

I R e - Qe ]« hetl

W55 SN - e ST, R PR =

FFIRFR . -

T LR
‘ W%&# = 2Ry % “

e

1 ¢ -£0- si0z W Reccg oy

apge e Hagouo 10j piiea skakuaiidds
L0z =+ 4 ssuiesioooll (BBED

e N..,. o =% 00} TERNOR A () TR SRLERSY S e Mo Bt 2 sl
! Vi, ST E R ER "=y b

A

1
.v\mo_\...- Mgy dayyiomn 1o sFampy sy e uonens3>y v © Aq s Surpingy je dduryD 3o usnensui>y

MEEEF TV I THRSEE AF KT T FH T HLTLE

L
'
li 2
T
M i
E
L & B
NT) i ke
Ovﬂno’._ hé».m ' W
8
<ol "
) Wil 7 & B
= =7 = 3
= y | e = o -
i\ R
,N \\ _ 3 : : 32 W. HEAEIETR U
k X ..ﬁ.\\ : T 3 W Lﬁ.,um. = m 13152 325 12I0UE 20 PIIEA STIITIIIIISIRY
g & i o
% ~y ¥ PR U w2 ol Ch-WERHT RS HATRTY
% -k
is,
" Sasiivi 2wt
uoneasiday [pwouay jenuuy
AEXFHE L
- "




=

‘JradudL S1Y1
1Ye 1004 SHI0UL 20) Pif1a 8 MNUBNIID SYYY

WG WS I ¢y

uolienRiFay jrwsusy jeouay
UE W &

| pRCONATRY
ot -

¢ Wl 4 m S

< AL k%

Ay ) A
F %
4 -
8 %
= o
) \\\x_._? ﬁ\ i

% ‘._____.__ :M\ &

%, ~ g =
‘%

o w &
i [c4 ka

|EMOUDI SHY
ARYIR JEIA IIUYIOUT 10] PI{EA SIITILNI03 S{L

=R GG NS RmE Y

LONCNSITVY [EMIuRY [eruuy

REFHE

1

S

ar 8

o I

(=3

¥|BR| =
] B MMEHMM.M
H £ T4 E
S 1Y
= L Me¥zaE
vEénd us .._%.u.....h,.,..m

AL L
&3 -
;53

0

IRAUE Sy
SRR A4 1DIOUT JO) PLBA S ST (1493 S L

A B G AW Ty

uouenastEay resausy [enuy

o B ¥

e e

JAULNSK) J0 Mg

P I

v o R
© i & oz i
1SV s PRzl
- e 4 i ER e
BEUIS R Ry A

.o |
S awdimnd e oy

Ve wF 3
492087101011




